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TRADEMARKS AND TRADE NAMES

QUALCOMM ®, Qualcomm Enterprise ServicesQES®, MSM ®, Snapdragofi, gpsOne®, Brew®, Plaza™, Plaza Retail and QChat
®are trademarks or registered trademarks of QUALCOM®brporated. Atherodand Hy-Fi™ are trademarks or registered trademarks of
Qualcomm Atheros, Inc. Xiathis a registered trademark of Xiam Technologies taohi SWAGG™ is a trademark of Firethorn Mobile, Inc.
Firethorn®is a registered trademark of Firethorn HoldingsCLImirasolPis a registered trademark of QUALCOMM MEMS Techmyés, Inc

Qualcomm, Qualcomm Enterprise Services, QES, Qumait&€ DMA Technologies, QCT, Qualcomm Technology b&iag, QTL, Qualcomm
Wireless & Internet, QWI, Qualcomm Internet Sergic®IS, Qualcomm Government Technologies, QGOV |c@uan MEMS Technologies,

QMT, Qualcomm Technologies & Ventures, MFT, Qualooi@trategic Initiatives, QSI, Firethorn and FLO &ké trade names of Qualcomm
Incorporated.

cdmaOneVis a trademark of the CDMA Development Group, MEMAX ™is a trademark of the WiMAX Foruf. LTE™ , UMTS™
and 3GPP" are trademarks of the European Telecommunicatitarsd@rd Institute. CDMA200Dis a registered service mark and certification
mark of the Telecommunications Industry Associatitava®is a registered trademark and service mark of Siendglystems, Inc. Windows
Phone and Windows 8 are trademarks of MicrosofpG@tion. Linux®is a registered trademark of Linus Torvalds. QNX a registered
trademark of QNX Software Systems Co. iDEN a registered trademark of Motorola. Blackbétrisya registered trademark of Research In
Motion Ltd. Android™ and Google Chrom®' are trademarks of Google Inc. Blueto8ik a registered trademark of Bluetooth SIG, Inboifk
®is a registered trademark and App Stdtis a service mark of Apple, Inc.

All other trademarks, service marks and/or tradeemappearing in this document are the propertiyeif respective holders.




In this document, the words “Qualcomm,” “we,” “cutpurs” and “us”refer only to QUALCOMM Incorporated and its subsidés and n¢
any other person or entity.

PART |

Item 1. Business

This Annual Report (including, but not limited tbe following section regarding Management'’s Distmis and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations) contains fodalaoking statements regarding our business, irmrondition, results of operations and
prospects. Words such as “expects,” “anticipatésténds,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimateand similar expressions or variations of
such words are intended to identify forward-lookgtgtements, but are not the exclusive means ofifgdimg forward{ooking statements in tr
Annual Report. Additionally, statements concerrfmigire matters such as the development of new pitsgdanhancements or technologies,
sales levels, expense levels and other statenegdsding matters that are not historical are fodawlaoking statements.

Although forward-looking statements in this Ann&adport reflect our good faith judgment, such statets can only be based on facts and
factors currently known by us. Consequently, fovixoking statements are inherently subject tosriskd uncertainties and actual results and
outcomes may differ materially from the results antcomes discussed in or anticipated by the fa@oking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resuitsoutcomes include without limitation those désmd under the heading “Risk Factors”
below, as well as those discussed elsewhere iAthisial Report. Readers are urged not to placeaineliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date ofAhisual Report. We undertake no obligation to revds update any forward-looking
statements in order to reflect any event or cirdamse that may arise after the date of this AnRegdort. Readers are urged to carefully review
and consider the various disclosures made in thisual Report, which attempt to advise interestetigsof the risks and factors that may
affect our business, financial condition, resuftsgerations and prospects.

We incorporated in 1985 under the laws of the siht@alifornia. In 1991, we reincorporated in thats of Delaware. We operate and re
using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending the last Sy September. Our 52-week fiscal years consi&iw equal quarters of 13 weeks each,
and our 53-week fiscal years consist of three 18kwfiscal quarters and one 14-week fiscal quaftee. financial results for our 53-week fiscal
years and our -week fiscal quarters will not be exactly compaeatol our 52-week fiscal years and our 13-week figoarters. The fiscal
years endeSeptember 25, 2011 , September 26, 2010 and Sept@mb2009 all included 52 weeks.

Overview

In 1989, we publicly introduced the concept thdigital communication technique called CDMA coulel dommercially successful in
cellular wireless communication applications. CDMtands for Code Division Multiple Access and is ofthe main technologies currently
used in digital wireless communications networksq&nown as wireless networks). CDMA and TDMA (EiDivision Multiple Access), of
which Global System for Mobile Communications (GSMjhe primary commercial form, are the primargi@il technologies currently used
transmit a wireless device user’s voice or data oa@io waves using a public cellular wireless ragkw Because we led, and continue to lead,
the development and commercialization of CDMA teslbgy, we own significant intellectual propertycinding patents, patent applications
and trade secrets, which applies to all versiorS@MA that we implement in our own products andtipms of which we license to other
companies. The wireless communications industregaly recognizes that a company seeking to deyet@mufacture and/or sell products
that use CDMA technology will require a patent tise from us.

We also continue our leading role in the developna@d commercialization of Orthogonal Frequencyigdn Multiple Access (OFDMA)-
based technologies for which we have substantiell@ctual property. Our CDMA licensees’ sales afltiimode CDMA and OFDMA devices
are covered by their existing CDMA license agreeimevrith us. We have begun to license companiesakerand sell OFDMA products that
do not also implement CDMA, and 13 companies (idicig LG, Nokia and Samsung) have royaigaring licenses under all or a portion of
patent portfolio for use in such OFDMA products.

Our Revenues . We generate revenues by selling products and ssrvichich include:

« Integrated circuits (also known as chips or shtp) and Radio Frequency (RF) and Power Managegbhtchips and system
software used in mobile devices and in wireleswags;

« Integrated circuits for use in wired devicesitigalarly broadband gateway equipment, desktopmaers, televisions and Blu-ray
players;

» Software products and services for content emabht across a wide variety of platforms and devioethe wireless
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industry;

* Equipment, software and services used by comegairicluding those in the transportation induatrg governments, to wirelessly
connect with their assets and workforce;

»  Software products and services that enable ma@binmerce services; and

» Software and hardware development services.

We also generate revenues by licensing portiomsiofntellectual property to manufacturers of wésd pro ducts, such as mobile devices,
also known as subscriber units, which include hatsj®ther consumer devices (e.g., tablets, personguters, e-readers), machine-to-
machine devices (e.g., telematics devices, metelimg devices) and data modem cards, the infrasteiequipment required to establish and
operate a network and network and test equipmantli€ensing revenues are comprised of fixed liecfegs (payable in one or more
installments) and ongoing royalties on products g1 our licensees that incorporate our patentelahtgogies.

Our Integrated Circuits Business. We develop and supply integrated circuits and systeftware based on CDMA, OFDMA and other
technologies for use in voice and data communinafioetworking, application processing, multimediactions and global positioning system
products. Our integrated circuit products and systeftware are sold to or licensed to manufactutesuse our products in wireless devices,
particularly mobile phones, tablets, laptops, datalules, handheld wireless computers and gaminige&\access points and routers, data
cards and infrastructure equipment, and in wiraedo#s, particularly broadband gateway equipmergkibg computers, televisions and Bay
players. The Mobile Station Modem (MSM) integratéduits, which include the Mobile Data Modem, Qaaahm Single Chip and Qualcomm
Snapdragon devices, perform the core baseband mhuhetionality in wireless devices providing voiaed data communications, as well as
multimedia applications and global positioning ftioks. In addition, our Snapdragon enabled integrafrcuits provide advanced application
processing capabilities. Our system software esahle other device components to interface withrttegrated circuit products and is the
foundation software enabling manufacturers to dgvelevices utilizing the functionality within thetégrated circuits. Our infrastructure
equipment Cell Site Modem (CSM) integrated circaitsl system software perform wireless standardptiam processing of voice and data
signals in the wireless operator’s base statiofipagent to and from wireless devices. Because oka@perience in designing and developing
CDMA- and OFDMA-based products, we not only degitgs baseband integrated circuit, but the suppogysgiem as well, including the RF
devices, PM devices and accompanying software ptedlihis approach enables us to optimize the paence of the wireless device with
improved product features and integration withribevork system. We also provide support, includiefgrence designs and tools, to enable
our customers to reduce the time required to ddsigin products and bring their products to mafaster. We plan to add additional features
and capabilities to our integrated circuit produotielp our customers reduce the costs and siteenfproducts, to simplify our customers’
design processes and to enable more wireless deatkservices.

Our Licensing Business. We grant licenses to use portions of our intellacproperty portfolio, which includes certain pateaghts
essential to and/or useful in the manufacture ahelaf certain wireless products, and collect fikednse fees and ongoing royalties in partial
consideration for such licenses.

Our Wireless Device Software and Related Services Business. We provide software products and services for thba wireless industry.
Our Brew products and services enable wirelessadpes, device manufacturers and software develdpgyeovide over-the-air and pre-loaded
wireless applications and services. Our Plaza mtsdand services enable wireless operators, dewacrifacturers and publishers to create and
distribute mobile content across a variety of jplatfs and devices. We also offer Xiam wireless aurdéscovery and recommendation
products to help wireless operators improve usagdeadoption of digital content and services and §Cé push to talk product optimized for
third generation (3G) networks.

Our Asset Tracking and Services Business. We design, manufacture and sell equipment, licenfivare and provide services to our
customers to enable them to connect wirelessly thigir assets, products and workforce. We offezllt&- and terrestrial-based two-way
wireless connectivity and position location sersite transportation and logistics fleets and o#mgerprise companies to enable our customers
to track the location and monitor the performanictheir assets, communicate with their personndlailect data.

Our Mobile Commerce Business. In fiscal 2011, we launched a new product appibcetrademarked as SWAGG, which is marketed on a
standalone basis directly to consumers. SWASre features include access to merchant logattpunts and gift card balances, purchas:
gift of virtual stored-value gift cards and accesselevant and targeted offers from participatimgrchants.

Our Display Business. We continue to develop display technology for thiérfange of consumer-targeted mobile products. Our
interferometric modulator (IMOD) display technolodpased on a MEMS structure combined with thin filptics and sold under the “mirasol”
brand, is expected to provide performance, poweswmption and cost benefits as compared to cudisplay technologies.
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Wireless Communications Industry

Use of wireless telecommunications devices hagasgd dramatically in the past decade. Accordindfiteless Intelligence estimates a:
October 31, 2011, the number of worldwide mobilar@rctions is expected to reach approximately 8libibiby the end of 2011 and
approximately 7.6 billion by 2015. Growth in thelgalays of wireless communications was drivenhmy heed to make voice calls in a mobile
environment. More recently, increases in demanganearily driven by the desire to have accessaiadervices in a mobile environment. ~
is evidenced by the continued transition from 2&¢md generation) to 3G services and the emergégrt® (fourth generation) services.
According to Wireless Intelligence estimates a®ofober 31, 2011, the number of global 3G connastieached 1.5 billion and is expected to
reach approximately 3.2 billion in 2015. There segeral drivers for the growth in 3G:

« Consumer awareness and desire for data services;
« Mature 3G networks with high data rates;

e Consumer demand for data-centric smartphonecdsyi
« Emergence of new data devices; and

e Growth in emerging regions.

The last couple of years have witnessed a signifitecrease in the consumer’s awareness and wikligg to use mobile data services.
Applications such as email, access to the mobtkriet, downloading of videos and social networkiang driving the demand for 3G services
and more capable devices.

According to the CDMA Development Group and thelialomobile Suppliers Association (GSA) in their Gugr 2011 reports,
approximately 752 wireless networks now support86ign that wireless operators are making networstments to address the growing
demand for wireless data. Wireless operators angreong to make network investments by upgradimejrtnetworks. According to the GSA,
all of the global WCDMA operators have upgradedrthetworks to offer High Speed Packet Access (HEs&vices, and 36% of HSPA
operators have launched HSPA+, an evolution of HSK#h support for higher data rates and increasguhcity, networks are expected to
evolve to keep up with the growing demand for vessl data.

The mobile Internet is helping increase demand@@smartphones as the ability to access data @ified and enhanced when using a
smartphone. In the early days of the smartphomsgtidevices were designed primarily for high-ergirtass users. However, innovation and
competition are helping to make available a broaeéenf devices that provide compelling user exgrares at consumer acceptable price points
which make such devices more accessible by a laayéion of the subscriber base.

The need to stay connected anywhere, anytime jgrigetirive demand for data connectivity on notebanl netbook computers with eitt
embedded 3G connectivity or via an external 3G W8Blem. New device categories, such as tablets-aadders, have also emerged over the
last couple of years. These new devices take adgardf the capabilities of 3G networks to downldayital books, newspapers and magazines
anywhere. Other emerging device categories, suaieahine-to-machine communication (allowing botheldss and wired systems to
communicate with other devices), gaming consolesatiner consumer electronic devices, will helpHartdrive global demand for 3G.

Demand for wireless voice and data services in gimgregions is helping to increase global demam®6. 3G provides an efficient way
for wireless operators to offer both voice and d&evices to address these demands, and sincebfizadband penetration is very low in these
regions, 3G presents a cost effective means ofigirgybroadband capabilities to consumers. AccardinWireless Intelligence, 3G net
additions in emerging regions are expected to s3r@& net additions starting in the second caleqaarter of 2012.

Wireless Technologies

The significant growth in the use of wireless desgievorldwide, such as smartphones and tabletsj@mand for data services and
applications requires constant innovation to furihgrove the user experience, expand capacityeaatle dense deployments of low power
nodes, such as picocells and femtocells. To mesktthequirements, progressive generations of wselemmunications technology standards
have evolved. The wireless standards used for abiinmunications within individual countries is geally determined by the
telecommunication service providers operating oséhcountries and, in some instances, local govemhnegulations. Such determinations are
typically based on economic criteria and the serpiovider’s evaluation of each technology’s apild provide the features and functionality
required for its business plan. More than two desaabo, the European Community developed regufatiouiring the use of the GSM
standard, a TDMA-based, 2G technology. In addits@mveral versions of CDMA technology were adopteddwide as public cellular
standards. The first version, known as cdmaOnree 2i& cellular technology that was first commergidiéployed in the mid-1990s. The other
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subsequent versions of CDMA are referred to ase®Briologies.

Second Generation. Compared to first generation analog systems, 2@atltgchnology provided for significantly enhancefficiency
within a fixed spectrum, resulting in greatly inased voice capacity. 2G technologies also enahleterous enhanced services, but data
services were generally limited to low-speed transion rates. The main 2G digital cellular techig@s in use today are called cdmaOne or
IS-95A/B, a technology largely developed and paeéttty us, and GSM, a form of TDMA. Many GSM operatdeployed 2G mobile packet
data technologies, such as General Packet Radic8€GPRS) and Enhanced Data Rates for Globalufeol (EDGE) in areas serviced by
GSM. According to Wireless Intelligence estimate®fOctober 31, 2011, there were approximatelybdlibn worldwide 2G connections,
approximately 74% of total wireless connections.

Third Generation. As a result of demand for wireless networks thaudianeously carry both high-speed data and voaféd, the
International Telecommunications Union (ITU), anstards setting organization, adopted the 3G staridaown as IMT-2000, which
encompasses six terrestrial operating radio intesfaeach of which incorporates our intellectuapprty. Two are TDMA-based, three are
CDMA-based and the other is OFDMA-based. The tliB&A-based 3G technologies are known commonly thhowt the wireless industry
as:

¢ CDMA2000, including 1X (including revisions Arbugh E) and 1xEV-DO (EV-DO or Evolution Data Opied) (including
revisions A through C, developed by &eneration Partnership Project Two (3GPP2));

*  Wideband CDMA (WCDMA), also known as UniversabMle Telecommunications Systems (UMTS), includifigh Speed Packet
Access (HSPA), part of 8Generation Partnership Project (3GPP) Release &,amud HSPA+, part of 3GPP Release 7, 8, 9, 10 and
beyond; and

« CDMA Time Division Duplex (TDD), of which thergre currently two versions, Time Division Duplex-BB (TD-CDMA) and
Time Division-Synchronous CDMA (TD-SCDMA). Both apart of the specifications developed by 3GPP.

According to Wireless Intelligence estimates a®ofober 31, 2011, there were approximately 1.%oilvorldwide 3G connections,
approximately 25% of total wireless connectionan8mf the advantages of 3G CDMA technology oveté&hnologies include increased
network capacity, improved user experience, corbpiyi with internet protocols, higher capacity fdata and faster access to data (Internet)
and higher data throughput rates. CDMA2000 and W@Ddvke widely deployed today in wireless network®tighout the world. TCBCDMA
has been deployed in China. EV-DO Revision B inGmEMA2000 family was launched in 2010; Release H8PA+ was launched in 2009;
and Release 8 of HSPA+ was launched in 2010. Thieusarevisions of the 3G CDMA specifications haignificantly increased performance
capacity and data speeds. It is expected thatdfuauisions of the 3G CDMA specifications will prdg further enhancements.

CDMAZ2000 (1X, 1xEV-DO, EV-DO Revision A/B) networlese deployed by wireless operators that suppdht mice and a wide range
of high-speed wireless data services. Enhancerbastd upon CDMA2000 Revision E Standard, called\dianced, will further increase
voice capacity of CDMA2000 1X networks. The stamization for these enhancements is complete anlbylapnts are being planned.
Another set of enhancements based upon 1xEV-DOsievC, sometimes called DO Advanced, improve #réopmance of 1XEV-DO
Revision A/B networks. The standardization for fhheshancements is also complete, and deploymentsearg planned. Enhancements based
upon these updated standards and improved implaticem have been and will continue to be deployenlir products and wireless networks
to increase capacity and data rates.

GSM operators around the world, including thosthenEuropean Community and in the United States fracused primarily on the
UMTS Frequency Division Duplex (FDD) radio interéaof the IMT2000 standard, known as WCDMA, for their networkletion. WCDMA
is based on our CDMA technology and incorporatesyntd our patented inventions (as do all of the Gbihd OFDMA radio interfaces of
the IMT-2000 standard). The majority of the worldigeless device and infrastructure manufactunesré than 125 and including all leading
suppliers) have licensed our technology for usé¢/®@DMA products, enabling them to utilize this WCDM#Aode of the 3G technology. To
enable GSM operators to deploy WCDMA in the 900Mipectrum band, the European Union permitted IBODO technologies, which inclu
WCDMA, to be deployed in the lower frequency 900 Miband. This is called UMTS900.

The three ITU 3G CDMA radio interfaces are all lthea the core principles of CDMA technology, and imtellectual property rights
include a valuable patent portfolio essential tplementation of each of the 3G CDMA standards.dditzon, our patent portfolio enables
commercially successful product implementationsésally, we have licensed substantially all of mlevant patents to our CDMA subscriber
and infrastructure equipment licensees.

These 3G CDMA versions (CDMA2000, WCDMA and TD-SCBMequire separate implementations that are rtetéghangeable. While
the fundamental core technologies are derived f@@MA and, in addition to other features and funaéility, are covered by our patents, their
specifications each require unique infrastructumelpcts, network design, air interface protocold amanagement. However, subscriber
roaming amongst systems using different air inter$as made




possible through multimode wireless subscriber cksyi

Fourth Generation. Release 10 of 3GPP’s Long Term Evolution (LTE), phedominant global OFDM technology, and 802.16m, a
upgrade of IEEE 802.16e (WiMAX or Worldwide Intesspbility for Microwave Access), have both beenrappd by the ITU to become wr
are called IMT-Advanced technologies, which usedg¢dhe commonly used criteria for a wireless te@bgy to be called 4G. However, there
is no uniform industry agreement on the 4G defmiti4G is now broadly used to include OFDMA teclogi¢s that are part of the IMT-2000
standard and has also been used in marketing cgngoby certain carriers for the 3G WCDMA evolutiortHSPA+. Since LTE typically will
be overlaid over existing 3G networks, seamlessapterability with 3G (both HSPA and CDMA 2000) heeen standardized by 3GPP and
3GPP2. According to the GSA, 35 commercial LTE reks have been launched as of October 2011. WiMAX deployed ahead of LTE &
targeted unpaired spectrum using a TDD radio iatexrf LTE supports both paired spectrum, using LDP Fand unpaired spectrum, using
LTE TDD, and is able to address many of the ungaspectrum bands targeted by WiMAX. Compared to WKHVILTE is expected to achieve
greater economy of scale through its interopettgbiith 3G. Certain wireless operators have setb@#MAX because of regulatory
considerations specific to their networks and spectholdings. The evolved OFDMA technologies wilpport additional features, wider
bandwidths of up to 100 MHz, and higher data rttas the previous versions. HSPA+ continues towevi parallel to LTE and other
OFDMA technologies, spanning from Release 8 to &#el1 and beyond. HSPA+ Release 8 introducescauuidr operation, which
aggregates multiple channels to offer wider bantheidsupporting 10 MHz of bandwidth in Release 8gdo 40 MHz in Release 11.

For over ten years, we have pursued research aretbgenent of OFDMA-based wireless communicatiomtedogies, and, as a result,
have developed and acquired significant relatesll@dtual property. Accordingly, we believe thatle@f the OFDMA-based 4G standards
incorporates our patented technologies. We hawafrtpanies (including LG, Nokia and Samsung) wityaity-bearing licenses under our
patent portfolio for use in OFDMA products thatmist also implement CDMA-based standards. Multimpadelucts that implement both
OFDMA and CDMA technologies will, in most cases,licensed under our existing CDMA license agreement

Our Engineering Resources. We have significant engineering resources, inclg@dingineers with substantial expertise in CDMA, QFD
and a broad range of other technologies. Usingeteagineering resources, we expect to continueveldp new versions of CDMA, OFDMA
and other technologies, develop alternative teagies for certain specialized applications, pgrtté in the formulation of new voice and data
communication standards and technologies and assisploying digital voice and data communicatioe$works around the world.

Investmentsin New and Existing Products, Services and Technologies. We continue to invest in research and developrmmeatJvariety of
ways in an effort to extend the demand for our potsland services.

We develop, commercialize and actively support 3BViA-based technologies as well as the OFDMased LTE technology, products
network operations to grow our royalty revenues iategrated circuit and software revenues. Frone timtime, we may also make acquisiti
to meet certain technology needs, to obtain devedoy resources or to pursue new business oppoetsinit

We develop on our own, and with our partners, itions that are integrated into our product padftd further expand the opportunity
wireless and enhance the value of our productsandces. These innovations are expected to ewalleustomers to improve the performa
or value of their existing services, offer these/ees more affordably and introduce revenue-gaimeydroadband data services ahead of their
competition.

We make investments to provide our integrated dimistomers with chipsets that combine multipEhteologies for use in consumer
devices, including smartphones, consumer electsaaricl other data devices. In addition to 3G and tetnologies, our chipsets support o
wireless and wired connectivity technologies inahgdWireless Local Area Network (WLAN), Bluetooththernet, Global Positioning System
(GPS), Global Navigation Satellite System (GLONASX)werline Communication and Passive Optical Netimg. Our integrated chipsets
often include multiple technologies, including adgad multimode modems, application processors emghics engines, as well as the tools to
connect these diverse pieces of technology. Weragnto support multiple mobile client software gamments in our chipsets, such as Brew
Mobile Platform, Blackberry 7, QNX, Java, Windowlsdhe, Windows 8, Linux, Android and Google Chrome.

We continue to develop our IMOD display technoldgged on a micro-electro-mechanical-systems (ME3#i&xture combined with thin
film optics and sell such displays under the “nitagrand. Early-stage mirasol displays have beeoiporated in a limited number of
consumer devices. IMOD display technologies mainbkided in the full range of consumer-targeted ileoproducts and are expected to
provide performance, power consumption and cosefitsras compared to current display technolodiedune 2009, we commenced
operations of a dedicated IMOD display fabricatitent in Taiwan, and in fiscal 2011, we began caresion of a new manufacturing facility
in Taiwan that is expected to be operational iodi012.

We make strategic investments that we believe op@nopportunities for our technology, support tesign and
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introduction of new products and services and/@spes unique capabilities or technology. To thergxhat such investments become liquid
and meet our strategic objectives, we intend toemalular periodic sales of our interests in thiegestments that are recognized in investn
income.

Operating Segments

Consolidated revenues from international custorartslicensees as a percentage of total revenues94és, 95% and 94% in fiscal 2011 ,
2010 and 2009 , respectively. During fiscal 2082%, 19%, 17% and 8% of our revenues were fronpowsts and licensees based in China,
South Korea, Taiwan and Japan, respectively, apaced to 29%, 27%, 12% and 9% during fiscal 20&3pectively, and 23%, 35%, 8% and
11% during fiscal 2009 , respectively. Revenuemff@amsung Electronics constituted a significantipormore than 10%) of consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , and a®from HTC also constituted a significant portjorore than 10%) of consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2011 .

Qualcomm CDMA Technologies Segment (QCT). QCT is a leading developer and supplier of integgtatircuits and system software based
on CDMA, OFDMA and other technologies for use inceoand data communications, networking, applicagicmcessing, multimedia functic
and global positioning system products. QCT's iragd circuit products and system software are ot licensed to manufacturers that use
our products in wireless devices, particularly nephones, tablets, laptops, data modules, hana¥iedtess computers and gaming devices,
access points and routers, data cards and infcasteuequipment, and in wired devices, particulriyadband gateway equipment, desktop
computers, televisions and Blu-ray players. The M8tdgrated circuits, which include the Mobile D&adem, Qualcomm Single Chip and
Qualcomm Snapdragon devices, perform the core bagdainodem functionality in wireless devices pravigvoice and data communications,
as well as multimedia applications and global pasibg functions. In addition, our Snapdragon eadbihtegrated circuits provide advanced
application processing capabilities. QCT’s systeffitmgare enables the other device components tofade with the integrated circuit products
and is the foundation software enabling manufacsuieedevelop devices utilizing the functionalitytiin the integrated circuits. In fiscal 2011
QCT shipped approximately 483 million MSM integiht@rcuits for wireless devices worldwide as congglaio approximately 399 million and
317 million in fiscal 2010 and 2009 , respective}CT revenues comprised 59%, 61% and 59% of totadalidated revenues in fiscal 2011 ,
2010 and 2009 , respectively.

QCT utilizes a fabless production business modkiclivmeans that we do not own or operate foundoiethe production of silicon wafers
from which our integrated circuits are made. In&égd circuits are die, cut from silicon wafers tthave been assembled into packages or
modules and have completed the final test manufagtyprocesses. Die cut from silicon wafers areassential components of all of our
integrated circuits and a significant portion of total integrated circuit cost. We employ botmkay and two-stage manufacturing business
models to purchase our integrated circuits. Turrigayhen our foundry suppliers are responsibledfdivering fully assembled and tested
integrated circuits. Under the two-stage manufémguibusiness model, we purchase wafers and die $emiconductor manufacturing
foundries and contract with separate third-partyafacturers for probe, assembly and final testisesv We refer to this two-stage
manufacturing business model as Integrated Fablassifacturing (IFM).

We rely on independent third-party suppliers tdfqren the manufacturing and assembly, and mostefehting, of our integrated circuits
based primarily on our proprietary designs andpgesgrams. Our suppliers are also responsible#®ptocurement of most of the raw mate:
used in the production of our integrated circuitse primary foundry suppliers for our various digjitanalog/mixed-signal, RF and PM
integrated circuits are Freescale Semiconductab&loundries, IBM, Samsung Electronics, Semicotmtuiglanufacturing International,
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing, Tower Semicatoiuand United Microelectronics. The primary semniductor assembly and test
suppliers under our IFM model are Advanced Semiaotad Engineering, Amkor Technology, Siliconwaredétsion Industries and
STATSChipPAC. The majority of our foundry and sulizact assembly and test suppliers are locateaeitia-Pacific region.

QCT offers a broad portfolio of products, includingth wireless device and infrastructure integraieclits, in support of CDMA2000 1X
and 1xEV-DO, as well as the EV-DO Revision A/B erimns of CDMA 2000 technology. Leveraging our etise in CDMA, we also
developed and offer integrated circuits supportirgWWCDMA version of 3G for manufacturers of wirsdedevices. More than 70 device
manufacturers have selected our WCDMA productssbhpport GSM/GPRS, WCDMA, HSDPA (High-Speed DowklRacket Access),
HSUPA (High-Speed Uplink Packet Access) and HSPa-tHeir devices. QCT also sells multimode prodfimtghe LTE standard, which
offer seamless backward compatibility to existiiigt@chnologies.

Our integrated circuit products span a broad rariggoducts, from entry-level products for emergirgions up to very high-end devices.
Our chipsets integrate unique combinations of festusuch as multi-megapixel cameras, videoteleptgireaming multimedia, audio, 3D
graphics, advanced position-location capabilittestgh integrated gpsOne technology and peripleratectivity, to enable a wide range of
devices.

Our gpsOne position location technology is in miwan 700 million gpsOne enabled devices sold waddwCompatible
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with all major air interfaces, our gpsOne technglags the industry’s first fully-integrated wiretebaseband and assisted global positioning
system product and has enabled network operatongé the Federal Communications Commission’s (FE8)1 requirements as well as
offer a wide range of services leveraging locatiata.

The Snapdragon family of processors is a highlggrated, mobile optimized system on a chip incafiog our advanced technologies,
including high performance central processing wBU), graphics processing units and modems, mettia subsystems, including audio,
video and camera capabilities, and highly accuBR& engines. Our CPU cores are custom designesliverchigh levels of compute
performance at ultra-low power, allowing manufaetsrto design slim and powerful devices that lastiér between charges. The Snapdragon
family also incorporates our modem technology fivanced mobile broadband and a featick-multimedia subsystem that delivers audio
high-definition video capabilities.

Our modems are built to work with increasingly cdaxmetworks. They support the latest communicatimmnologies and adapt to
network conditions and user needs in real timenabke delivery of faster, smoother data and vo@®ections. Our 3G/4G modem roadmap
delivers the latest network technologies acrosgipdelproduct tiers and devices. This roadmap ésrésult of our years of research into
emerging network standards and the developmertiip§ets that take advantage of these new standalnile, maintaining backward
compatibility with existing standards.

Through our acquisition in May 2011 of Atheros Coumications, Inc., which has been renamed Qualcorttmeras, Inc. (Atheros), QCT
also offers an expanded portfolio of connectivégtnologies, which complements its mobile busiaesksextends QCT's capability into
networking products. Atheros is a leading providiewireless and wired connectivity products, inéghginetworking products for consumers,
carriers and enterprises, and mobile and fixed eaimg and consumer electronics products. Atherasdlass products consist of integrated
circuits and system software for WLAN, Bluetoothddrequency modulation as well as technologies¢hable location data and services,
including GPS and GLONASS. Atheros’ wireless tedbgies are provided in the form of WLAN, Bluetoathd frequency modulation
integrated products, WLAN and Bluetooth combinagiwaducts and standalone products. Atheros’ wimathectivity products consist of
integrated circuits and software for Ethernet, pdiwe and passive optical networks. Atheros’ wipedtfolio enables delivery of richer, more
comprehensive multi-connectivity product platfortosts networking, computing and consumer electtemiustomer base. Atheros has
employed its WLAN, powerline and Ethernet techni@segn combination to deliver hybrid platforms knoas Hy-Fi products.

The market in which our QCT segment operates eénsely competitive. QCT competes worldwide wittuaber of United States and
international designers and manufacturers of semdigctors. As a result of global expansion by faneagd domestic competitors, technolog
changes and the potential for further industry otidation, we anticipate the market to remain vemynpetitive. We believe that the principal
competitive factors for our products may includefgenance, level of integration, quality, compli@nwith industry standards, price, time-to-
market, system cost, design and engineering cafehilnew product innovation and customer supp/e.also compete in both single- and
dual-mode environments against alternative comnatiioics technologies including but not limited t&KB/GPRS/EDGE, TDMA, TD-
SCDMA and WiMAX.

QCT'’s current competitors include, but are nottedito, major companies such as Broadcom, CSRs€ate Fujitsu, Intel, Lantiq,
Marvell Technology, Mediatek, nVidia, Renesas Hlagics, Spreadtrum Communications, ST-Ericssooi(d yenture between Ericsson
Mobile Platforms and ST-NXP Wireless), Texas Instemts and VIA Telecom, as well as major commumnicetiequipment companies such as
Ericsson, Matsushita, Motorola Mobility and Samsumbo design at least some of their own integratezlits and software for certain
products. QCT also faces competition from someyestdlge companies. Our competitors devote sigmfiaaounts of their financial, technical
and other resources to market competitive commtinitasystems and to develop and adopt competigigal cellular technologies, and thc
efforts may materially and adversely affect QCT.rbtaver, competitors may offer more attractive pduricing or financing terms than we
as a means of gaining access to the market orroasso

Qualcomm Technology Licensing Segment (QTL). QTL grants licenses or otherwise provides rightsge portions of our intellectual
property portfolio, which includes certain pateights essential to and/or useful in the manufacéune sale of certain wireless products,
including, without limitation, products implemengicdmaOne, CDMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (including TBEDMA),
GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA (e.g., LTE, WIMAX) stards and their derivatives. QTL licensing reverarescomprised of license fees
as well as royalties based on worldwide salesdgnbees of products incorporating or using outl@ttial property. License fees are fixed
amounts paid in one or more installments. Roya#tresgenerally based upon a percentage of the sdieléi.e., licensee’s) selling price of
licensed products, net of certain permissible dédns (e.g., certain shipping costs, packing casfsl, etc.). Revenues generated from
royalties are subject to quarterly and annual flatibns. QTL revenues comprised 36%, 33% and 358talf consolidated revenues in fiscal
2011, 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

Separate and apart from licensing manufacturessilo$criber and network equipment, we have entetedertain patent arrangements v
competitors of our QCT segment, such as Broadcaijitsk, Mediatek, NEC, Renesas Electronics, Teragliments and VIA Telecom. The
purpose of these arrangements is to provide our §&gjiment and the counterparties
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certain freedom of operation with respect to eaattyfs integrated circuits business. In every ctisese agreements expressly reserve the right
for QTL to seek royalties from the customers oftsintegrated circuit suppliers with respect to ssgppliers’ customers’ sales of CDMA-,
WCDMA- and OFDMA-based cellular devices into whiach suppliers’ integrated circuits are incorpatate

We face competition in the development of intellattproperty for future generations of digital vié®s communications technology and
services. On a worldwide basis, we currently compeimarily with the GSM/GPRS/EDGE digital wirelessmmunications technologies.
GSM has been utilized extensively in Europe, muchsia other than Japan and South Korea, and cesther countries. To date, GSM has
been more widely adopted than CDMA; however, CDMAhNnologies have been adopted for all 3G wirelgs®ems. In addition, most GSM
operators have deployed GPRS, a packet data texjynas a 2G bridge technology, and a number of @B&tators have deployed EDGE.
However, the majority of GSM operators have alreadgmented their networks with 3G WCDMA and HSPAimited number of wireless
operators have commercially deployed and otherl@gseoperators have started testing OFDMA techiyoleq., LTE, WiMAX), a multi-
carrier transmission technique not based on CDMArelogy, which divides the available spectrum imi@ny carriers, with each carrier being
modulated at a low data rate relative to the coetdbirate for all carriers. According to GSA, in@stober 2011 reports, 185 operators have
committed to deploy LTE networks, an OFDMA-basezht®logy. We have invested in both the acquisiéind the development of OFDMA
technology and intellectual property. We expect thpon the deployment of OFDMA-based networks,piaglucts implementing such
technologies generally will be multimode and wil@implement CDMA-based technologies. The licerggasted under our existing CDMA
license agreements generally cover multimode CDMAI®IA devices, and our licensees are obligated yorpgalties under their CDMA
license agreements for such devices. Further, ffpanies (including LG, Nokia and Samsung) haveltpy@earing licenses under our patent
portfolio for use in OFDMA products (that do notplament any CDMA-based standards).

Qualcomm Wireless & Internet Segment (QWI). QWI revenues comprised 4%, 6% and 6% of total dishested revenues in fiscal 2011 ,
2010 and 2009 , respectively. The four divisiongragated into QWI are:

Qualcomm Internet Services (QIShe QIS division offers a set of software prodwsid content enablement services to support and
accelerate the growth and advancement of wirelassgtoducts and services. QIS offers Brew platfpraducts and services for wireless
applications development, device configuration ligafion distribution and billing and payment. Br@atform services are offered by wirelt
operators worldwide, reaching a base of more tf#nnillion devices through more than 70 devicemend. In addition, QIS has launched its
Plaza Retail offering with AT&T as the distributisgstem for its Brew-based devices. We also offankwireless content discovery and
recommendation products to help wireless operatogpsove usage and adoption of digital content arglises by presenting relevant and
targeted offers to customers across all digitahokss. This recommendations technology is offered standalone product, as well as
integrated as part of our core product offerings. (Brew platform and Plaza), to help wirelessrafmes spur wireless data growth. The QChat
product enables one-to-one (private) and one-toynigioup) push-to-talk calls over 3G networks. Téehnology also allows over-the-air
upgrades of mobile device software, managementafggmembership by subscribers and ad-hoc creafiohat groups. QChat uses Voice
over Internet Protocol (VolP) technologies, therebpding voice information in digital form over Hased data networks in discrete packets
rather than the traditional circuit-switched pratlscof the public switched telephone network.

The QIS division develops and sells business-tarless products and services through a sales arietimay team headquartered in San
Diego, California with offices worldwide. The Ql&lss and marketing strategy is to enter into ageegsnwith companies by providing
comprehensive technology and services that combiiredess Internet, data and voice capabilities.h&fee numerous current and emerging
competitors for each of our products and servicesse relative degree of success may adversely inopaecnargins and sales volumes.
Competing offerings to the Brew and Plaza prodintide device manufacturer application and widgetes, such as Apple’s App Store for
the iPhone platform, operator-focused applicatiod widget retailing and content distribution protbuand direct-to-consumer mobile
storefronts. Additionally, specialized software @malvice providers may offer key components of mglete mobile content retailing product
wireless operators or device manufacturers seekihgild their own branded offerings internally. tOlam content discovery and
recommendations product faces competition from allsmumber of wireless operator-focused productigers and from emerging Weiasec
content recommendations engines. Additionally, starger software providers and device manufactureag attempt to build competing
recommendations products internally. Our QChat pcodompetes with numerous push-to-talk servic@3YPincluding iDEN, which is used
principally in the United States and Latin Ameri@Chat has now replaced iDEN as Sprint’'s PTT serwidth devices being rolled out under
the “Sprint Direct Connect” brand. The PTT servibesiness is nascent outside of the United Statbsseveral competing standards- and non-
standards-based technologies.

Qualcomm Enterprise Services (QEFhe QES division provides equipment, software services to enable companies to wirelessly
connect with their assets and workforce. QES ofatsllite- and terrestrial-based two-way wirelessnectivity and position location services
to transportation and logistics fleets and otheemmise companies that permit customers to traekdcation and monitor performance of their
assets, communicate with their personnel and dali@a. The QES




division markets and sells products through a dale®, partnerships and distributors based irlLthiged States, Europe, Latin America, Asia
and Canada. Through September 2011 , we have shiggeoximately 1,511,000 satellite- and terrekbésed mobile information units.
Wireless transmissions and position tracking foeltte-based systems are provided by using les@dponders on commercially available
geostationary Earth orbit satellites. The terrabtvased systems use wireless digital and anatogsteaal networks for messaging transmission
and the global positioning system constellationpfosition tracking. We generate revenues from s#legtwork products and terminals and
information and location-based service and licéass.

In the United States and Mexico, we manufactureiladleet management equipment, sell related sofivpackages and provide ongoing
messaging and maintenance services. Message tesiens for operations in the United States are dtted and processed at our Network
Management and Data Center in San Diego, Califomith a fully-redundant backup Network Managemamd Data Center located in Las
Vegas, Nevada.

Existing competitors of our QES division offerinigeanatives to our products are aggressively pgi¢hreir products and services and could
continue to do so in the future. Domestically, wed five key competitors to our satellite- anddstnial-based mobile fleet management and
asset tracking products and services. Internatipnaé face several key competitors in Europe arekigb. These competitors are offering new
value-added products and services similar in masg€ to our existing or developing technologieseigence of new competitors, particularly
those offering low-cost terrestrial-based prodacid satellite-based products, may impact margidsrgensify competition in new regions.
Similarly, some original equipment manufacturersro€ks and truck components are beginning to dftglt-in, on-board fleet management
and position location reporting systems that mayaot our margins and intensify competition for &rig and new customers.

Qualcomm Government Technologies (QGQOWe QGOV division provides development, hardwana|gical expertise and services
involving wireless communications technologies wited States government (USG) agencies. Basedeopeiftentage of QGOV revenues to
our total consolidated revenues, the USG is noagntustomer.

Firethorn. In fiscal 2011, Firethorn introduced a new procamplication trademarked as SWAGG, which is marketed standalone basis
directly to consumers. SWAGG's core features ineladcess to merchant loyalty accounts and gift lbal@hces; purchase and gift of virtual
stored-value gift cards delivered via mobile desj@nd access to relevant and targeted offers famicipating merchants. Distribution of
SWAGG has been initially limited to certain smadphs, and content is sourced from merchants, pitimtrough open platforms. In addition
to SWAGG, Firethorn provides a single, secure ifeedtapplication embedded on select wireless desjievhich enables financial institutions
and merchants to deliver branded services to coesuthrough the wireless devices.

Qualcomm Strategic I nitiatives Segment (QSI). QSI makes strategic investments that we believieopgén new opportunities for our
technologies, support the design and introductfamesy products and services for voice and data comications or possess unique capabil
or technology. Many of these strategic investmantsin early-stage companies. QSI also holds vésedpectrum. As part of our strategic
investment activities, we intend to pursue variexi$ strategies at some point in the future.

Other Businesses.

Qualcomm MEMS Technologies (QMWe continue to develop display technology for thiérfange of consumetargeted mobile produc
QMT’s IMOD display technology, based on a MEMS sttie combined with thin film optics and sold untiez “mirasol” brand, is expected
to provide performance, power consumption and loesefits as compared to current display technatogéth the inclusion of color displays
in all types of mobile devices, including loend models, the cost of the display has becomeemmore significant factor in the overall cos
the device. An IMOD display should cost less to ofanture than a comparable liquid crystal displagduse it requires fewer components and
processing steps, thus supporting advanced muliznoagbabilities on all tiers of mobile devices.

Research and Development

The communications industry is characterized bydrggrhnological change, requiring a continuousreffo enhance existing products and
develop new products and technologies. Our researdidevelopment team has a demonstrated trackdretanovation in voice and data
communication technologies. Our research and dpusot expenditures in fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 26€8ed approximately $3.0 billion,
$2.5 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively, andeasesult, we continue to expand our intellectwapprty portfolio. Research and development
expenditures were primarily related to the develeptof integrated circuit products, next genera@@MA and OFDMA technologies and
other initiatives to support the acceleration ofatted wireless products and services, includingiaost devices, the integration of wireless
with consumer electronics and computing, the caysmece of multiband, multimode, multinetwork produahd technologies, third-party
operating systems and services platforms. The tdobies supporting these initiatives may includeNcA2000 1X, 1xEV-DO, EV-DO
Revision A, EV-DO Revision B, 1x Advanced, WCDMASBPA, HSUPA, HSPA+, TD-SCDMA and LTE. Research dadelopment
expenditures were also incurred related to theldpweent of mirasol display products using
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MEMS technology, Brew products and other techn@sgi

We have research and development centers in vadoasons throughout the world that support owbgl development activities and
ongoing efforts to advance CDMA, OFDMA and a broadge of other technologies. We continue to usesobstantial engineering resources
and expertise to develop new technologies, appicaiand services and make them available to lee® help grow the communications
industry and generate new or expanded licensingroppities. In addition to internally sponsoredaasxh and development, we perform
contract research and development for various gwwent agencies and commercial contractors.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing activities of our operatingresgs are discussed under Operating Segments. @#rketing activities include public
relations, advertising, web-marketing, participatio technical conferences and trade shows, dereapof business cases and white papers,
competitive analyses, industry intelligence andeotharketing programs, such as marketing developfonads with our customers. Our
Corporate Marketing department provides companyrimétion on our internet site and through otherimeggarding our products, strategies
and technology to industry analysts and for pukiices.

Competition

Competition to our operating segments is discusseldr Operating Segments. Competition in the conications industry throughout the
world continues to increase at a rapid pace asuroers, businesses and governments realize thetiabtafwireless communications products
and services. We have facilitated competition enwhreless communications industry by licensing endbling a large number of
manufacturers. Although we have attained a sigmifigosition in the industry, many of our currendl gotential competitors may have
advantages over us, which include, among otherivatmn by our customers in certain circumstartoefind alternate suppliers or choose
alternate technologies; and government supporttefrdechnologies (e.g., GSM) or our competitansaddition, our competitors may have
established more extensive relationships with iedaus distribution and original equipment manufasteompanies in developing territories
(e.g., China). These relationships may affect custs’ decisions to purchase products or licendant@ogy from us. Accordingly, new
competitors or alliances among competitors couldrge and rapidly acquire significant market shareur detriment.

We may face competition throughout the world widwrtechnologies and services introduced in theréuis additional competitors enter
the business for products based on 3G standard3M®@Fbased technologies or other technologies. Aldtowe intend to continue to develop
improvements to existing technologies , as wep@sntial new technologies, there may be a comubmpetitive threat from companies
introducing alternative versions of technologi¢ss klso possible that the price we charge forpsaducts and services may continue to dec
as competition continues to intensify.

Patents, Trademarks and Trade Secrets

We rely on a combination of patents, copyrightsiér secrets, trademarks and proprietary informationaintain and enhance our
competitive position. We have an extensive poufofi United States and foreign patents, and weioatto pursue patent applications around
the world. Our patents have broad coverage in ncanytries, including China, Japan, South Koreapgey Brazil, India, Taiwan and
elsewhere. A substantial portion of our patentsatént applications relate to digital wireless cmmications technologies, including patents
that are essential or may be relevant to CDMA20WGDMA (UMTS), TD-SCDMA, TD-CDMA and OFDMA products.

Standards bodies have been informed that we hadohisathat might be essential for all 3G stand#rdsare based on CDMA. We have
committed to such standards bodies that we wiltraf license our essential patents for these Clddards on a fair and reasonable basis
free from unfair discrimination. We have also imfed standards bodies that we hold patents thattrbggbssential for certain standards that
are based on OFDMA technology (e.g., 802.16e, @R.4nd LTE (including FDD and TDD versions)) anddaommitted to offer to license
our essential patents for these OFDMA standards fair and reasonable basis free from unfair disicration.

Since our founding in 1985, we have focused heailyechnology development and innovation. Theketefhave resulted in a leading
intellectual property portfolio related to, amoner things, wireless technology. Because all comraky deployed forms of CDMA and the
derivatives require the use of our patents, owermgtortfolio is the most widely and extensivebelsed portfolio in the industry with over 200
licensees. Over the years a number of companies ¢teallenged our patent position but at this tinestnif not all, companies in the industry
recognize that any company seeking to develop, faature and/or sell products that use CDMA techgigle will require a license or other
rights to use our patents.

As part of our strategy to generate licensing reesrthat continue to support our research and dewent investments and support
worldwide adoption of our CDMA technology, we prdgirights to design, manufacture and sell produtitizing certain portions of our
intellectual property to other companies, includingse companies listed on our Internet site
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(www.qualcomm.com).

In all cases, we have licensed or otherwise praliights to use our patented technologies to istetecompanies on terms that are fair,
reasonable and free from unfair discrimination.iklnsome other companies in our industry that talck certain key technologies, we offer
interested companies essentially our entire patertfolio for use in cellular subscriber deviceslaell site infrastructure equipment. Our
strategy to make our patented technologies braadiylable has been a catalyst for industry growéping to enable a wide range of
companies offering a broad array of wireless préglaod features while driving down average and émd-selling prices for 3G handsets and
other wireless devices. By licensing or otherwisgvfgling rights to a wide range of equipment mantifeers, encouraging innovative
applications, supporting equipment manufactureth itegrated chipset and software products, andgiog on improving the efficiency of t
airlink for wireless operators, we have helped IBMA evolve, grow and reduce device pricing all daster pace than the second generation
technologies that preceded it (e.g., GSM).

Under our subscriber, infrastructure and test aqeift license agreements, licensees are genergliyred to pay us a fixed license fee as
well as ongoing royalties based on a percentagieeofvholesale (i.e., licenseg’selling price, net of certain permissible detud (e.g., certai
shipping costs, packing costs, VAT, etc.), of elladnsed product and/or a fixed per unit amountehse fees are paid in one or more
installments, while royalties generally are paydid@sed on sales throughout the life of the licemsgents. Our licensing terms are reasonable
and fair to the companies that benefit from ouellattual property and provide significant inceeifor others to invest in CDMA applicatio
as evidenced by the significant growth in the CDpktion of the wireless industry and the numbe€BMA participants. Our license
agreements generally provide us rights to useioesfaour licensees’ technology and intellectuaperty rights to manufacture and sell certain
components (e.g., ApplicatidBpecific Integrated Circuits) and related softwatéyscriber units and/or infrastructure equipmeninost cases
our use of our licensees’ technology and intellalcpwoperty does not require us to pay royaltiesedaon the sale of our products. However,
under some of the licenses, if we incorporate gerhthe licensed technology or intellectual prdapénto certain products, we are obligated to
pay royalties on the sale of such products.

Corporate Responsibility

At Qualcomm, we realize we have a significant tol@lay as we strive to better both our local aludbgl communities through ethical
business practices, socially empowering technofgplications, educational and environmental progrand employee diversity and
volunteerism.

* Global Social ResponsibilityWe are committed to growing strategic relationshijts a wide range of local organizations and
programs that develop and strengthen communitieklwime. We believe that involvement with chari@lorganizations is an
important way for our employees to develop as @sifmals and as citizens.

» Diversity.We foster an inclusive work environment globallylaare committed to advancing opportunities foealiployees and
encouraging diversity through the workforce.

« Environmental Health and SafeWe take a proactive approach in our injury prex@ntirograms and techniques that contribute to a
better environment for our local communities aslaslour employees.

« Corporate SustainabilithWe are committed to energy efficiency, renewabkergy water conservation and sustainable bestipeact
to reduce our carbon footprint.

*  Wireless ReachWe believe access to advanced wireless voice aadsdavices improves people’s lives. Our WirelesadR initiative
supports programs and solutions that bring the fiitsra# connectivity to underserved communitiestgllly. By working with partners
Wireless Reach projects create new ways for paoptemmunicate, learn, access health care, susgienvironment and reach glo
markets.

Employees

At September 25, 2011 , we employed approximat&/2@ full-time, part-time and temporary employdgsring fiscal 2011 , the number
of employees increased by approximately 3,700 pilyndue to a 2,000 increase resulting from variaggquisitions and a 1,700 increase in
engineering resources as a result of internal drowt

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.qualcomm.com. Therenake available, free of charge, our annual repofarm 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on FornkK8&nd any amendments to those reports, as so@assrably practicable after we electronically ilkeh
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities aixchange Commission (SEC). We also make avaitableur Internet site public financial
information for which a report is not required @ filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our SEC répand other financial information can be
accessed through the investor relations secti@uofnternet site. The information found on ouehniet site is not part of this or any other
report we file with or furnish to the
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SEC.

The public may read and copy any materials thafilerevith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference iRdocated at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the Public ReferencerRbg calling the SEC at (202) 551-
8090. The SEC also maintains electronic versioramuofeports on its website at www.sec.gov.

Executive Officers
Our executive officers (and their ages at Septer@bep011 ) are as follows:

Paul E. Jacobs, age 48, has served as Chairmha Bbard of Directors since March 2009, as a diresince June 2005 and as Chief
Executive Officer since July 2005. He served asu@r@resident of the Qualcomm Wireless & InternaM{fdGroup from July 2001 to
June 2005. In addition, he served as Executive Fiesident from February 2000 to June 2005. Doliabas been a director of A123
Systems, Inc., a lithium-ion battery developer erahufacturer, since November 2002. Dr. Jacobs leoBIS. degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science, an M.S. degree in ElectEingineering and a Ph.D. degree in Electrical Ergging and Computer Science from the
University of California, Berkeley. Dr. Paul Jacdbshe son of Dr. Irwin Mark Jacobs, a directotled Company.

Steven R. Altman, age 50, has served as Presithert 3uly 2005. He served as Executive Vice Presiflem November 1997 to
June 2005 and as President of Qualcomm Technolagnsing (QTL) from September 1995 to April 200KeEtive November 14, 2011, Mr.
Altman will become Vice Chairman. Mr. Altman hold$.S. degree in Political Science and Administrafrom Northern Arizona University
and a J.D. from the University of San Diego.

Derek K. Aberle, age 41, has served as Executice President and President of QTL since Septent8. Zrom October 2006 to
September 2008, he served as Senior Vice PresadenGeneral Manager of QTL. Mr. Aberle joined Qoaten in December 2000 and prior
October 2006 held positions ranging from Legal Galito Vice President and General Manager of QTtediive November 14, 2011, Mr.
Aberle will become Group President. Mr. Aberle fo&dB.A. degree in Business Economics from the &fsity of California, Santa Barbara
and a J.D. from the University of San Diego.

Andrew M. Gilbert, age 48, has served as Execlfice President, European Innovation Developme@udlcomm since January 2011.
He served as Executive Vice President and Presadé@tialcomm Europe from September 2010 to Jan2@tyt, Executive Vice President a
President of Qualcomm Internet Services (QIS) andl€pmm Europe from May 2009 to September 2010¢ ke Vice President and
President of QIS, MediaFLO Technologies (MFT) ancal@omm Europe from January 2008 to May 2009, asog¥/ice President and
President of Qualcomm Europe from November 20QBtaiary 2008 and as President of Qualcomm Europe February 2006 to
November 2006. Mr. Gilbert joined Qualcomm in Jaguz006 as Vice President of Qualcomm Europe. Rogoining Qualcomm, he servi
as Vice President and General Manager of Flariahfielogies’ European, Middle Eastern and Africagiaes from May 2002 to
January 2006.

Matthew S. Grob, age 45, has served as Executiee Riesident and Chief Technology Officer sincg 20l11. He served as Senior Vice
President, Engineering, from July 2006 to July 20dd. Grob joined Qualcomm in August 1991 as aniregr and throughout his tenure at
Qualcomm held several other technical and leaderstés. Mr. Grob holds a B.S. degree in Electriiagineering from Bradley University,
Peoria, lllinois and an M.S. degree in Electricaglbeering from Stanford University.

Margaret “Peggy” L. Johnson, age 49, has servdtkasutive Vice President and President of GlobalkdiaDevelopment since January
2011. She served as Executive Vice President ohthericas and India from January 2008 to Januafyl 20hd as Executive Vice President
since December 2006. She served as President offRTDecember 2005 to January 2008 and as Prexdfl€iS from July 2001 to January
2008. She served as Senior Vice President and @dvlanager of QIS from September 2000 to July 2044..Johnson holds a B.S. degree in
Electrical Engineering from San Diego State Uniitgrs

William E. Keitel, age 58, has served as Execudliee President since December 2003 and as ChiafEial Officer since February 2002.
He previously served as Senior Vice President asrp@ate Controller from May 1999 to February 2002. Keitel holds a B.A. degree in
Business Administration from the University of Wisisin and an M.B.A. from Arizona State University.

James P. Lederer, age 50, has served as Execlutied’xesident and General Manager of Qualcomm CDOMeéhnologies (QCT) since
May 2009. He served as Executive Vice Presidenil @dsiness Planning and Finance from May 2008 ty 209, as Senior Vice President,
QCT Finance from April 2005 to April 2008, as Vieeesident, Finance from July 2001 to April 2005 asdSenior Director, Finance from
October 2000 to July 2001. Mr. Lederer joined Qaalm in 1997 as Senior Manager, Corporate FinanceL®&terer holds a B.S. degree in
Business Administration (Finance/MIS) and an M.Bitdm the State University of New York at Buffalo.

Steven M. Mollenkopf, age 42, has served as Exeeltice President and Group President since Sepeti0. He
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served as Executive Vice President and PresideQaf from August 2008 to September 2010, as ExeeMice President, QCT Product
Management from May 2008 to July 2008, as SenioeWresident, Engineering and Product Managememt July 2006 to May 2008 and as
Vice President, Engineering from April 2002 to JAR06. Mr. Mollenkopf joined Qualcomm in 1994 asemgineer and throughout his tenure
at Qualcomm held several other technical and lshileroles. Effective November 14, 2011, Mr. Mokepf will become President and Chief
Operating Officer. Mr. Mollenkopf holds a B.S. degrin Electrical Engineering from Virginia Tech aamlM.S. degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Michigan.

Donald J. Rosenberg, age 60, has served as Exedlitie President, General Counsel and Corporatetey since October 2007. He
served as Senior Vice President, General CounseCarmporate Secretary for Apple Computer, Inc. fidatember 2006 to October 2007.
From May 1975 to November 2006, Mr. Rosenberg halderous positions at IBM Corporation, includingii®e Vice President and General
Counsel. Mr. Rosenberg holds a B.S. degree in Madlies from the State University of New York ati8tdBrook and a J.D. from St. John’s
University School of Law.

Daniel L. Sullivan, age 60, has served as Execitigce President of Human Resources since August.286 previously served as Senior
Vice President of Human Resources from February 183uly 2001. Dr. Sullivan holds a B.S. degre€Eammunication from lllinois State
University, an M.A. degree in Communication from $¥¥irginia University and a Ph.D. in Communicativom the University of Nebraska.

Jing Wang, age 49, has served as Executive Vicgder and President of Global Business Operasoree January 2011. He served as
Executive Vice President and President of AsiafRadiliddle East and Africa from January 2008 taudary 2011. Mr. Wang previously
served as Chairman, Qualcomm Asia Pacific from At@006 to January 2008 and as Chairman, Qualcomeat€ China from March 2003
to August 2006. He joined Qualcomm as Senior Viesident in February 2001. Mr. Wang holds a B.Ayrde in Literature from Anhui
University, an LL.M from the People’s University 6hina, Department of Law, and an LL.M from the Wity of Virginia School of Law.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider each of the following factagsagell as the other information in this Annual Repo evaluating our business and our
prospects. The risks and uncertainties describkaviere not the only ones we face. Additional riaksl uncertainties not presently known to
us or that we currently consider immaterial may afspair our business operations. If any of théofeing risks actually occur, our business
and financial results could be harmed. In that ctisetrading price of our common stock could dexliYou should also refer to the other
information set forth in this Annual Report, incing our financial statements and the related notes.

Risks Related to Our Businesses

Our revenues are dependent on the commercial deployment of technologies based on CDMA and OFDMA, among others, and upgrades of
2G, 3G and 3G/4G multimode wirel ess communications egquipment, products and services based on these technologies.

We develop, patent and commercialize technologypaiaducts based on CDMA and OFDMA, among others.réeenues are dependent
upon the commercial deployment of these technaotogiel products and upgrades of 2G, 3G and 3G/4@nmadle wireless communications
equipment, products and services based on thelsediegies. Our business may be harmed, and oustimets in these technologies may not
provide us an adequate return if:

* wireless operators delay moving 2G customeB3alevices;
« wireless operators delay 3G and/or 3G/4G multiendeployments, expansions or upgrades;

* government regulators delay the reallocatioB@fspectrum to allow wireless operators to upgtads, which will restrict the
expansion of 3G wireless connectivity, primarilytgide of major population areas;

e wireless operators are unable to drive improvesia 3G network performance and/or capacity;
 LTE, an OFDMA-based wireless standard, is natelyi deployed or commercial deployment is delayed,;
« wireless operators and other industries usiegdthtechnologies deploy other technologies.

Our business is dependent on our ability to in@eas share of components sold and to continueite the adoption of our products and
services into 3G, 3G/4G multimode and 4G wirelesgaks and networks. We are also dependent orutleess of our customers, licensees
CDMA- and OFDMA-based wireless operators and oith@ustries using our technologies, as well asitheng of their deployment of new
services, and they may incur lower gross margingroducts or services based on these technoldwa@san products using alternative
technologies as a result of greater competitiootioer factors. If commercial deployment of thesit®logies, upgrade of 2G subscribers tc
devices and upgrades to 3G, 3G/4G multimode or #€legs communications equipment, products andcebased on these technologie:
not continue or
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are delayed, our revenues could be negatively itedaand our business could suffer.

Our licensing revenues can be impacted by the deployment of other technologies in place of technologies based on CDMA, OFDMA and
their derivatives or by the need to extend certain existing license agreementsto cover additional later patents.

Although we own a very strong portfolio of issuedigpending patents related to GSM, GPRS, EDGE, OFORDMA, WLAN and
Multiple Input, Multiple Output (MIMO) technologiesur patent portfolio licensing program in theseaa is less established and might not be
as successful in generating licensing income a£@MA licensing program. Many wireless operators iavestigating or have selected LTE
(or to a lesser extent WiMAX) as next-generatiathtelogies for deployment in existing or future apem bands as complementary to their
existing CDMA-based networks. Although we belielrattour patented technology is essential and usefaiplementation of the LTE and
WIMAX industry standards and have granted royalyading licenses to 13 companies (including LG, dakid Samsung) to make and sell
products implementing those standards but not imetging 3G standards, the royalty rates for suokywsts are generally lower than our
royalty rates for 3G products (whether or not s8éhproducts also incorporate a LTE or WiMAX modepgration), and therefore, we might
not achieve the same licensing revenues on suchdt MEiMAX products as on CDMA-based or multimode @B/OFDMA-based products.

The licenses granted to and from us under a nuptfbair license agreements include only patentsateeither filed or issued prior to a
certain date and, in a small number of agreemeuyslties are payable on those patents for a gpddifne period. As a result, there are
agreements with some licensees where later padentsot licensed by or to us under our licenseeageats. In order to license any such later
patents, we will need to extend or modify our lieemgreements or enter into new license agreemthtsuch licensees. We might not be ¢
to modify such license agreements in the futuréecemse any such later patents or extend suchgjdte{ncorporate later patents without
affecting the material terms and conditions of limense agreements with such licensees, and sudificaions may impact our revenues.

Global economic conditions that impact the communications industry could negatively affect the demand for our products and our customers
' products, which may negatively affect our revenues.

Continued volatility in capital markets or a fututecline in global economic conditions, particufarl geographic regions with high
customer concentrations, could have adverse, veidging effects on demand for our products andhemtroducts of our customers,
particularly wireless communications equipment nfacturers or others in the wireless industry whg their products, such as wireless
operators. Any prolonged financial or economicisnmay result in a downturn in demand for our piddwr technology; the insolvency of key
suppliers resulting in product delays; delays poréng and/or payments from our licensees andistamers; failures by counterparties; and
negative effects on wireless device inventoriesddition, our direct and indirect customers’ abpito purchase or pay for our products and
services, obtain financing and upgrade wirelesworiis could be adversely affected by economic d@n, leading to cancellation or delay
orders for our products.

Our industry is subject to competition in an environment of rapid technological change that could result in decreased demand for our
products and the products of our customers and licensees, declining average selling prices for our licensees’ products and our products
and/or new specifications or requirements placed upon our products, each of which could negatively affect our revenues and operating
results.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological af@mand we must make substantial investments inpneducts, services and technologies
to compete successfully. Technological innovatigeserally require a substantial investment befoeg ire commercially viable. We intend
continue to make substantial investments in dewetppew products and technologies, and it is péessitat our development efforts will not
successful and that our new technologies will estilt in meaningful revenues. Our products, sesvat®l technologies face significant
competition, and the revenues generated or thagimi their deployment, which may be dependenthereictions of others, may not meet our
expectations. Competition in the communicationsigtry is affected by various factors that incluagi®ong others: evolving industry standards;
evolving methods of transmission for voice and da@mmunications; networking; value-added featunes drive replacement rates and selling
prices; turnkey, integrated product offerings tihabrporate hardware, software, user interfaceappiications; scalability and the ability of the
system technology to meet customers’ immediatefatotle network requirements.

Our future success will depend on, among otheofacbur ability to:

« increase demand for our integrated circuit popsland drive their adoption across a broad spmatrfudevices, such as smartphones
and tablets, and into new areas of wireless convitycincluding gaming, wireless charging and ttemnected home;

e strengthen our integrated circuit product roag e, and develop channel relationships in, enmgrgieographic regions requiring
turnkey product offerings for low-end smartphones;

« be a preferred partner for operating systenfguais, such as Android and Windows Phone, and sy
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commercialize Windows 8 on ARM processor-equippedaks;

» focus our service businesses on key opportsnisiech as eHealth and machine-to-machine techiesl¢gllowing both wireless and
wired systems to communicate with other devicaspreg others, that create standalone value andrdrilsote to the success of our
other businesses;

« be aleader in the 4G technology evolution,udalg expansion of our LTE (and WiMAX) single mdémnsing program and timely
introduction of 4G turnkey, integrated products ardvices; and

* succeed in significant foreign regions, suciChsa, India and Europe.

Companies that promote WWAN (Wireless Wide Areawek) technologies that are neither CDMA- nor OFDMNdased (e.g., GSM) and
companies that design integrated circuits based@MA, OFDMA or their derivatives are generally coetipors or potential competitors.
Examples (some of whom are strategic partners i&f inuother areas) include Broadcom, CSR plc, EaesFuijitsu, Intel, Lantiq, Marvell
Technology, Mediatek, nVidia, Renesas Electroriggeadtrum Communications, ST-Ericsson (a jointuenbetween Ericsson Mobile
Platforms and ST-NXP Wireless), Texas Instruments\lA Telecom. Many of these current and potent@hpetitors have advantages over
us that include, among others: motivation by owtamers in certain circumstances to find altersampliers; foreign government support of
other technologies; and more extensive relatiorsswith indigenous distribution and original equipthenanufacturer companies in developing
territories (e.g., China).

Certain of our and our suppliers’ software may aonbr may be derived from “open source” software] we have seen, and believe we
will continue to see, an increase in customersestijg that we develop products, including softwassociated with our chipsets, that will
incorporate open source software elements and @p@ran open source environment, which, undeatedpen source licenses, may offer
accessibility to a portion of a product’s sourcdeand may expose related intellectual propergdierse licensing conditions. Licensing of
such software may impose certain obligations oifi we were to distribute derivative works of theeopsource software. For example, these
obligations may require us to make source codéhiderivative works available to our customera manner that allows them to make such
source code available to their customers, or lieeush derivative works under a particular typgoeinse that is different than what we
customarily use to license our software. Develomipgn source products, while adequately protedtiadntellectual property rights upon
which our licensing business depends, may provddnsome and time-consuming under certain circuroegithereby placing us at a
competitive disadvantage for new product desighso four use and our customers’ use of open s@afteare may subject our products and
our customers’ products to governmental scrutiny @elays in product certification, which could cagsistomers to view our products as less
desirable than our competitors’ products. Whilebgteve we have taken appropriate steps and emplagequate controls to protect our
intellectual property rights, our use of open sewoftware presents risks that could have an agheffsct on these rights and on our business.

Competition may reduce average selling prices torahipset products and the products of our custsmed licensees. Reductions in the
average selling prices of our licensepsiducts, unless offset by an increase in volumeserally result in reduced total royalties paydoblas.
We anticipate that additional competitors will oduce products as a result of growth opportunitiegireless communications, the trend
toward global expansion by foreign and domestic petitors, technological and public policy changed eelatively low barriers to entry in
selected segments of the industry.

We derive a significant portion of our consolidated revenues from a small number of customers and licensees. If revenues derived from these
customers or licensees decrease, our operating results could be negatively affected.

Our QCT segment derives a significant portion eereies from a small number of customers. The Ibaspone of our QCT segment’s
significant customers or the delay, even if onipperary, or cancellation of significant orders framy of these customers would reduce our
revenues in the period of the delay or cancellagioth harm our ability to achieve or sustain expkoggerating results. Accordingly, unless and
until our QCT segment diversifies and expandstittamer base, our future success will largely ddpgon the timing and size of any future
purchase orders from these customers.

Although we have more than 200 licensees, our @Qneent derives a significant portion of licensirgenues from a limited number of
licensees. Our future success depends upon thy albibur licensees to develop, introduce andwaelhigh-volume products that achieve and
sustain customer acceptance. We have little oontral over the sales efforts of our licensees, @andicensees might not be successful.
Reductions in the average selling price of wirelbmgices sold by our major licensees, without &idaht increase in the volumes of such
devices sold, could have an adverse effect onexamnues.

Efforts by some communications equipment manufacturers or their customersto avoid paying fair and reasonable royalties for the use of
our intellectual property may create uncertainty about our future business prospects, may require the investment of substantial management
time and financial resources, and may result in legal decisions and/or actions by foreign governments, Standards Development
Organizations (SDOs) or other industry groups that harm our business.

A small number of companies, in the past, havégiteitl various strategies in an attempt to renegptiaitigate and/or

15




eliminate their need to pay royalties to us fordke of our intellectual property in order to négay affect our business model and that of our
other licensees. These strategies have includditddg@tion, often alleging infringement of pateitislid by such companies, patent misuse, p
exhaustion and patent and license unenforcealmlitgome form of unfair competition, (ii) takinggtions contrary to our understanding of
their contracts with us, (iii) appeals to governtaéauthorities, (iv) collective action, includingprking with wireless operators, standards
bodies, other like-minded companies and other argtions, on both formal and informal bases, topadutellectual property policies and
practices that could have the effect of limitinturas on intellectual property innovations, andlfibying with governmental regulators and
elected officials for the purpose of seeking theasition of some form of compulsory licensing amdtoweaken a patent holder’s ability to
enforce its rights or obtain a fair return for suights.

Some companies or entities have proposed signtfid@anges to existing intellectual property pokcier implementation by SDOs and
other industry organizations, some of which wowduire a maximum aggregate intellectual propenpalty rate for the use of all essential
patents owned by all of the member companies tpipéied to the selling price of any product implertireg the relevant standard. They have
further proposed that such maximum aggregate npyaie be apportioned to each member company \s#&hrgial patents based upon the
number of essential patents held by such compamumber of these strategies are purportedly baseéaterpretations of the policies of
certain SDOs concerning the licensing of paterdas dhe or may be essential to industry standard®analleged failure to abide by these
policies. Others have made proposals that couldregvlimit damage awards and other remedies bytedor patent infringement. There is a
risk that relevant courts or governmental agenaiéisnterpret some or all of those proposals imanner adverse to our interests. If such
proposals and strategies continue and are suctes#fie future, our business model would be harne@tier by artificially limiting our return
on investment with respect to new technologie®arifig us to work outside of the SDOs or such othéustry groups to promote our new
technologies, and our results of operations coalddyatively impacted. As well, the legal and ottests associated with defending our
position have been and continue to be significAtd.assume that such challenges regardless ofrtieeits will continue into the foreseeable
future and may require the investment of substhmtémagement time and financial resources to exglad defend our position.

Other companies or entities have commenced, andagey commence, actions seeking to establismifaidity of one or more of our
patents. In the event that one or more of our pat@me challenged, a court may invalidate the pégear determine that the patent(s) is not
enforceable, which could harm our competitive positlf our key patents are invalidated, or if #e@pe of the claims in any of these patents is
limited by court decision, we could be preventamhfilicensing the invalidated or limited portionsafch patents. Such adverse decisions,
depending upon their extent, could negatively inhjoac revenues. Even if such a patent challengetisuccessful, it could be expensive and
time consuming to address, divert management atefrom our business and harm our reputation.

The enforcement and protection of our intellectual property rights may be expensive, could fail to prevent misappropriation or unauthorized
use of our proprietary intellectual property rights or could result in the loss of our ability to enforce one or more patents.

We rely primarily on patent, copyright, trademariddrade secret laws, as well as nondisclosureanfidentiality agreements and other
methods, to protect our proprietary informatiorchtgologies and processes, including our patenfgiort Policing unauthorized use of our
products, technologies and proprietary informatgdifficult and time consuming. We cannot be derthat the steps we have taken, or may
take in the future, will prevent the misappropoatior unauthorized use of our proprietary informatind technologies, particularly in foreign
countries where the laws may not protect our petary intellectual property rights as fully or aadily as United States laws. We cannot be
certain that the laws and policies of any couritrgluding the United States, or the practices of @inthe standards bodies, foreign or domestic,
with respect to intellectual property enforcementicensing or the adoption of standards, will hetchanged in a way detrimental to our
licensing program or to the sale or use of our potglor technology. We may have difficulty in priteg or enforcing our intellectual property
rights and/or contracts in a particular foreigrigdiction, including: challenges to our licensinggtices under such jurisdictions’ competition
laws; adoption of mandatory licensing provisionsidmgign jurisdictions (either with controlled/rdgted royalties or royalty free); failure of
foreign courts to recognize and enforce judgmehtootract breach and damages issued by U.S. ¢caumdschallenges pending before foreign
competition agencies to the pricing and integratibadditional features and functionality into auireless chipset products.

A substantial portion of our patents and patentiegiions relate to our wireless communicationditetogy and much of the remainder of
our patents and patent applications relate to therdechnologies and products. We may need gatiiin the United States or elsewhere ir
world to enforce our intellectual property righpsotect our trade secrets or determine the valalily scope of proprietary rights of others. As a
result of any such litigation, we could lose ouiligbto enforce one or more patents or incur sabstl unexpected operating costs. Any action
we take to enforce our intellectual property rigtdsild be costly and could absorb significant manaent time and attention, which, in turn,
could negatively impact our operating results.

Claims by other companies that we infringe their intellectual property could adversely affect our business.
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From time to time, companies have asserted, andagay assert, patent, copyright and other intelidgroperty rights against our
products or products using our technologies orratehnologies used in our industry. These claimshesulted and may again result in our
involvement in litigation. We may not prevail incdulitigation given the complex technical issued arherent uncertainties in intellectual
property litigation. If any of our products wereufal to infringe on another company’s intellectuaerty rights, we could be subject to an
injunction or required to redesign our productsjoclltould be costly, or to license such rights angay damages or other compensation to
such other company. If we were unable to redesigrpmducts, license such intellectual propertitsgused in our products or otherwise
distribute our products through a licensed supplier could be prohibited from making and sellingtsproducts. In any potential dispute
involving other companies’ patents or other inteilal property, our chipset foundries, semiconduassembly and test providers and
customers could also become the targets of libgatiVe are contingently liable under certain pradades, services, license and other
agreements to indemnify certain customers agaeriio types of liability and/or damages arisingnirqualifying claims of patent
infringement by products or services sold or predithy us. Reimbursements under indemnificatiomgements could have an adverse effect
on our results of operations. Furthermore, any ditigation could severely disrupt the supply of guoducts and the businesses of our chipset
customers and their wireless operator customerighwh turn could hurt our relationships with themd could result in a decline in our chipset
sales and/or reductions in our licensees’ salesicg a corresponding decline in our chipset anlifensing revenues. Any claims, regardless
of their merit, could be time consuming to addressuylt in costly litigation, divert the efforts ofir technical and management personnel or
cause product release or shipment delays, any ishvdould have an adverse effect upon our operaésglts.

We expect that we may continue to be involvedtigdtion and may have to appear in front of adntiats/e bodies (such as the U.S.
International Trade Commission) to defend agaiagtqt assertions against our products by compasoese of whom are attempting to gain
competitive advantage or leverage in licensing tiajons. We may not be successful in such procggsdiand if we are not, the range of
possible outcomes includes everything from roypityment to an injunction on the sale of certainwfchipsets (and on the sale of our
customers’ devices using our chipsets). Any impasiof royalty payments might make purchases ofahipsets less economical for our
customers. A negative outcome in any such procgezbnld severely disrupt the business of our chipgstomers and their wireless operator
customers, which in turn could harm our relatiopshwith them and could result in a decline in cwars of worldwide chipset sales and/or a
reduction in our licensees’ sales to wireless apesacausing corresponding declines in our chigedfor licensing revenues.

A number of other companies have claimed to owargatessential to various CDMA standards, GSM statsdand OFDMA standards or
implementations of systems based on such standawis.or other product manufacturers are requicedbtain additional licenses and/or pay
royalties to one or more of such other patent hsldéis could have an adverse effect on the comimemplementation of our CDMA, GSM,
OFDMA or multimode products and technologies, dednfan our licensees’ products and our results @&frapions.

Our earnings and stock price are subject to substantial quarterly and annual fluctuations and to market downturns.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuatettie past and is likely to fluctuate in the fietias well. Factors that may have a
significant impact on the market price of our staodude, among others:

« volatility of the stock market in general andhaology-based companies in particular that isrofterelated to the operating
performance of any specific public company;

e announcements concerning us or our competitaekiding the selection of wireless communicatiteshnology by wireless operators
and the timing of the roll-out of those systems;

e international developments, such as technologgdates, political developments or changes in enanpolicies;

» changes in recommendations of securities arglyst

e proprietary rights or product or patent litigatiagainst us or against our customers or licensees

e strategic transactions, such as spin-offs, aitipmns and divestitures;

* unexpected and/or significant changes in theameeselling price of our licensees’ products amdproducts;

« unresolved disputes with licensees that resutibin-payment and/or non-recognition of royaltyemrewes that may be owed to us; or
e rumors or allegations regarding our financialctthsures or practices.

In the past, securities class action litigatiorenfhas been brought against a company followimgge of volatility in the market price of
its securities. Due to changes in the potentigatidly of our stock price, we may be the targeseturities litigation in the future. Securities
litigation could result in substantial uninsuredisoand divert management’s attention and resources

Changes in financial market volatility and liquidihay result in declines in the value and perforoeanf our significant
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portfolio of marketable securities. Net investmigmmbme could vary depending on the gains or lossa&lized on the sale or exchange of
securities, impairment charges related to marketagturities and other investments, changes irestteates and changes in fair values of
derivative instruments.

These factors affecting our future earnings arfcdit to forecast and could harm our quarterly /anénnual operating results. If our
earnings fail to meet the financial guidance wevjgte to investors, or the expectations of investnagralysts or investors in any period,
securities class action litigation could be brouagdpinst us and/or the market price of our comntockscould decline.

We depend on a limited number of third-party suppliersfor our procurement, manufacture and testing of product inventories. I f these third-
party suppliersfail to meet our needs, or if there are any disruptions in the operations of, or a loss of, any of these third-party suppliers, it
could harm our ability to meet our delivery obligations to our customers, reduce our revenues, increase our cost of sales and harm our
business.

We purchase raw materials, component parts, suinddies and specialized manufacturing equipment foomsuppliers and contract with
separate suppliers for probe, assembly, test dret services in the manufacture of our productribmges. A reduction, interruption or delay
our product supply source, a failure by our supplte allocate adequate manufacturing or test égpiacour products or their inability to react
to shifts in product demand or an increase in ratemial or component prices could have an advdfeeten our ability to meet customer
demands, our business and/or our profitability. Tiiss of a significant supplier or the inability @Bupplier to meet performance and quality
specifications or delivery schedules could harmahility to meet our delivery obligations to ourstomers and negatively impact our revenues
and business operations. In the event of a lossr & decision to change, a supplier, qualifyintess foundry supplier and commencing volu
production or testing could cause us to incur @oltitl expense and production delays, resultingogsjble loss of customers.

While our goal is to establish alternate supplferdechnologies that we consider critical, we retysole- or limited-source suppliers for
some products, subjecting us to significant rigksluding: possible shortages of raw materials anafacturing capacity; poor product
performance; and reduced control over delivery dales, manufacturing capability and yields, quadisgurance, quantity and costs. Our
arrangements with our suppliers may oblige us tarircosts to manufacture and test our productsdihaiot decrease at the same rate as
decreases in pricing to our customers.

QCT Segmenilthough we have entered into long-term contradth wur suppliers, these contracts generally dopnotide for longterm
capacity commitments, except as may be providedgarticular purchase order that has been accépgtedr supplier. To the extent that we do
not have firm commitments from our suppliers ovepacific time period, or for any specific quantibyir suppliers may allocate, and in the
past have allocated, capacity to the productiontasiihg of products for their other customers windducing capacity to manufacture or test
our products. Accordingly, capacity for our productay not be available when we need it or availableasonable prices. We have
experienced capacity limitations from our suppligvkich resulted in supply constraints and our ilitglio meet certain customer demand. The
timely readiness of our foundry suppliers to suppransitions to smaller geometry process techriefogould also impact our ability to meet
customer demand and may subject us to the riskadss inventories. If we experience these or ahpply constraints in the future, we may
not be able to meet customer demand, and our regeand results of operations could suffer.

QMT Division.Our QMT division needs to further develop its beasis relationships with raw materials and composepply partners to
support the manufacture of IMOD displays and/or uiesl in commercial volumes. We depend on certainmaterials, components, and
specialized manufacturing equipment, primarily freappliers in Taiwan, Japan and South Korea, tdywe our IMOD display panels, and we
may not be able to obtain sufficient quantities andeptable quality of raw materials, componentsexjuipment in the future to support
commercial production. The effect of these suppidated risks could negatively impact the adoptibthe IMOD technology.

Our suppliers may also be our competitors, putting us at a disadvantage for pricing and capacity allocation.

One or more of our suppliers may obtain rights frmsrto manufacture CDMA- or OFDMA-based integratiduits that compete with our
products. In this event, the supplier could elediltocate raw materials and manufacturing capdoitheir own products and reduce deliveries
to us to our detriment. In addition, we may nokiee reasonable pricing, manufacturing or deliveryns. We cannot guarantee that the ac
of our suppliers will not cause disruptions in operations that could harm our ability to meet delivery obligations to our customers or
increase our cost of sales.

We may engage in acquisitions or strategic transactions or make investments that could result in significant changes or management
disruption and fail to enhance stockholder value.

From time to time, we engage in acquisitions atetyic transactions or make investments with treé gbmaximizing stockholder value.
We acquire businesses and other assets, inclugewram licenses and other intangible assets, entejoint ventures or other strategic
transactions and purchase equity and debt seayiiiuding minority interests in publiclyaded and private companies. Many of our stra
investments are in early-stage companies to exgrendireless industry and promote the global adoptf CODMA- or OFDMA-based
technologies and related services. Most of our iatéans or
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strategic investments entail a high degree ofaist will not become liquid until more than one yfram the date of investment, if at all. Our
acquisitions or strategic investments (either theséhave completed or may undertake in the futonay not generate financial returns or result
in increased adoption or continued use of our teldgies. In some cases, we may be required to ddas®or record our share of the earnings
or losses of companies in which we have acquiredesship interests. Our share of any losses wilkegbly affect our financial results until 1
exit from or reduce our exposure to these investsen

Achieving the anticipated benefits of business &itjons, such as our recent acquisition of Athedepends in part upon our ability to
integrate the acquired businesses in an efficiedtedfective manner. The integration of compantes have previously operated independently
may result in significant challenges, including,cag others: retaining key employees; successfatlgrating new employees, business
systems and technology; retaining customers anplieup of the acquired business; minimizing theeddion of management’s attention from
ongoing business matters; coordinating geogragiisaparate organizations; consolidating reseanchdevelopment operations; and
consolidating corporate and administrative infliastinres. We may not derive any commercial valumfezquired technology, products and
intellectual property or from future technologieslgroducts based on the acquired technology aimt&dtectual property, and we may be
subject to liabilities that are not covered by imih&fication protection we may obtain. Additionallye may not be successful in expanding into
geographic regions and/or categories of productgededy or adjacent to an acquired business aaddnessing potential new opportunities
may arise out of the combination. Due to our inexmee with products and/or geographic regionsesby acquired businesses, we may
overestimate the benefits, including product amosynergies and growth opportunities that we etuerealize, and we may fail to achieve
them. For example, Atheros’ business has focusddddhconnectivity and products for WLAN (also refed to as WiFi) and other
technologies primarily for networking, computingdasther consumer electronic devices. We may ndizesthe expected return on our
investment in Atheros if we do not effectively exteeupon the product and business strategies aotifer opportunities created by the
acquisition.

Our QMT division ' sbusiness does not currently generate operating income and may not succeed or its operating results may not meet our
expectations.

While we continue to believe our QMT division’s INDCdisplays will offer compelling advantages to ssef displays, other technologies
may continue to improve in ways that reduce theaathges we anticipate from our IMOD displays. Sefdtat panel displays are currently
dominated, and we believe will likely continue ® éoominated for some time, by displays based aidigrystal display (LCD) technology.
Numerous companies are making substantial investnienand conducting research to improve charties of, LCDs. Additionally, sever:
other flat panel display technologies have beemayebeing, developed, including technologies liergroduction of organic light-emitting
diode (OLED), field emission, inorganic electrolumascence, gas plasma and vacuum fluorescent dispiagach case, advances in LCD or
other flat panel display technologies could reButechnologies that are more cost effective, Haweer display limitations or can be brought to
market faster than our IMOD technology. These adearin competing technologies might cause deviaeufaaturers to avoid entering into
commercial relationships with us or to not reneanpled or existing relationships with us.

We may not evolve our QMT division into a succekdfsplay-based subsystem provider if we are unabtost-effectively manufacture
and commercialize our IMOD display product. We @wastructing a new facility in Taiwan to manufaetaur IMOD display product. We m
experience unforeseen difficulties, delays or dsfeapon volume production and broad deploymenhigfgroduct. Delays in the commercial
launch of our IMOD display product could resultrfralelays in facility construction, delivery of sp@ized test equipment and numerous other
factors. In addition, we have limited experience¢hia display business, and we may be unsuccess$ealling our IMOD display product. Our
QMT division had $806 million in assets (includif36 million in goodwill) at September 25, 2011wk do not expect to achieve or do not
achieve adequate market penetration with our IM@ipldy technology, our assets may become impairegiatively impacting our operating
results, and we may not meet future earnings ptiojez related to this business.

Currency fluctuations could negatively affect future product sales or royalty revenues, harm our ability to collect receivables or increase the
U.S. dollar cost of the activities of our foreign subsidiaries and international strategic investments.

Our international customers sell their productstighout the world in various currencies. Consoidaevenues from international
customers as a percentage of total revenues weategithan 90% in the last three fiscal years. YWeerposed to risk from fluctuations in
currencies that could negatively affect our opeatesults. Adverse movements in currency exchaaigs may negatively affect our business
due to a number of situations, including the follagy among others:

e Our products and those of our customers anddiees that are sold outside the United States ewnie less price-competitive as a
result of adverse currency fluctuations;

« Certain of our revenues, such as royaltiesgdarazed from licensee or customer sales that anerd@ated in foreign currencies.
Weakening of currency values versus the U.S. dollaelected regions could reduce our revenuesasid flows;

*« We may engage in foreign exchange hedging triose that could affect our cash flows and resofitsperations
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because they may require the payment of structdeeg, limit the U.S. dollar value of royaltiesrrdicensees’ sales that are
denominated in foreign currencies, cause earningility if the hedges do not qualify for hedgecaanting and expose us to
counterparty risk if the counterparty fails to penh;

e Our loans payable are denominated in Indian rupéd®e U.S. dollar weakens, additional cash maydapiired to settle this obligati
and the related interest;

»  Currency exchange rate fluctuations may redhedtS. dollar value of our marketable securitieg tire denominated directly or
indirectly in foreign currencies; and

e Certain suppliers may price goods in currenotber than the U.S. dollar. A weakening dollar vebrdsult in higher than expected
costs for these goods.

Failuresin our products and services or in the products of our customers, including those resulting from security vulnerabilities, defects or
errors, could harm our business.

The use of devices containing our products to acaatusted content creates a risk of exposingykg=m software in those devices to viral
or malicious attacks. While we continue to expandfocus on this issue and are taking measuresfégsard our products from cybersecurity
threats, device capabilities continue to evolva BG/4G environment, enabling more data and presessich as mobile computing, and risks
that security failures will occur are increasingir@roducts are inherently complex and may cordafiects or errors that are detected only
when the products are in use. For example, ashopset product complexities increase, we are requio migrate to integrated circuit
technologies with smaller geometric feature siZé®& design process interface issues are more cgraplere enter into these new domains of
technology, which adds risk to yields and reliapilManufacturing, testing, marketing and use af poducts and those of our customers and
licensees entail the risk of product liability. Beise our products and services are responsibtifimal functions in our customers’ products
and/or networks, security failures, defects ormrin our components, materials or software orehgged by our customers could have an
adverse impact on us, on our customers and omitthesers of their products. Such adverse impadtdnalude product liability claims or
recalls, a decrease in demand for connected deaiwbsvireless services, damage to our reputatidrt@our customer relationships, and other
financial liability or harm to our business.

Our business and operations could suffer in the event of security breaches.

Attempts by others to gain unauthorized accessitondormation technology systems are becoming rsophisticated and are sometimes
successful. These attempts, which might be relat@tdustrial or other espionage, include coverttyoducing malware to our computers and
networks and impersonating authorized users, amtrgs. We seek to detect and investigate all ggdéncidents and to prevent their
recurrence, but in some cases, we might be unavfane incident or its magnitude and effects. Theftthunauthorized use or publication of our
intellectual property and/or confidential businegsrmation could harm our competitive positionduee the value of our investment in
research and development and other strategictinégor otherwise adversely affect our businessthe extent that any security breach results
in inappropriate disclosure of our customers' @erisees' confidential information, we may incubility as a result. In addition, we expect to
devote additional resources to the security ofiofarmation technology systems.

Potential tax liabilities could adversely affect our results of operations.

We are subject to income taxes in the United Statelsin numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significaimdgment is required in determining
our provision for income taxes. Although we beli¢hat our tax estimates are reasonable, the fet@rchination of tax audits and any related
litigation could materially differ from amounts te€ted in historical income tax provisions and aets. In such case, our income tax provision
and results of operations in the period or periadshich that determination is made could be neghfiaffected.

Tax rules may change in a manner that adversedgtafbur future reported financial results or tlag/wwe conduct our business. For
example, we consider the operating earnings o&irerton-United States subsidiaries to be indefinitevested outside the United States based
on estimates that future domestic cash generatibbevsufficient to meet future domestic cash refnt at least the next 12 months and the
foreseeable future. No provision has been made&iited States federal and state or foreign taxatsritay result from future remittances of
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiar@sr future financial results and liquidity may &eversely affected if tax rules regarding
unrepatriated earnings change, if domestic castisnegjuire us to repatriate foreign earnings, théfUnited States international tax rules
change as part of comprehensive tax reform or déxelegislation.

I f wireless devices pose safety risks, we may be subject to new regulations, and demand for our products and those of our customers and
licensees may decrease.

Concerns over the effects of radio frequency emmsstontinue. Interest groups have requestediibad€C investigate claims that wirel:
communications technologies pose health concemsaumse interference with airbags, hearing aidswaedical devices. Concerns have also
been expressed over, and state laws have beerénachitigate, the possibility of safety
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risks due to a lack of attention associated withubke of wireless devices while driving. Legislatibat may be adopted in response to these
concerns or adverse news or findings about saifétg could reduce demand for our products and thbser licensees and customers in the
United States as well as in foreign countries.

We are subject to government regulations. Our business may suffer as a result of changesin laws or regulations, our failure or inability to
comply with laws or regulations or adverse rulingsin enforcement or other proceedings.

National, state and local environmental laws amilegions affect our operations around the worlikSe laws may make it more expen:
to manufacture, have manufactured and sell prodliatsay also be difficult to comply with laws anegulations in a timely manner, and we
may not have compliant products available in thantities requested by our customers, which may havedverse impact on our results of
operations. There is also the potential for higiests driven by environmental regulations. Ouresuld increase if our vendors (e.g., third-
party manufacturers or utility companies) passhairtcosts to us.

As part of the development and commercializatioowfIMOD display technology, we are operating battlevelopment and a production
fabrication facility. The development and commeizé&ion of IMOD display prototypes is a complexdgorecise process involving restricted
materials subject to environmental and safety @gns. Our failure or inability to comply with esting or future environmental and safety
regulations could result in significant remediati@bilities, the imposition of fines and/or thespension or termination of development and
production activities.

Our products and services, and those of our custaral licensees, are subject to various reguigtianluding FCC regulations in the
United States and other international regulatiassyell as the specifications of internationaljoral and regional standards bodies. The
adoption of new laws or regulations, changes irr¢igeilation of our activities, or exclusion or liation of our technology or products by a
government or standards body, could have an ade#fieset on our business, including, among othetofag changes in laws, policies, practices
or enforcement affecting trade, foreign investmglitensing practices, spectrum license issuard@ption of standards, the provision of
wireless device subsidies by wireless operatotBdin customers, taxation, environmental protegtioans and employment.

We hold licenses to use spectrum in the UnitedeStand the United Kingdom. All of these licensessrbject to a variety of ongoing
regulatory proceedings in these respective coumtéidditionally, certain of our licenses in the téni States are subject to FCC minimum
build-out requirements to be met at various dagggrining in June 2013. In the event that we faihiet a FCC build-out requirement for a
given license, the FCC can impose sanctions, ifgud monetary fine, a reduction in our licensedttay and/or revocation of our license.

On December 20, 2010, we announced that we haeeddo sell substantially all of our United Stagpectrum licenses to AT&T, subject
to the satisfaction of customary closing conditidnsluding approval by the FCC. We, together vAIR&.T, filed an application for approval
the sale with the FCC on January 13, 2011. On ALgu011, the Chief of the FCC Wireless Telecomitations Bureau sent a letter to us
and AT&T stating that the FCC had decided to cawt# its review of our transaction with its reviefithe proposed merger of AT&T and T-
Mobile USA, although the FCC reserved the rightréat the two transactions independently at a ¢z, and the FCC declined to formally
consolidate its proceedings over the two transasti®ur application remains pending before the FQ@.agreement with AT&T terminates
on January 13, 2012; however, we or AT&T can extivedagreement for another 90 days thereafteeifftAC approval has not been received
by then. We may not receive FCC approval beforeatireement expires. If we do receive FCC approsefdre the agreement expires, the FCC
could impose conditions on its approval. Dependinghe conditions imposed, AT&T may not be obligéte close the sale in light of the
conditions. If we do not receive FCC approval foe sale of these licenses pursuant to this agrdesnérthe sale does not close because o
conditions imposed by the FCC on its approval, veg mot be able to obtain a comparable price froother party, enter into a transaction that
would obtain FCC approval or meet the applicabliédbaut requirements for those licenses.

In June 2010, we won a 20 MHz slot of Broadbandelgss Access (BWA) spectrum in four regions (kn@asrelecom circles) in India as
a result of the completion of the BWA spectrum arcfor which we made a $1.1 billion payment ($98dlion at September 25, 2011). We
created four wholly-owned subsidiaries, and on At@y 2010, each subsidiary filed an applicationlitain a license to operate a wireless
network on this spectrum for one of the respeatiggons. Thereafter, two Indian companies eachissd|13% of each subsidiary. On
September 21, 2011, we received a letter dateceBdyatr 7, 2011 from the Government of India’s Deparit of Telecommunications (DoT)
(the DoT Letter) notifying us that our applicatidmsd been rejected based on its conclusion thatghkcations were filed after the deadline
and that we were restricted to filing one applimatiather than four. On September 27, 2011, wd &lpetition with the Telecom Disputes
Settlement and Appellate Tribunal (TDSAT) seekiogverturn the DoT Letter. On September 28, 204 ,IDSAT issued an order granting
us interim relief, pending a final determinationcafr case, directing the DoT to (i) not issue thecsrum that has been earmarked to us to
anyone else and (ii) not forfeit or appropriate plagment that we made for the spectrum. On OctbBeP011, one of our subsidiaries received
a letter from the DoT offering to issue it a licerthat would cover all of India, including the faagions for which we won spectrum at the .
2010 auction, assuming that the subsidiary meaiterequirements by

21




November 9, 2011. On October 18, 2011, the subgidigbmitted to the DoT a letter accepting the ’s offer, requesting issuance of a license
as soon as possible after certain requirementsiateand stating that upon issuance of the licemsethree other subsidiaries would merge
the subsidiary that had been granted a licens®©@ober 19, 2011, the DoT filed a reply to our 8egter 27, 2011 petition with the TDSAT.
In its reply, the DoT stated that upon issuanca kfense, our subsidiary could apply for assignneéthe spectrum, and at that time, the DoT
would decide whether to grant the requested assghand whether our applications for licenses wierely filed in accordance with its rules.
On October 20, 2011, the TDSAT conducted a seceadiig on our case. At the conclusion of the hgatime TDSAT ordered the DoT to
clarify the aforementioned statements in its Octdl® 2011 reply in light of its October 10, 201ffeo. The TDSAT scheduled another hearing
for November 8, 2011. If we do not ultimately priévaur subsidiary may not receive a license oaasignment of the spectrum that we won in
the auction; and in either of those events, ounpay for the spectrum may not be returned.

Also in connection with the BWA spectrum acquisiti@ach of the subsidiaries entered into loan ageeés with multiple banks that defi
certain events as events of default, including, mgnather things, if certain government authorizaiare revoked, terminated, withdrawn,
suspended, modified or withheld. If the DoT’s réj@e of our license applications were to be consdean event of default, the bank lenders
could declare the loans due and payable immediatééyhave received waivers from each of the ban#ldes related to this matter until at le
April 1, 2012, conditioned upon our continuing targue our legal rights in this matter, and agreéiag any default will be deemed cured ul
certain circumstances, including if one of the valg subsidiaries is granted the license and therdhree are pursuing a merger into the
subsidiary that has been offered a license.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatirgptporate governance, public disclosure and nealte may create uncertainty
regarding compliance matters. New or changed lesggilations and standards are subject to varyitggpretations in many cases, and their
application in practice may evolve over time. A®sult, our efforts to comply may fail, particulaif there is ambiguity as to how they should
be applied in practice. Evolving interpretationsefv or changed legal requirements may causeinsuo higher costs as we revise current
practices, policies and/or procedures and may tivanagement time and attention to compliance itiegv

We may not be able to attract and retain qualified employees.

Our future success depends largely upon the cadisarvice of our board members, executive offiaarsother key management and
technical personnel. Our success also dependsrabdity to continue to attract, retain and motevgualified personnel. In addition,
implementing our product and business strategyires|gpecialized engineering and other talent,camdevenues are highly dependent on
technological and product innovations. The markestich specialized engineering and other taleeteloyees in our industry is extremely
competitive. In addition, existing immigration lawsake it more difficult for us to recruit and retdiighly skilled foreign national graduates of
universities in the United States, making the pid@vailable talent even smaller. Key employeesasgnt a significant asset, and the
competition for these employees is intense in ndustry. We continue to anticipate increases indwnesource needs, particularly in
engineering. If we are unable to attract and retaénqualified employees that we need, our busimegsbe harmed.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

At September 25, 2011 , we occupied the indicate@die footage in the owned or leased facilitiesiilesd below (square footage in
thousands):

Number Total
of Square
Buildings Location Status Footage Primary Use
34 United States Owned 4,071 Executive and administrative offices, research @ktlopment, sales and
marketing, service functions, manufacturing andvoet management hub.
39 United States Leased 1,24«  Administrative offices, research and developmeaiesand marketing, service
functions and network management hub.
13 India Leased 52%  Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
10 Mexico Leased 317 Administrative offices, sales and marketing, sesVionctions, manufacturing
and network management hub.
1 Taiwan Owned 285  Research and development and manufacturing.
8 China Leased 23€  Administrative offices, research and developmesigssand marketing, service
functions and network operating centers.
3 India Owned 13€ Administrative offices, research and developmentsales and marketing.
7 Taiwan Leased 11C  Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
3 South Korea Leased 96 Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
3 Israel Leased 75 Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
5 Canada Leased 70 Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
4 England Leased 55 Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
3 Singapore Leased 44  Administrative offices, research and developmentsaies and marketing.
5 Germany Leased 31 Administrative offices, research and developmentsales and marketing.
3 Japan Leased 26  Administrative offices, research and developmentsales and marketing.
31 Other International Leased 121  Administrative offices, research and development sales and marketing.
Total square footage 7,442

In addition to the facilities above, we own or keapproximately 134,000 square feet of propertiatdre leased or subleased to third
parties. Our facility leases expire at varying ddteough 2029, not including renewals that wowddabour option. At September 25, 2011 , we
also leased space on base station towers andrgslgursuant to 415 lease arrangements relatag L@ TV business, which was shut dc
on March 27, 2011. The majority of our site ledsage an initial term of five to seven years. Agsuit of the shut down of the FLO TV
business, we do not intend to renew our site leasebswe continue to negotiate the exit of cela@se contracts.

Several owned and leased facilities are under naetgin totaling approximately 1,756,000 additioegliare feet to meet the requirements
projected in our long-term business plan. In fi@l1, we initiated construction of a manufactuffiagjlity in Taiwan for our display business
with the initial phase expected to be completefisical 2012. We believe that our facilities will baitable and adequate for the present
purposes and that the productive capacity in sacttitfes is substantially utilized. In the futusge may need to purchase, build or lease
additional facilities to meet the requirements pet¢d in our long-term business plan.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Tessera, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporatedn April 17, 2007, Tessera filed a patent infringatlawsuit in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas and a camplwith the United States International Trade Gussion (ITC) pursuant to Section 337 of
the Tariff Act of 1930 against us and other companalleging infringement of two patents. The disttourt action is stayed pending resolu
of the ITC proceeding, including all appeals. Onyh28, 2009, the ITC issued a limited exclusion ol a cease and desist order, both of
which were terminated when the patents expiredepte®nber 24, 2010. During the period of the exolusirder, we shifted supply of accused
chips for customers who manufacture products tleat be imported to the United States to a licens@glter of Tessera, and we continued to
supply those customers without interruption. Onéeber 21, 2010, the United States Court of Appieslthe Federal Circuit issued a decis
affirming the ITC’s orders, and on March 29, 20it Heclined to reconsider that decision. We halezlfa petition to the United States Supreme
Court, which may or may not accept this case fpeaph Once the stay is lifted, Tessera may contioweek back damages in the district cc
but it may not seek injunctive relief due to th@ieation of the patents.

MicroUnity Systems Engineering, Inc. v. QUALCOMNMdrporated et al.MicroUnity filed a total of three patent infringemecomplaints,
on March 16, 2010, June 3, 2010 and January 27, 2@kinst us and a number of other technology emiap, including Texas Instruments,
Samsung, Apple, Nokia, Google and HTC, in the WhB¢ates District Court for the Eastern Districfleikas. The complaints against us allege
infringement of a total of 15 patents and appeactmise our Snapdragon products. The district @mngolidated the actions in May 2011. The
claim construction hearing is set for August 12120and trial is scheduled for June 3, 2013. Orte3eper 30, 2011, the court denied our
motion to sever the claims against us from therafleéendants and to transfer the case to the USitatks District Court for the Northern
District of California.

Broadcom Corporation et al. v. Commonwealth Sciiergind Industrial Research Organisation (CSIR@n November 10, 2009,
Broadcom and Atheros Communications, Inc., whichaeguired in May 2011 and was renamed Qualcommréshénc. (Atheros), filed a
complaint for declaratory judgment against CSIRG@him United States District Court for the Easterstiixt of Texas, requesting the court to
declare, among other things, that United Statesnpatumber 5,487,069 (the '069 Patent) assign&@BIRO is invalid and unenforceable and
that Atheros does not infringe any valid claimshef '069 Patent. On October 14, 2010, CSIRO filed a daimipagainst Atheros and Broadc
(amended and consolidated with complaints agath&trdhird parties on April 6, 2011) alleging imfgement of the '069 Patent. A claim
construction hearing was held on October 4, 204d taal is scheduled for April 9, 2012.

MOSAID Technologies Incorporated v. Dell, Inc. ket ®n March 16, 2011, MOSAID filed a complaint agaiAtheros and 32 other
entities in the United States District Court foe thastern District of Texas. In its infringemenbmtions, MOSAID alleges that certain of
Atheros’ products infringe United States patent ham 5,131,006, 5,151,920, 5,422,887, 5,706,43835/86 and 6,992,972. MOSAID seeks
unspecified damages and other relief. Discoverynmayet begun. A claim construction hearing isesttled for February 18, 2014, and trial is
scheduled for August 4, 2014.

India BWA Spectrumn June 2010, we won a 20 MHz slot of Broadbandelgss Access (BWA) spectrum in four regions (kn@sn
telecom circles) in India as a result of the coripteof the BWA spectrum auction for which we mad$1.1 billion payment ($994 million at
September 25, 2011). We created four whollyaed subsidiaries, and on August 9, 2010, eacidiaby filed an application to obtain a licel
to operate a wireless network on this spectrunofiar of the respective regions. Thereafter, twodnadiompanies each acquired 13% of each
subsidiary. On September 21, 2011, we receivettex ldated September 7, 2011 from the Governmekmtdi’'s Department of
Telecommunications (DoT) (the DoT Letter) notifying that our applications had been rejected basétd aonclusion that the applications
were filed after the deadline and that we wereriet to filing one application rather than fo@m September 27, 2011, we filed a petition
with the Telecom Disputes Settlement and Appelfatbunal (TDSAT) seeking to overturn the DoT Lett®n September 28, 2011, the
TDSAT issued an order granting us interim reliefinging a final determination of our case, directimg DoT to (i) not issue the spectrum that
has been earmarked to us to anyone else and {iiprieit or appropriate the payment that we maatelie spectrum. On October 10, 2011, one
of our subsidiaries received a letter from the &fEring to issue it a license that would coverddlindia, including the four regions for which
we won spectrum at the June 2010 auction, assutin@ighe subsidiary met certain requirements byedadwer 9, 2011. On October 18, 2011,
the subsidiary submitted to the DoT a letter adoghe DoT's offer, requesting issuance of a beeas soon as possible after certain
requirements are met, and stating that upon isguainihe license, our three other subsidiaries doutrge into the subsidiary that had been
granted a license. On October 19, 2011, the D&t fll reply to our September 27, 2011 petition @ithTDSAT. In its reply, the DoT stated
that upon issuance of a license, our subsidiaridcapply for assignment of the spectrum, and attihree, the DoT would decide whether to
grant the requested assignment and whether ouicapphs for licenses were timely filed in accordanvith its rules. On October 20, 2011,
TDSAT conducted a second hearing on our case.éAtdinclusion of the hearing, the TDSAT orderedDb@ to clarify the aforementioned
statements in its October 19, 2011 reply in light©October 10, 2011 offer. The TDSAT scheduladther hearing for November 8, 2011.
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Icera Complaint to the European Commissiddn June 7, 2010, the European Commission (then@ission) notified and provided us w
a redacted copy of a complaint filed with the Comsian by Icera, Inc. alleging that we have engageahticompetitive activity. We have be
asked by the Commission to submit a preliminarpoese to the portions of the complaint disclosedstoand we submitted our response in
July 2010. On October 19, 2011, the Commissiorfiedtus that we should provide to the Commissiotitazhal documents and information.
We continue to cooperate fully with the Commissgopteliminary investigation.

Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complaiftn January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a written @etidinding that we violated South
Korean law by offering certain discounts and reb&be purchases of its CDMA chips and for includingertain agreements language
requiring the continued payment of royalties afikélicensed patents have expired. The KFTC lewidithe, which we paid in the second qué
of fiscal 2010. We are appealing that decisiorhinKorean courts.

Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaifihe JFTC received unspecified complaints alledfirad our business practices are, in
some way, a violation of Japanese law. On Septe2fe2009, the JFTC issued a cease and desistardeluding that our Japanese licensees
were forced to cross-license patents to us on atyefree basis and were forced to accept a provisiateuwhich they agreed not to assert t
essential patents against our other licensees vaue ra similar commitment in their license agreemseiith us. The cease and desist order
seeks to require us to modify our existing liceageeements with Japanese companies to eliminate firevisions while preserving the license
of our patents to those companies. We disagreethaticonclusions that we forced our Japanese ke agree to any provision in the
parties’ agreements and that those provisions tédle Japanese Antimonopoly Act. We have invokedight under Japanese law to an
administrative hearing before the JFTC. In Febr2&30, the Tokyo High Court granted our motion &stled a stay of the cease and desist
order pending the administrative hearing beforeJthEC. The JFTC has had ten hearing days to déteaw additional hearing day scheduled
on December 15, 2011 and additional hearing daty®yee scheduled.

Formal Order of Private Investigatio®n September 8, 2010, we were notified by the Sesiand Exchange Commission’s (SEC) Los
Angeles Regional office of a formal order of priz@vestigation. We understand that the investigasirose from a “whistleblower’s”
allegations made in December 2009 to the audit coeenof our Board of Directors and to the SEC. &@hdit committee completed an inter
review with the assistance of independent counsgirsdependent forensic accountants. This intemaéw into the allegations and related
accounting practices did not identify any errorsim financial statements. We continue to coopesétte the SEC’s ongoing investigation.

Other: We have been named, along with many other manufastof wireless phones, wireless operators angsinghrelated organization
as a defendant in purported class action lawsaid individually filed actions pending in federalet in Pennsylvania and Washington D.C.
superior court, seeking monetary damages arisihgfoaur sale of cellular phones. The federal clgon has been dismissed, leaving only
individually filed actions in Washington D.C. aativ

While there can be no assurance of favorable outspme believe the claims made by other parti¢isaérforegoing matters are without
merit and will vigorously defend the actions. Wedaot recorded any accrual at September 25, 2Xldohtingent liabilities or recognized
any asset impairment charges during fiscal 201dcéested with the legal proceedings described albased on our belief that liabilities, while
possible, are not probable. Further, any possibige of loss cannot be reasonably estimated atities We are engaged in numerous other
legal actions not described above arising in tliénary course of our business and, while therebeano assurance, we believe that the ultir
outcome of these actions will not have a matedakase effect on our operating results, liquiditffinancial position.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “QCOM.” The followirapte sets forth the range of
high and low sales prices on the NASDAQ Stock Madfehe common stock for the fiscal periods intkch as reported by NASDAQ. Such
guotations represent inter-dealer prices withotailrenarkup, markdown or commission and may noessarily represent actual transactions.

High ($) Low ($)

2010
First quarter 46.35 40.15
Second quarter 49.80 35.46
Third quarter 43.39 34.28
Fourth quarter 44.97 31.63

2011
First quarter 50.00 42.45
Second quarter 59.84 48.98
Third quarter 58.95 51.45
Fourth quarter 59.48 45.48

At October 31, 2011, there were 8,518 holders odnek of our common stock. On October 31, 2011 )dkesale price reported on the
NASDAQ Stock Market for our common stock was $51p&®0 share

Dividends

On March 1, 2010, we announced an increase in wanteyly dividend from $0.170 to $0.190 per shar@or common stock. On March 8,
2011, we announced an increase in our quarterigetnd from $0.190 to $0.215 per share of commockstBGash dividends on outstanding
common stock announced in fiscal 2010 and 2011 a®ffellows (in millions, except per share data):

Cumulative
Per Share Total by Fiscal Year
2010
First quarter $ 0.17¢ $ 284 % 284
Second quarter 0.17¢ 27¢ 563
Third quarter 0.19C 30¢ 872
Fourth quarter 0.19C 30¢ 1,177
$ 0.72C $ 1,177
2011
First quarter $ 0.19C $ 30¢ % 30¢
Second quarter 0.19C 31€ 62E
Third quarter 0.21% 36C 98t
Fourth quarter 0.21% 361 1,34¢
$ 0.81C $ 1,34¢

On October 11, 2011, we announced a cash dividei.a15 per share on our common stock, payablBemember 21, 2011 to
stockholders of record as of November 23, 2011iémnd to continue to pay quarterly dividends sabje capital availability and our view
that cash dividends are in the best interests p$tmeckholders. Future dividends may be affectecabyong other items, our views on potential
future capital requirements, including those retatio research and development,
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creation and expansion of sales distribution chisrered investments and acquisitions, legal risk&ksrepurchase programs, changes in fe
and state income tax law and changes to our bissimedel.

Share-Based Compensation

We primarily issue stock options and restrictedlstonits under our equity compensation plans, whighpart of a broad-based, long-term
retention program that is intended to attract atdin talented employees and directors and alimgkkblder and employee interests.

Our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2006 Plan) piesifor the grant of both incentive and non-quadifstock options, restricted stock
units, stock appreciation rights, restricted stgukformance units and shares and other stock-lzasais. Options are granted at a price not
less than the fair market value of the stock ordifite of grant. Generally, options vest over pexiodt exceeding five years and are exercisable
for up to ten years from the grant date. Restristedk units generally vest three years from ttte dagrant. The Board of Directors may
terminate the 2006 Plan at any time.

Additional information regarding our share-basethpensation plans and plan activity for fiscal 202010 and 2009 is provided in the
notes to our consolidated financial statementhi;vAnnual Report in “Notes to Consolidated Finah&tatements, Note 8 — Employee
Benefit Plans” and in our 2012 Proxy Statement utige heading “Equity Compensation Plan Information

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Issuer purchases of equity securities during thetfioquarter of fiscal 2011 were (in millions, egteer share data):

Total Number of Shares ~ Approximate Dollar Value of

Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Average Price  Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Paid Per Share® or Programs @ Programs @®
June 27, 2011, to July 24, 2011 — % — —  $ —
July 25, 2011 to August 21, 2011 — — — —
August 22, 2011 to September 25, 2011 3 49.4( 3 1,55¢
Total 3 3§ 1,55¢

@ Average Price Paid Per Share excludes cash paafomissions.

@ On March 1, 2010, we announced that we had beédiwrzed to repurchase up to $3.0 billion of our aoon stock, and $1.0 billion of that amount
remained available at September 25, 2011 , netitodptions outstanding. The stock repurchase prodras no expiration date. Since September 25,
2011 , we repurchased and retired 2,046,000 sbéms common stock for $99 million .

®  The approximate dollar value of shares that mayggturchased has not been reduced by the netfcds11 million (net of the premiums received)
of 11,800,000 shares that may be repurchased ddtafgut options that we sold during fiscal 2011.

Performance Measurement Comparison of Stockholder &urn

The following graph compares total stockholdermeton our common stock since September 24, 2008dondices: the Standard &
Poor’s 500 Stock Index (the S&P 500) and the NASDAID Index (NASDAQ-100). The S&P 500 tracks theraggte price performance of
the equity securities of 500 United States commasétected by Standard & Poor’s Index Committeéadlude companies in leading industries
and to reflect the United States stock market. NASDAQ-100 tracks the aggregate price performari¢ben100 largest domestic and
international non-financial securities listed oe tHASDAQ Stock Market based on market capitalizatio

The total return for our stock and for each indesuanes the reinvestment of gross dividends anasiscoon the returns of the component
companies weighted according to their capitalizegiat the end of each annual period. We began gajudends on our common stock on
March 31, 2003. Our common stock is traded on tASDAQ Global Select Market and is a component aheaf the S&P 500 and the
NASDAQ-100.
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Our closing stock price on September 23, 2011|asietrading day of our 2011 fiscal year, was $8@&r share.

@ Shows the cumulative total return on investmenti@iisg an investment of $100 (including reinvestmardividends) in our common
stock, the S&P 500 and the NASDAQ-100 on Septer@BeR006. All returns are reported as of our fiser end, which is the last
Sunday in September.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following data should be read in conjunctiothvthe annual consolidated financial statementatae notes and other financial
information appearing elsewhere herein.

Years Ended®

September 25, September 26, September 27, September 28, September 30,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(In millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data®

Revenues $ 14957 % 10,98 % 10,38° % 11,13 $ 8,87(
Operating income 5,02¢ 3,721 2,542 4,03( 3,11¢
Income from continuing operations 4,55k 3,52( 1,79 3,347 3,447
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes (319) (279) (200) (187) (1449
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 4,26( 3,247 1,592 3,16( 3,30¢

Per Share Data:®
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to

Qualcomm:
Continuing operations $ 27¢  $ 21t $ 1.0¢ $ 20t $ 2.0¢
Discontinued operations (0.19) (0.1% (0.1% (0.1)) (0.09)
Net income 2.517 1.9¢ 0.9¢ 1.94 1.9¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to
Qualcomm:
Continuing operations 2.7C 2.12 1.07 2.01 2.04
Discontinued operations (0.1¢) (0.1¢) (0.1% (0.1)) (0.09)
Net income 2.52 1.9¢ 0.9t 1.9C 1.9t
Dividends per share announced 0.81 0.7z 0.6¢€ 0.6C 0.5z

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 2091 $ 18,40: $ 17,74:  $ 11,26¢  $ 11,81¢
Total assets 36,42: 30,57: 27,44¢ 24,71 18,49¢
Loans payable 994 1,08¢ — — —
Capital lease obligations 17C 221 187 142 91
Other long-term liabilitie§’ 45(C 54C 665 41€ 16¢
Total stockholders’ equity 26,97 20,85¢ 20,31¢ 17,94« 15,83¢

@ Qur fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Septeriibe fiscal years ended September 25, 2011 eBdyar 26, 2010 , September 27,
2009 and September 28, 2008 each included 52 w&kkdiscal year ended September 30, 2007 inclb@eaeeks.

@ The fiscal years ended September 26, 2010, Septe2iitb2009, September 28, 2008 and September 83, I28ve been adjusted to
reflect the presentation of the FLO TV businesdiasontinued operations.

@  Other long-term liabilities in this balance sheatadexclude capital lease obligations and uneamezhues. Capital lease obligations
are included in other liabilities in the consoliedbalance sheets.
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Item 7. Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

In addition to historical information, the followgrdiscussion contains forward-looking statemerds &ne subject to risks and uncertainties.
Actual results may differ substantially from thaséerred to herein due to a number of factorsyigiclg but not limited to risks described in-
section entitled Risk Factors and elsewhere inAisual Report.

Overview

Recent Developments
Revenues for fiscal 2011 were $15.0 billion, witt mcome of $4.3 billion, whi ch were impactedthg following key items:

*  We shipped approximately 483 million Mobile $tatModem (MSM) integrated circuits for CDMA- and~-OMA-based wireless
devices, an increase of 21%, compared to approglyna89 million MSM integrated circuits in fiscaD20 .

» Total reported device sales were approximat&#9% billion, an increase of approximately 41%mpared to approximately
$105.7 billion in fiscal 2010®

¢ On May 24, 2011, we acquired Atheros Commuricesj Inc., which was renamed Qualcomm Atheros, (liheros), for total cash
consideration of $3.1 billion, net of cash acqujraad the exchange of equity awards. Atheros wagiiated into the Qualcomm
CDMA Technologies (QCT) segment.

*  We executed a restructuring plan under whichARb® TV business and network were shut down, an@sgeo longer pursing our
MediaFLO technologies business. We recorded n&uaring and restructuring-related charges ofg88#ilion in fiscal 2011. Our
results of operations reflect the presentatiorheffLO TV business as discontinued operationsa#imtior period amounts have be
adjusted accordingly.

Against this backdrop, the following recent devet@mts occurred during fiscal 2011 with respectep &lements of our business or our
industry:

«  Worldwide wireless connections grew by approxihal4% to reach approximately 5.9 billid#.

*  Worldwide 3G connections (all CDMA-based) gremapproximately 1.5 billion, approximately 25% ofdl wireless connections,
including approximately 536 million CDMA2000 1X/1¥EDO connections and approximately 951 million WCBMSPA/TD-
SCDMA connections?®

« Unit shipments of CDMA-based handsets grew déimeased 28% year-over-year, compared to an estomatease of 12% year-over-
year across all wireless technologi®”

@ During fiscal 2011, some customers built devices thcorporated two MSMs. In such cases, whichesgmt less than 1% of our gross
volume, we count only one MSM in reporting the MSkipments.

@  Total reported device sales is the sum of all neygbsales in U.S. dollars (as reported to us bylioeinsees) of all licensed CDMA-based
subscriber devices (including handsets, moduleslemocards and other subscriber devices) by oundees during a particular period. |
all licensees report sales the same way (e.g., §oeresees report sales net of permitted deductgush as transportation, insurance and
packing costs, while other licensees report saldgtzen identify the amount of permitted deductiontheir reports), and the way in whi
licensees report such information may change fiiame to time. Total reported device sales for aipaldr period may include prior period
activity that was not reported by the licenseelwuith particular period.

®  According to Wireless Intelligence estimates a®ofober 31, 2011, for the quarter ending Septer@Bbe2011. Wireless Intelligence
estimates for CDMA2000 1X/1xEV-DO connections da imalude Wireless Local Loop.

@ Based on current reports by Strategy Analyticdphal research and consulting firm, in their Aug2@11 Global Handset Market Share
Update.

Our Business and Operating Segments

We design, manufacture, have manufactured on calband market digital communications products s@vices based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies. We derive revenuexjpally from sales of integrated circuit prodydtged license fees (payable in one or
more installments) and ongoing royalties for usewfintellectual property, messaging and othevises and related hardware sales, software
development and licensing and related servicesaftdiare hosting services. Operating expenses phintansist of cost of equipment and
services, research and development and selling,
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general and administrative expenses.

We conduct business primarily through four repdga®gments. These segments are: Qualcomm CDMAnbdéagies, or QCT;
Qualcomm Technology Licensing, or QTL; Qualcomm &Mss & Internet, or QWI; and Qualcomm Strategitidtives, or QSI.

QCT is a leading developer and supplier of integgtatircuits and system software based on CDMA, ORDavid other technologies for L
in voice and data communications, networking, agpion processing, multimedia and global positigrsgstem products. QCT'’s integrated
circuit products and system software are sold ticensed to manufacturers that use our productgrigless devices, particularly mobile
phones, tablets, laptops, data modules, handheddess computers and gaming devices, access poidtsouters, data cards and infrastructure
equipment, and in wired devices, particularly biweat gateway equipment, desktop computers, teteisand Blu-ray players. The MSM
integrated circuits, which include the Mobile D&adem, Qualcomm Single Chip and Qualcomm Snapdrdgeites, perform the core
baseband modem functionality in wireless devicesiding voice and data communications, as well atimedia applications and global
positioning functions. In addition, our Snapdragmabled integrated circuits provide advanced agiitio processing capabilities. QCT’s
system software enables the other device compoteiriterface with the integrated circuit produatsl is the foundation software enabling
manufacturers to develop devices utilizing the fiomality within the integrated circuits. QCT rewesrs comprised 59%, 61% and 59% of total
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2011 , 2010 an® 208spectively.

QCT utilizes a fabless production business modkicivmeans that we do not own or operate foundoiethe production of silicon wafers
from which our integrated circuits are made. In&égd circuits are die, cut from silicon wafers tthave been assembled into packages or
modules and have completed the final test manufagtyprocesses. We rely on independent third-pauppliers to perform the manufacturing
and assembly, and most of the testing, of our nated circuits. Our suppliers are also responsdii¢he procurement of most of the raw
materials used in the production of our integratiecuits. We employ both turnkey and two-stage nfacturring business models to purchase
our integrated circuits. Turnkey is when our foynsluppliers are responsible for delivering fullgasbled and tested integrated circuits. U
the two-stage manufacturing business model, wehaseewafers and die from semiconductor manufagtdaandries and contract with
separate third-party manufacturers for probe, abgeamd final test services.

QTL grants licenses or otherwise provides rightsge portions of our intellectual property portbohvhich includes certain patent rights
essential to and/or useful in the manufacture atelaf certain wireless products, including, withbnitation, products implementing
cdmaOne, CDMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (including TD-801A), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA standards andrtderivatives.
QTL licensing revenues are comprised of license &ewell as royalties based on worldwide saldicbysees of products incorporating or
using our intellectual property. License fees ated amounts paid in one or more installments. R@gare generally based upon a percentage
of the wholesale (i.e., licensee’s) selling pri€daensed products, net of certain permissibleudéidns (e.g., certain shipping costs, packing
costs, VAT, etc.). QTL revenues comprised 36%, 288 35% of total consolidated revenues in fiscdl1202010 and 2009 , respectively. The
vast majority of such revenues were generated gtrawr licensees’ sales of cdmaOne, CDMA2000 andW®& subscriber equipment
products.

QWI, which includes Qualcomm Enterprise ServiceB$Q Qualcomm Internet Services (QIS), Qualcommeaawient Technologies
(QGOV) and Firethorn, generates revenues primérilgugh mobile information products and serviced software and software development
aimed at support and delivery of wireless applaai QES sells equipment, software and servicebslmséransportation and other companies
to connect wirelessly with their assets and wordoThrough September 2011 , QES has shipped dpmtety 1,511,000 terrestridased an
satellite-based mobile information units. QIS pd®s content enablement services for the wirelehssiny, including Brew, the Plaza suite and
other services. QIS also provides QChat push-toaatl other products for wireless operators. QG@Wiples development, hardware,
analytical expertise and services involving wireleemmunications technologies to United States mowent agencies. Firethorn builds and
manages software applications that enable mobiteywerce services. QWI revenues comprised 4%, 6% %ndf total consolidated revenues
fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

QSI makes strategic investments that we believieopgn new opportunities for our technologies, supthe design and introduction of
new products and services for voice and data cormations or possess unique capabilities or teclyyolMany of these strategic investments
are in early-stage companies. QSI also holds vesedpectrum. As part of our strategic investmetivities, we intend to pursue various exit
strategies at some point in the future.

The results of QSI's FLO TV business is presentediscontinued operations. Since the shut dowhefLO TV business and network on
March 27, 2011, we have been working to sell onrai@ing assets and exit contracts. On Decembe2®(), we announced that we have
agreed to sell substantially all of our 700 MHzctpam for $1.9 billion, subject to the satisfactioihcustomary closing conditions, including
approval by the U.S. FCC.

Nonreportable segments include the Qualcomm MEM&nelogies division, which continues to develod@D display technology
based on micro-electro-mechanical-system (MEMSicttire combined with thin film optics, and
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other product initiatives.
Discontinued Operations

On December 20, 2010, we agreed to sell substyrdihof our 700 MHz spectrum for $1.9 billion,lgect to the satisfaction of customary
closing conditions, including approval by the Urfgderal Communications Commission (FCC). The agee¢terminates on January 13, 2C
however, either party can extend the agreemerarfother 90 days thereafter if the FCC approvahisadeen received by then. The agreement
followed our previously announced plan to restreetand evaluate strategic options related to the Fi/ business and network. The FLO TV
business and network were shut down on March 271 .28ince then, we have been working to sell theairing assets and exit contracts. The
700 MHz spectrum with a carrying value of $746 oillthat we have agreed to sell was classifiedets for sale, and all other assets were
considered disposed of, at September 25, 2011 ordogly, the results of operations of the FLO Tusmess were presented as discontinued
operations at September 25, 2011 . Loss from disuged operations includes share-based paymentsxahades certain general corporate
expenses allocated to the FLO TV business duriagé#riods presented. Our statements of operatirad|fprior periods have been adjusted to
conform.

Summarized results from discontinued operationgwasrfollows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 25, September 26, September 27,
2011 2010 2009
Revenues $ 5 % 9 $ 29
Loss from discontinued operations (507) (459 (327)
Income tax benefit 194 18¢€ 127
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ (3139 $ (279 % (20C)

Restructuring and restructuringlated activities under our plan related to disicmred operations were initiated in the fourth deof fisca
2010 and are expected to be substantially compietbe end of fiscal 2012 as we continue to negmtize exit of certain contracts and remove
certain of our equipment from the network sitesribgifiscal 2011 , we recorded $300 million in resturing-related charges, primarily
consisting of asset impairments and acceleratecedigion, and net restructuring charges of $58anil, including $48 million in contract
termination costs. We estimate that we will inautufe restructuring and restructuring-related charf up to $25 million , primarily related to
lease exit costs. We may also realize certain gpimmarily due to the potential release of liai® associated with ongoing efforts to exit
certain contracts, the amount of which cannot bsarably estimated at this time. Future cash experd are expected to be in the range of
$75 million to $115 million .

Looking Forward

The deployment of 3G networks enables increasezkwmapacity and higher data rates than prior géoaraetworks, thereby supporting
more minutes of use and a wide range of mobilediraad data applications for handsets, 3G connecteghuting devices and other consumer
electronics. Many wireless operators have or aarphg to complement their existing 3G networkslbploying OFDMA-based technology,
often called 4G, in new spectrum to gain additiaregdacity for data services. As a result, we expestinued growth in the coming years in
consumer demand for 3G and 3G/4G multimode prodaratisservices around the world. In addition, weeexjan increasing number of
devices, such as computers, consumer electronicaetworking equipment, to require multiple comnuaions technologies to support a
variety of connected applications.

As we look forward to the next several months,ftlewing items are likely to have an impact on duisiness:

« The worldwide transition from 2G to 3G CDMA-bdseetworks is expected to continue, including tmthfer expansion of 3G in
China, India and other emerging regions.

*  We expect consumer demand for advanced 3G-lzask8G/4G multimode devices, including smartph@resdata-centric devices,
such as tablets and e-readers, to continue abrgsprace. We also expect growth in lower-end 3Godsvas 3G expands in emerging
regions.

*  We expect that CDMA-based device prices willtamne to vary broadly due to the increased perietratf smartphones combined
with active competition throughout the world atgdice tiers. This, along with varying rates of Bomic growth by region and
stronger than average growth in emerging regiansxpected to continue to impact the average argeraf selling prices of CDMA-
based devices.

« We continue to invest significant resources taltthe development of technologies and productsdare and data communications,
primarily in the wireless industry, including adeaments to 3G CDMA and 4G LTE networks,
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wireless baseband chips, our converged computimgfamications (Snapdragon) chips, multimedia proglusdftware and services,
well as our IMOD display technology.

*  We have agreed to sell substantially all of @@ MHz spectrum for $1.9 billion, subject to tlaisfaction of customary closing
conditions, including approval from the U.S. Fetl@ammunications Commission. If the closing coratis are met, we expect to
recognize a gain in discontinued operations of $illn.

In addition to the foregoing business and markstetdamatters, we continue to devote resources tkimgpwith and educating participants
in the wireless value chain as to the benefitsuoftusiness model in promoting a highly competiivel innovative wireless industry.
However, we expect that certain companies may ©oetio be dissatisfied with the need to pay redderrayalties for the use of our
technology and not welcome the success of our basimodel in enabling new, highly cost-effectivenpetitors to their products. We expect
that such companies will continue to challengelginess model in various forums throughout thedvor

Further discussion of risks related to our businegsesented in the Risk Factors included in Ariaual Report.
Revenue Concentrations

Revenues from customers in China, South Korea, 8ra@nd Japan comprised 32%, 19%, 17% and 8%, tasggcof total consolidated
revenues for fiscal 2011 , as compared to 29%, 22% and 9%, respectively, for fiscal 2010 , an®#235%, 8% and 11%, respectively, for
fiscal 2009 . We distinguish revenues from exteoustomers by geographic areas based on the lodatiwhich our products, software or
services are delivered and, for QTL'’s licensing emglty revenues, the invoiced addresses of cenlees.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our results of dpmra and liquidity and capital resources are basedur consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeitftaccounting principles generally accepted i thnited States. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estinatdgudgments that affect the reported amountsssta, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilittss an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimatégualyments, including those related to
revenue recognition, valuation of intangible asseid investments, shabased payments, income taxes and litigation. We basestimates «
historical and anticipated results and trends andasious other assumptions that we believe asorezble under the circumstances, including
assumptions as to future events. These estimatestifi@ basis for making judgments about the cagrymlues of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. By thature, estimates are subject to an inherent dedneecertainty. Actual results that differ frc
our estimates could have a significant adverseeffie our operating results and financial positMfe believe that the following significant
accounting estimates may involve a higher degrgedgfment and complexity than others.

Revenue Recognition. We derive revenue principally from sales of integdacircuit products, licensing of our intellectypabperty and
software, and sales of messaging, software hostoftyyare development and other services and teletedware. The timing of revenue
recognition and the amount of revenue actuallygaczed in each case depends upon a variety ofriadteluding the specific terms of each
arrangement and the nature of our deliverablesatigations. Determination of the appropriate ant@mfrrevenue recognized involves
judgments and estimates that we believe are rebbgrmut actual results may differ from our estiess

We license or otherwise provide rights to use paortiof our intellectual property portfolio, whiaficludes certain patent rights essential to
and/or useful in the manufacture and sale of aertédieless products. Licensing revenues includenie fees (payable in one or more
installments) and ongoing royalties based on lieeassales of products incorporating or using menised intellectual property. License fees
are recognized over the estimated period of beogfhe license to the licensee, typically 5 toy#ars . We recognize royalty revenues based
on royalties reported by licensees during the guamd when other revenue recognition criterianage From time to time, licensees will not
report royalties timely due to legal disputes drestreasons, and when this occurs, the timing antharability of royalty revenues could be
affected.

Valuation of I ntangible Assets and I nvestments. Our business acquisitions typically result in thearding of goodwill and other intangible
assets, and the recorded values of those assetBenage impaired in the future. We also acquirangible assets in other types of
transactions. At September 25, 2011 , our goodwidl other intangible assets, net of accumulatedtaration, were $3.4 billion and
$3.1 billion, respectively. The determination o thalue of such intangible assets requires managieimenake estimates and assumptions that
affect our consolidated financial statements. Rtarigible assets purchased in a business combiratieeceived in a non-monetary exchange,
the estimated fair values of the assets receivedqononmonetary exchanges, the estimated fair valueseodsisets transferred if more cle¢
evident) are used to establish their recorded galkerecept when neither the values of the assedévegtor the assets transferred in non-
monetary exchanges are determinable within reaseftiatits. Valuation techniques consistent with tharket approach, income approach
and/or cost approach are used to measure fair.vafuestimate of fair value can be affected by masgumptions that require
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significant judgment. For example, the income apphogenerally requires assumptions related topgpeoariate business model to be used to
estimate cash flows, total addressable marketingrend share forecasts, competition, technologpl@scence, future tax rates and discount
rates. Our estimate of the fair value of certaBets or our conclusion that the value of certasets is not reliably estimable, may differ
materially from that determined by others who uieicnt assumptions or utilize different businessdels. New information may arise in the
future that affects our fair value estimates anal¢oesult in adjustments to our estimates in thare, which could have an adverse impact on
our results of operations.

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atsare tested annually for impairment and in imtepieriods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying amounts may be impghiteong-lived assets, such as property and equiparghintangible assets subject to
amortization, are reviewed for impairment when ¢hisrevidence that events or changes in circumssainclicate that the carrying amount o
asset or asset group may not be recoverable. @gnjents regarding the existence of impairment atdis and future cash flows related to
goodwill and other intangible assets are basedpenational performance of our businesses, markeditions and other factors. Although th
are inherent uncertainties in this assessment gsotige estimates and assumptions we use, inclediimgates of future cash flows, volumes,
market penetration and discount rates, are consigfith our internal planning. If these estimatesheir related assumptions change in the
future, we may be required to record an impairnokiarge on all or a portion of our goodwill and athrtangible assets. Furthermore, we
cannot predict the occurrence of future impairmeggering events nor the impact such events ntigle on our reported asset values. Future
events could cause us to conclude that impairnmelitators exist and that goodwill or other intangissets associated with our acquired
businesses are impaired. Any resulting impairmesd tould have an adverse impact on our finanositipn and results of operations. During
fiscal 2011, we recorded a $114 million goodwill impairmengaoye related to our Firethorn division due to therating performance of a n¢
product application falling significantly short ekpectations.

We hold investments in marketable securities, iticlg equity securities, non-investment-grade debtsties, equity and debt mutual and
exchange-traded funds, corporate bonds and nateiola rate securities and mortgage- and asseteldasdcurities. The fair value of these
investments totaled $15.5 hillion at September228,1 , with increases and decreases in fair vatnemglly recorded through stockholders’
equity as other comprehensive income or loss. Werdempairment charges through the statement efadjpns when we believe an
investment has experienced a decline that is ttizer temporary. The determination that a decliraher than temporary is subjective and
influenced by many factors. In addition, the fedtues of our strategic investments may be subjestibstantial quarterly and annual
fluctuations and to significant market volatilikdverse changes in market conditions or poor opegaiesults of investees could result in
losses or an inability to recover the carrying eadti the investments, thereby requiring impairnadratrges. When assessing these investments
for an other-than-temporary decline in value, wesider such factors as, among other things, homifgignt the decline in value is as a
percentage of the original cost; how long the mavkéue of the investment has been below its oalggost; the extent of the general decline in
prices or an increase in the default or recovetgsraf securities in an asset class; negative swerth as a bankruptcy filing or a need to raise
capital or seek financial support from the governtme others; the performance and pricing of thegtee’s securities in relation to the
securities of its competitors within the industndahe market in general; and analyst recommenugtias applicable. We also review the
financial statements of the investee to deternfitigei investee is experiencing financial difficalti If we determine that a security price decline
is other than temporary, we may record an impaitriess, which could have an adverse impact on esults of operations. During fiscal
2011, 2010 and 2009 , we recorded $39 million,1%hlllion and $743 million, respectively, in netpairment losses on our investments in
marketable securities.

Share-Based Compensation. Share-based compensation expense recognized digiag2011 , 2010 and 2009 was $821 million,
$614 million and $584 million, respectively. Sh@s&sed compensation is measured at the grant dateth® acquisition date for assumed
awards, based on the estimated fair value of thercand is recognized as expense over the reqa@itéce period. We estimate the fair value
of stock option awards granted using a lattice tmiad option-pricing model and the fair value ofk@ption awards assumed using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model. Accordingly, the faddue of an option award as determined using aiompricing model is affected by our
stock price on the valuation date as well as assongregarding a number of complex and subjeataréables. These variables include, but
are not limited to, our expected stock price véitgtover the term of the awards, actual and prigid@employee stock option exercise behav
risk-free interest rates and expected dividends plgposes of estimating the fair value of stockas, we used the implied volatility of
market-traded options in our stock for the expewotdtility assumption input to the option-pricingpdel. The assumption inputs related to
employee exercise behavior include estimates optis¢-vest forfeiture rate and suboptimal exerfas¢ors, which are based on historical
experience. Beginning in fiscal 2010 , we begaisdae restricted stock units (RSUs) to employer®eSsuch time, the number of stock
options granted to employees has decreased, aeapeet this trend to continue into the foreseeflilae. We estimate the fair value of RSUs
based on the fair value of the underlying stoclthendate of grant or date the awards are assufm@&Us do not have the right to participat
dividends, the fair value is discounted by thedkvid yield. Judgment is required in estimatingaimunt of share-based awards that are
expected to be forfeited. We estimate the forfeitate based on historical experience. To the ertamactual forfeiture rate is different from
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our estimate, share-based compensation expendpisea accordingly.

Income Taxes. Our income tax returns are based on calculatiodsaasaumptions that are subject to examination éyriternal Revenue
Service (IRS) and other tax authorities. In additihe calculation of our tax liabilities involvdealing with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations. We recognize liabilities incertain tax positions based on a two-stepga®cThe first step is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the whtgf available evidence indicates that it is mideely than not that the position will be
sustained on audit, including resolution of relaa@geals or litigation processes, if any. The sdateap is to measure the tax benefit as the
largest amount that is more than 50% likely of bei@alized upon settlement. While we believe weeteppropriate support for the positions
taken on our tax returns, we regularly assessdtenfial outcomes of these examinations and amydwxaminations for the current or prior
years in determining the adequacy of our proviswrincome taxes. We continually assess the likelthand amount of potential adjustme
and adjust the income tax provision, income taxa@ple and deferred taxes in the period in whiehfaélets that give rise to a revision become
known. Although we believe that the estimates asdimptions supporting our assessments are reaspadplstments could be materially
different from those that are reflected in histatimcome tax provisions and recorded assets abdifies. We are participating in the IRS
Compliance Assurance Process program whereby weagndto agree with the IRS on the treatment afalles prior to filing our federal
return. A benefit of participation in this prograsthat post-filing adjustments by the IRS are ldsaly to occur.

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceedlasn historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, the expected tinoifthe reversals of existing temporary differenaad the implementation of tax-planning
strategies. At September 25, 2011 , net deferpeddsets were $2.7 billion, which included a vabratllowance of $98 million. If we are
unable to generate sufficient future taxable incameertain tax jurisdictions, or if there is a @@l change in the time period within which the
underlying temporary differences become taxabléentuctible, we could be required to increase theat@n allowance against our deferred
tax assets which could result in an increase ireffective tax rate and an adverse impact on ojperatsults.

We can only use net operating losses to offsebtaxacome of certain legal entities in certain jlaxsdictions. At September 25, 2011 , we
had unused federal, state and foreign net operkigsgs of $167 million, $352 million and $76 naili respectively. Based upon our
assessments of projected future taxable incoméoasds and historical losses incurred by thes@emtive expect that the future taxable
income of the entities in these tax jurisdictiori mot be sufficient to utilize the net operatitaggses we have incurred through fiscal 2011.
Therefore, we have provided a $29 million valuatidlowance for these net operating losses. Sigmfijudgment is required to forecast the
timing and amount of future taxable income in derfarisdictions. Adjustments to our valuation alance based on changes to our forecast of
taxable income are reflected in the period the ghas made.

We consider the operating earnings of certain noited States subsidiaries to be indefinitely ingdstutside the United States based on
estimates that future domestic cash generatiorb&iBufficient to meet future domestic cash nedéishave not recorded a deferred tax liak
of approximately $4.7 billion related to the UnitBthtes federal and state income taxes and fovétpholding taxes on approximately
$13.5 billion of undistributed earnings of foreigubsidiaries indefinitely invested outside the BdiStates. Should we decide to repatriate the
foreign earnings, we would have to adjust the inedax provision in the period we determined thatehrnings will no longer be indefinitely
invested outside the United States.

Litigation. We are currently involved in certain legal procegdi Although there can be no assurance that urgbleoutcomes in any of
these matters would not have a material adversetedh our operating results, liquidity or finari@asition, we believe the claims are without
merit and intend to vigorously defend the actidfve. estimate the range of liability related to pegditigation where the amount and range of
loss can be estimated. We record our best estiofi@éoss when the loss is considered probable.révadiability is probable and there is a
range of estimated loss with no best estimateanahge, we record the minimum estimated liabitated to the claim. As additional
information becomes available, we assess the patdéiability related to our pending litigation amdvise our estimates. Revisions in our
estimates of the potential liability could mategiampact our results of operations. For example,recorded a $783 million charge during
fiscal 2009 in connection with a litigation settlent related to the Settlement and Patent LicendédNam-Assert Agreement with Broadcom.
We are engaged in numerous other legal actions@iiis the ordinary course of our business and|enthiere can be no assurance, we believe
that the ultimate outcome of these actions will mte a material adverse effect on our operatisglt® liquidity or financial position.

Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010

Revenues. Total revenues for fiscal 2011 were $14.96 billioompared to $10.98 billion for fiscal 2010 . Rewes from two customers of
our QCT and QTL segments (each of whom accountech@me than 10% of our consolidated revenues fepériod) comprised approximat:
26% and 25% in aggregate of total consolidatedmaee in fiscal 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Revenues from sales of equipment and servicessizalf2011 were $9.22 billion, compared to $6.9Ifdoi for fiscal
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2010 . The increase in revenues from sales of ewgnp and services was primarily due to a $2.18hilincrease in QCT equipment and
services revenues. Licensing revenues were $5liightin fiscal 2011 , compared to $4.01 billionfiacal 2010 . The increase in licensing
revenues was primarily due to a $1.76 billion imsein QTL revenues.

Cost of Equipment and Services. Cost of equipment and services revenues for fia@dal was $4.88 billion, compared to $3.30 billion f
fiscal 2010 . Cost of equipment and services regsm@ms a percentage of equipment and services reveras 53% for fiscal 201, lcompared t
47% for fiscal 2010 . The decrease in margin peeggnwas primarily attributable to a decrease iIT @&ss margin percentage and the effect
of $137 million in charges from the recognitiontieé step-up of inventories to fair value and amzatton of intangible assets related to the
acquisition of Atheros in fiscal 2011 . Cost of goment and services revenues included $67 millioshiare-based compensation in fiscal
2011 , compared to $41 million in fiscal 2010 . Caisequipment and services revenues as a pereenfagjuipment and services revenues
may fluctuate in future periods depending on the ofiproducts sold and services provided, competitiricing, new product introduction co
and other factors.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for fiscal @@td $3.00 billion or 20% of revenues, comp.
to $2.45 billion or 22% of revenues for fiscal 2QIhe dollar increase was primarily attributaldeat$403 million increase in costs related to
the development of integrated circuit products trgeneration technologies and other initiativesupport the acceleration of advanced wire
products and services, including lower-cost devites integration of wireless with consumer elegize and computing, the convergence of
multiband, multimode, multinetwork products andhtealogies, third-party operating systems and sesvlatforms. The percentage decrease
was primarily attributable to the 36% increasedwenues relative to the 22% increase in cost. Refsead development expenses for fiscal
2011 included share-based compensation of $39bmitompared to $293 million in fiscal 2010 .

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses fmafi2011 were $1.95 billion or 13% of
revenues, compared to $1.50 billion or 14% of renesrfor fiscal 2010 . Selling, general and admiatste expenses for fiscal 2010 included a
$62 million gain on the sale of our Australia spewt license. The remaining dollar increase was grily attributable to a $142 million
increase in employee-related expenses, a $66 millicrease in depreciation and amortization expgramarily attributable to the acquisition
of Atheros, a $44 million increase in charitablatibutions, primarily resulting from the establisént of the Qualcomm Charitable
Foundation in fiscal 2011, and a $21 million in@e#&n outside services. Selling, general and aditnaiive expenses for fiscal 2011 included
share-based compensation of $349 million, comper&263 million in fiscal 2010 .

Other Operating Expenses. We recorded a $114 million goodwill impairment ayarelated to our Firethorn division due to therafing
performance of a new product application fallingngiicantly short of expectations in fiscal 2011 .

Net | nvestment Income. Net investment income was $661 million for fisc@ll2 , compared to $766 million for fiscal 2010 eTiet
decrease was comprised as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 25, September 26,
2011 2010 Change

Interest and dividend income:

Corporate and other segments $ 48C $ 52z % (42

Qsl 20 8 $ 12
Interest expense (114 (43) (71
Net realized gains on investments:

Corporate and other segments 33t 37¢ (44)

Qsl 2 26 (249)
Net impairment losses on investments:

Corporate and other segments (39) (120) 71

Qsl (13 (15) 2
(Losses) gains on derivative instruments (©)] 3 (6)
Equity in losses of investees @) 4) ?3)

$ 661 $ 76€ S (205)

The increase in interest expense is primarilylaiteble to the bank loans related to the BWA spectivon in the India auction in June
2010. The decrease in net impairment losses ostiments is due to an overall increase in marketsdgarities values compared to the prior
fiscal year.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense was $1.1 billion for fiscal 20t@mpared to $973 million for fiscal 2010 . The
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annual effective tax rate was 20% for fiscal 20tdmpared to 22% for fiscal 2010 . During the faatrter of fiscal 2011, the United States
government extended the federal research and geweltt tax credit to include qualified research exjiteres paid or incurred after December
31, 2009 and before January 1, 2012. We recordaxl lrenefit of $32 million related to fiscal 20X0fiscal 2011 from the retroactive extens

of this credit. Additionally, in fiscal 2011, weaarded a tax benefit of $44 million related to gne@ment reached on a component of our fiscal
2006 through fiscal 2010 state tax returns. Thaiaheffective tax rate for fiscal 2010 included tepense of approximately $137 million that
arose because certain deferred revenue was tardigeal 2010, but the resulting deferred tax assk reverse in future years when our state
tax rate will be lower as a result of California tagislation enacted in 2009.

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 o¥®2@as less than the United States federal statuddeyprimarily due to benefits of 19%
related to foreign earnings taxed at less tharthieed States federal rate and benefits of 3%edl&t the research and development tax credit,
partially offset by state taxes of 5% and tax exeenf 1% related to the valuation of deferred tssets to reflect changes in California law.

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009

Revenues. Total revenues for fiscal 2010 were $10.98 billioompared to $10.39 billion for fiscal 2009 . Rewes from two customers of
our QCT and QTL segments (each of whom accountechfwe than 10% of our consolidated revenues ptriod) comprised approximat:
25% and 31% in aggregate of total consolidatedmase in fiscal 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

Revenues from sales of equipment and servicessicalf2010 were $6.97 billion, compared to $6.44doi for fiscal 2009 . The increase in
revenues from sales of equipment and services viasuply due to a $541 million increase in QCT reues. Licensing revenues were $4.01
billion in fiscal 2010 , compared to $3.95 billianfiscal 2009 . The increase in licensing revenuas primarily due to a $56 million increase
in QTL revenues.

Cost of Equipment and Services. Cost of equipment and services revenues for fia@a0 was $3.30 billion, compared to $3.03 billion f
fiscal 2009 . Cost of equipment and services regsras a percentage of equipment and services reveras 47% for both fiscal 2010 and
2009 . The margin percentage was negatively imgaunyehe effect of an increase in costs relatesltoQMT division, which was offset by an
increase in QCT gross margin percentage. Costwpawent and services revenues included $41 milisshare-based compensation in fiscal
2010 , compared to $40 million for fiscal 2009 .

Research and Development Expenses. For fiscal 2010 , research and development expenses$2.45 billion or 22% of revenues,
compared to $2.35 billion or 23% of revenues fecdi 2009 . The dollar increase is primarily atitéble to a $156 million increase in costs
related to the development of integrated circuitdpicts, next generation CDMA and OFDMA technologiad other initiatives to support the
acceleration of advanced wireless products andcesvThe increase in research and developmenhsgpavas partially offset by a $69
million decrease in costs primarily related to deelopment of our asset-tracking products andaenand Brew products. Research and
development expenses for fiscal 2010 included shased compensation of $293 million, compared #23$8illion in fiscal 2009 .

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. For fiscal 2010 , selling, general and administegxpenses were $1.50 billion or 14% of
revenues, compared to $1.46 billion or 14% of renessrfor fiscal 2009 . The dollar increase was prilpnattributable to a $56 million increase
in patent-related costs, a $25 million increaseniployee-related expenses and a $16 million inergaselling and marketing expenses,
partially offset by a $62 million gain on the saleour Australia spectrum license. Selling, genarad administrative expenses for fiscal 2010
included share-based compensation of $263 miltompared to $252 million in fiscal 2009 .

Other Operating Expenses. Operating expenses for fiscal 2009 included a $7Bn charge in connection with the Settlemend &atent
License and Non-Assert Agreement with Broadcomaf@30 million fine levied by the KFTC.

Net | nvestment Income (Loss). Net investment income was $766 million for fiscll® , compared to net investment loss of $139 anilli
for fiscal 2009 . The net increase was primarilynpoised as follows (in millions):
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Year Ended
September 26, September 27,

2010 2009 Change

Interest and dividend income:

Corporate and other segments $ 52z % 512  $ 9

Qsl 8 3 5
Interest expense (43) (13) (30)
Net realized gains on investments:

Corporate and other segments 37¢ 107 272

Qsl 26 30 4)
Net impairment losses on investments:

Corporate and other segments (110 (734 624

Qsl (15 (29 14
Gains on derivative instruments 3 1 2
Equity in losses of investees 4) a7 13

$ 76€ S (139 $ 90t

During fiscal 2010, we recorded lower impairmerstsies and higher realized gains on marketable siesygompared to fiscal 2009.
Depressed security values caused by a major disrujot the United States and foreign financial neaskimpacted our results in fiscal 2009
continued to cause impairment losses in fiscal 20L0to a much lesser extent. The increase imestexpense was primarily attributable tc
bank loans related to the BWA spectrum won in tiedd auction in June 2010.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense was $973 million for fiscal 20t0mpared to $611 million for fiscal 2009he annual effecti
tax rate was 22% for fiscal 2010 , compared to 28ffiscal 2009 . The annual effective tax rateffscal 2010 was lower than fiscal 2009
primarily as a result of the net decrease in vidnadllowance on the deferred tax asset relatedpital losses and an increase in tax benefits
related to foreign earnings taxed at less tharthieed States federal rate, partially offset byearéase in tax benefit related to tax audits sk
during the year and a decrease in research andbgevent tax credits.

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal 2048s 22% and only reflected the United States fédesaarch and development credits genel
through December 31, 2009, the date on which thpired. The annual effective tax rate for fiscal @®f 22% was less than the United States
federal statutory rate primarily due to benefit20% related to foreign earnings taxed at less thatJnited States federal rate, partially offset
by state taxes of 5% and tax expense of 4% retatéte valuation of deferred tax assets to refibetnges in California law, primarily deferred
revenue that was taxable in fiscal 2010 , but fbiclv the resulting deferred tax asset will revenskiture years when our state tax rate will be
lower.

Our Segment Results for Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fial 2010

The following should be read in conjunction witle tfiscal 2011 and 2010 financial results for eagorting segment. See “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 10 — Segm&rmation.”

QCT Segment. QCT revenues for fiscal 2011 were $8.86 billiommpared to $6.70 billion for fiscal 2010 . Equipment services
revenues, mostly related to sales of MSM and acemyipg RF and PM integrated circuits, were $8.8lohifor fiscal 2011 , compared to
$6.47 billion for fiscal 2010 . The increase in goment and services revenues resulted primarilynfeo$1.48 billion increase related to higher
unit shipments, a $391 million increase relatedgaies of connectivity products, primarily resultingm the acquisition of Atheros in the third
quarter of fiscal 2011, and a $214 million increesated to the net effects of changes in produktand lower selling prices of such products.
Approximately 483 million MSM integrated circuitsene sold during fiscal 2011 (excluding the secor8Mfor customers who built devices
with two MSMs starting in fiscal 2011), comparedagproximately 399 million in fiscal 2010 .

QCT earnings before taxes for fiscal 2011 were &bilion, compared to $1.69 billion for fiscal 201 The increase in QCT earnings
before taxes was primarily attributable to the é@se in revenues, partially offset by a $358 nmilliecrease in research and development
expenses and a $143 million increase in sellingeg® and administrative expenses. QCT operatiognie as a percentage of revenues
(operating margin percentage) was 23% in fiscall20dompared to 25% in fiscal 2010 . The decreasperating margin percentage was
primarily due to a decrease in gross margin peacgntpartially offset by the effect of a higherrease in QCT revenues relative to the
increases in research and development expensesehind, general and administrative expenses. Q@$sgmargin percentage decreased as a
result of the net effects of lower average selling
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prices, unfavorable product mix and higher prodwgiport costs, partially offset by a decrease aragye unit costs.

QCT inventories increased by 48% in fiscal 2011fi$481 million to $714 million primarily due to tkldition of inventories from the
acquisition of Atheros and an increase in work+iogess and finished goods related to growth obtieness and the timing of inventory
builds.

QTL Segment. QTL revenues for fiscal 2011 were $5.42 billionpgared to $3.66 billion for fiscal 2010 . Duringeteecond quarter of
fiscal 2011, we entered into agreements with twerlsees to settle ongoing disputes, including bitration proceeding with Panasonic, and
recorded $401 million in revenues related to pgioarters. The remaining $1.36 billion increaseeivenues during fiscal 2011 was primarily
due to an increase in sales of CDMA-based devigdiednsees and higher average royalties per ani€DMA-based devices, partially offset
by the effect of $71 million that was included iTQrevenues in fiscal 2010 but was attributablédoal 2009 due to discussions regarding a
license agreement that was signed in the firsttquaf fiscal 2010. QTL earnings before taxes fscdl 2011 were $4.75 billion, compared to
$3.02 billion for fiscal 2010 . QTL operating margiercentage was 88% in fiscal 2011 , compare®% i fiscal 201Q The increases in Q1
earnings before taxes and operating margin pergemtare attributable to the 48% increase in licemsévenues relative to a 5% increase in
operating expenses.

QWI Segment. QWI revenues for fiscal 2011 were $656 million, gared to $628 million for fiscal 2010 . Revenues@ased primarily
due to increases in QGOV and QES revenues of $iomand $20 million, respectively, partially offsby a $23 million decrease in QIS
revenues. The increase in QGOV revenues was phnatiibutable to growth in customer funded depah@nt contracts, and the increase in
QES revenues was primarily attributable to highst shipments of our asset-tracking products. Téerease in QIS revenues was primarily
attributable to a decrease in Brew revenues reguitom lower consumer demand. QWI loss beforegdaefiscal 2011 was $152 million,
compared to earnings before taxes of $12 milliarfikzal 2010 . QWI operating margin percentage megative in fiscal 2011 , compared to a
1% operating margin in fiscal 2010 . The decre&s€¥VI| earnings before taxes and operating marginegntage were primarily attributable to
$120 million in impairment charges related to dertssets of our Firethorn division, including $If#lion in goodwill impairment, and the
operating loss of our QIS division.

QSI Segment . QSI loss before taxes from continuing operatimndiscal 2011 was $132 million, compared to eagsi before taxes from
continuing operations of $7 million for fiscal 201QSI earnings before taxes from continuing openatfor fiscal 2010 included a $62 million
gain on the sale of our Australia spectrum liceii$& remaining $77 million increase in QS| lossobeftaxes from continuing operations for
fiscal 2011 was primarily due to a $72 million iease in interest expense attributable to bank Ioglaged to the BWA spectrum won in the
India auction in June 2010.

Our Segment Results for Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fial 2009

The following should be read in conjunction witle tfiscal 2010 and 2009 financial results for eagorting segment. See “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 10 — Segm&rmation.”

QCT Segment. QCT revenues for fiscal 2010 were $6.70 billiormpared to $6.14 billion for fiscal 2009 . Equipment services
revenues, mostly related to sales of MSM and acemyipg RF and PM integrated circuits, were $6.4Ifohifor fiscal 2010 , compared to
$5.93 billion for fiscal 2009 . The increase in gument and services revenues resulted primarilynfao$1.25 billion increase related to higher
unit shipments, partially offset by a decrease®#f3million related to the net effects of changeprioduct mix and the average selling price
such products. Approximately 399 million MSM intatgd circuits were sold during fiscal 2010 , coneplaio approximately 317 million for
fiscal 2009 . The chipset volume in fiscal 2009 wapacted by the slowdown in the worldwide econdhmt caused contraction in the CDMA-
based channel inventory and resulted in lower dehi@anCDMA-based MSM integrated chips.

QCT earnings before taxes for fiscal 2010 were $bibion, compared to $1.44 billion for fiscal 200The increase in QCT earnings be:
taxes was primarily attributable to the increaseeirenues, partially offset by an increase in nedeand development expenses. QCT operating
income as a percentage of revenues (operating mpegcentage) was 25% in fiscal 2010 , comparé&8% in fiscal 2009 . The increase in
QCT operating margin percentage was primarily duantincrease in gross margin percentage and eaterin selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revehives primarily by the increase in revenues. £dss margin percentage increased as a
result of the net effects of a decrease in aveuadgecosts, lower average selling prices and faveraroduct mix.

QTL Segment. QTL revenues for fiscal 2010 were $3.66 billionpgrared to $3.61 billion for fiscal 2009 . Revenireiscal 2010includec
$71 million attributable to fiscal 2009 that haeéyipusly not been recognized due to discussiorardétg a license agreement that was signed
in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 . QTL earnirgfore taxes for fiscal 2010 were $3.02 billionmgared to $3.07 billion for fiscal 2009 . QTL
operating margin percentage was 83% in the fisga02 compared to 85% in fiscal 2009 . The deceas®TL earnings before taxes and
operating margin percentage were primarily attabig to a higher increase in patent-related cetdsive to the increase in licensing revenues.

QWI Segment. QWI revenues for fiscal 2010 were $628 million, gared to $641 million for fiscal 2009 . Revenues
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decreased primarily due to a $56 million decreas@IE revenues, partially offset by a $31 millioeriease in QES revenues. The decrease in
QIS revenues was primarily attributable to a $3Bioni decrease in QChat revenues resulting fromekesed development efforts under the
licensing agreement with Sprint and a $16 milli@eikase in Brew revenues resulting from lower coeswdemand. The increase in QES
revenues was primarily attributable to a $58 millincrease in equipment revenue resulting fromdrigiit shipments, partially offset by a ¢
million decrease in messaging and other servioesee. QWI earnings before taxes for fiscal 2016evid.2 million, compared to $20 million
for fiscal 2009 . The decrease in QWI earnings ileefaxes was primarily attributable to the decréasevenues, partially offset by a decrease
in research and development expenses. QWI openaimgin percentage was 1% in fiscal 2010 , comptré&ds in fiscal 2009 . The decrease
in QWI operating margin percentage was primarityilaatable to a decrease in QIS gross margin péagen partially offset by the decrease in
research and development expenses.

QSl Segment . QSI earnings before taxes from continuing operatifor fiscal 2010 were $7 million, compared tssiefore taxes from
continuing operations of $54 million for fiscal ZD0The increase in QS| earnings before taxes wamply due to a $62 million gain on the
sale of our Australia spectrum license.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existiogsh, cash equivalents and marketable secuxtish, generated from operations and
proceeds from the issuance of common stock undestoak option and employee stock purchase plaashQash equivalents and marketable
securities were $20.9 billion at September 25, 2Mriincrease of $2.5 billion from September Z8,®. This increase included cash provided
by operating activities of $4.9 billion and procedmbm the issuance of common stock under our ggoinpensation plans of $2.6 billion,
partially offset by cash used to acquire Athero$3ifl billion, net of cash acquired. Our cash, @ghivalents and marketable securities at
September 25, 2011 consisted of $5.7 billion helhestically and $15.2 billion held by foreign suliaiies. Of the amount of cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities held by ongidn subsidiaries at September 25, 2011 , $1iBi&dnbwould be subject to material tax
effects if repatriated. Due to tax and accountiogsiderations, we derive liquidity for operatiomgmarily from domestic cash flow and
investments held domestically.

During fiscal 2011, we repurchased 2,878,000 shafresr common stock for $142 million. In conneatiwith the stock repurchase
program, we have three put options outstandind) ipiration dates in fiscal 2012, that may requséo repurchase an aggregate of
11,800,000 shares of our common stock upon exef@isk586 million, which would result in an avergggce per share of $49.64. Any shares
repurchased are retired. At September 25, 201 firpapnately $1.0 billion remained authorized fopuechase under our stock repurchase
program, net of put options outstanding. The stegkirchase program has no expiration date. Sinpgte®der 25, 2011, we have repurchased
2,046,000 shares of our common stock for $99 milligVe continue to evaluate repurchases undeptbgram subject to capital availability
and our view that such repurchases are in theittesest of our stockholders.

We paid dividends totaling $1.3 billion, $1.2 holti and $1.1 billion, or $0.81, $0.72 and $0.66qeenmon share, during fiscal 2011 , 2010
and 2009 , respectively. On March 8, 2011, we anoed an increase in our quarterly cash dividendspare of common stock from $0.190 to
$0.215. We announced cash dividends totaling $38ibm or $0.215 per share, during the fourth deaof fiscal 2011 , which were paid on
September 23, 2011. On October 11, 2011, we aneduacash dividend of $0.215 per share on our canstark, payable on December 21,
2011 to stockholders of record as of November B212We intend to continue to use cash dividendsragans of returning capital to
stockholders, subject to capital availability and view that cash dividends are in the best intsrekour stockholders.

Accounts receivable increased 36% during fiscall20Days sales outstanding, on a consolidated bhasi® 22 days at both September 25,
2011 and September 26, 201Dhe increase in accounts receivable was primdtily/to growth in the QCT business and the accaentivabl
relating to Atheros, which were acquired in thedhjuarter of fiscal 2011.

We believe our current cash and cash equivalerdsgatable securities and our expected cash flovergéad from operations will provide
us with flexibility and satisfy our working and @hcapital requirements over the next fiscal year lzeyond based on our current business
plans.

e Our research and development expenditures wafelflllion and $2.5 billion in fiscal 2011 and 2D lrespectively, and we expect to
continue to invest heavily in research and devekmrfor new technologies, applications and servicesoice and data
communications, primarily in the wireless industry.

» Capital expenditures were $593 million and $4##ion in fiscal 2011 and 2010 , respectively. Afticipate that capital expenditures
will be higher in fiscal 2012 as compared to fis2@l1 , primarily due to estimated capital expaméis of more than $600 million in
fiscal 2012 related to the continued constructiba new manufacturing facility in Taiwan for our @Mlivision. The initial phase of
the facility is primarily being funded using caskldby foreign subsidiaries, and the facility ipegted to be operational in fiscal
2012. Future capital expenditures may also be itegday transactions that are currently not foreshst
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Our purchase obligations for fiscal 2012, sorheluich relate to research and development actiwitind capital expenditures, totaled
$1.9 billion at September 25, 2011 .

The acquisition of Atheros was more significtiretn others we have made in the past. We expedriinue making strategic
investments and acquisitions, the amounts of wbiahd vary significantly, to open new opportunitfes our technologies, obtain
development resources, grow our patent portfolipussue new business.

The $994 million in loans related to the BWA spam won in India are due and payable in full ied@mber 2012 and bear interest at
an annual rate of 10%, which is based on the higheese rate among the bank lenders and reset duapies 0.25% with interest
payments due monthly. As of September 25, 201 hudlbne of the lenders had the right to demanggyment of its portion of the
loans outstanding on December 15, 2011 subjectffiient prior written notice. As a result, thealts were classified as a component
of current liabilities. The date by which thoseders were required to have given notice has nowauhsnd those lenders can no
longer demand prepayment. One remaining lendedearand prepayment of its portion of the loans aating on February 28, 2012
($152 million at September 25, 2011) if noticeiigep by December 15, 2011. In September 2011, eived a letter from the
Government of India’s Department of Telecommunaai (DoT) notifying us that our applications toaibtlicenses to utilize the
spectrum had been rejected. In response, we fitiion with the Telecom Disputes Settlement Apgellate Tribunal seeking to
overturn this letter. If the DoT’s rejection of $uapplications were to be considered an eventfafudte the bank lenders could declare
the loans due and payable immediately. We havevestevaivers from each of the bank lenders relédetiis matter until at least

April 1, 2012, conditioned upon our continuing targue our legal rights in this matter, and agreéiag any default will be deemed
cured under certain circumstances.

Contractual Obligations / Off-Balance Sheet Arrangenents

We have no significant contractual obligations fdliy recorded on our consolidated balance sheetslly disclosed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. We have no riahteff-balance sheet arrangements as definedkn3B3(a)(4)(ii).

At September 25, 2011 , our outstanding contracthBdjations included (in millions):

Contractual Obligations
Payments Due By Fiscal Period

No
Beyond Expiration
Total 2012 2013-2014 2015-2016 2016 Date
Purchase obligatiort8 $ 2,09 $ 1,92:  $ 10z $ 64 $ 9 $ —
Loans payabl& 1,12:° 10¢ 1,01¢ — — —
Operating lease obligations 464 11€ 10¢ 58 181 —
Capital lease obligatiort3 39t 12 25 27 331 —
Equity funding commitmenté 2 — — — — 2
Other long-term liabilitie$© 172 4 15t 13 — 1
Total contractual obligations $ 425 % 2,160 3 1,40¢  $ 162 $ 521 $ 3

()]
@

(©)]

(4)

©)

(6)

Total purchase obligations include $1.4 billiorcommitments to purchase integrated circuit produgntories.

Amounts include principal and interest. The loaresgayable in Indian rupees and bear interest ahanal rate based on the highest
rate among the bank lenders, which is reset quarfdus 0.25% (10% at September 25, 2011). Onédenan demand prepayment of
its portion of the loans outstanding on February2fR2 ($152 million at September 25, 2011) if oefis given by December 15,
2011. We have received conditional waivers fromhezfdhe bank lenders until at least April 1, 20A2.a result of these items, the
due date for all or a portion of the loans payaileld be accelerated.

Amounts represent future minimum lease paymentsdirrg interest payments. Capital lease obligatemesincluded in other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet gt&aber 25, 2011 .

These commitments do not have fixed funding datelsase subject to certain conditions. Commitmeepsasent the maximum
amounts to be financed or funded under these araegts; actual financing or funding may be in lesseounts or not at all.

Certain long-term liabilities reflected on our bada sheet, such as unearned revenues, are nateckgethis table because they do
not require cash settlement in the future. Othegiterm liabilities as presented in this table udd the related current portions.

Our consolidated balance sheet at September 25, i@6tlded a $38 million noncurrent liability foncertain tax
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positions, all of which may result in cash paymditte future payments related to uncertain tax jwrsthave not been presented in
table above due to the uncertainty of the amoumdstianing of cash settlement with the taxing auitiies.

Additional information regarding our financial coritments at September 25, 2011 is provided in thestw our consolidated financial
statements. See “Notes to Consolidated Financé&é®tents, Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies.”

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures @éout Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk. We invest a portion of our cash in a number of diifeed investment- and non-investment-grade figad floating rate
securities, consisting of cash equivalents, malitetdebt securities and debt mutual funds. Chamgtee general level of United States inte
rates can affect the principal values and yieldfixed interest-bearing securities. If intereserain the general economy were to rise rapidly in
a short period of time, our fixed interest-bearsegurities could lose value. When the general angngeakens significantly, the credit profile,
financial strength and growth prospects of cerissners of interest-bearing securities held iniouestment portfolios may deteriorate, and our
interest-bearing securities may lose value eitbeporarily or other than temporarily. We may impérinvestment strategies of different
types with varying duration and risk/return tradésthat do not perform well.

The following table provides information about duterest-bearing cash and cash equivalents, ménketacurities and loans payable that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. THe mbsents principal cash flows, weighted-avesaglel at cost and contractual maturity dates.
Additionally, we have assumed that the interestibhgasecurities are similar enough within the sfiedicategories to aggregate the securities
for presentation purposes.

Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Rates
(Dollars in millions)

No Single
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Maturity Total
Fixed interest-bearing securities:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2131 $ — — $ — $ — % — $ — $ 2131
Interest rate 0.2%
Marketable securities:
Investment grade $ 144t $ 127 % 7371 $ 254 % 404 $ 52z $ 2,032 $ 6,66
Interest rate 1.1% 1.6% 3.2% 3.C% 3.C% 5.8% 1.5%
Non-investment grade $ 3 3 12 % 30 % 82 $ 13t $ 772 $ 12 $ 1,04¢
Interest rate 6.7% 7.8% 9.4% 9.4% 8.C% 8.C% 0.7%
Floating interest-bearing securities:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,49 % — % — 3 — 3 — 3 —  $ — $ 249
Interest rate 0.04%
Marketable securities:
Investment grade $ 342  $ 572 $ 566 $ O 25 % 38¢ $ 574 $ 2,47¢
Interest rate 0.€% 0.7% 1.C% 5.5% 2.7% 8.€% 1.9%
Non-investment grade $ 12 % 60 $ 202 $ 13 % 18¢ % 92 $ 111 $ 2,62¢
Interest rate 6.2% 5.7% 6.2% 6.2% 5.C% 5.€% 4.5%
Loans payablé& $ — 3 994 ¢ — 3 — 3 — 3 — — 8 994
Floating interest rate 10.(%

WDenominated in Indian rupees.

Cash and cash equivalents and marketable secwaitagcorded at fair value. The loans payablecqipate fair value. As of September
25, 2011, all but one of the lenders of the loaagaple had the right to demand prepayment of itsgroof the loans outstanding on December
15, 2011, subject to sufficient prior written netid he date by which those lenders were requiré@dve given notice has now passed, and -
lenders can no longer demand prepayment. One rergdender can demand prepayment of its portiothefloans outstanding on February
2012 ($152 million at September 25, 2011) if not&cgiven by December 15, 2011. We have receiveditional waivers from each of the
bank lenders until at least April 1, 2012. As aulesf these items, the due date for all or a portvf the loans payable could be accelerated.
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Equity Price Risk. We hold a diversified marketable securities portfthat includes equity securities and equity congteéd and exchange-
traded fund shares that are subject to equity pisée We have made investments in marketable ggeiturities of companies of varying size,
style, industry and geography, and changes in tmest allocations may affect the price volatilifiyowur investments. A 10% decrease in the
market price of our marketable equity securitied aquity mutual fund and exchange-traded fund shar&eptember 25, 2011 would cause a
decrease in the carrying amounts of these secudfi§263 million. At September 25, 2011 , groseealized losses of our marketable equity
securities and equity mutual and exchange-traded $hares were $70 million. Although we considesthunrealized losses to be temporary,
there is a risk that we may incur net other-thangerary impairment charges or realized losses ewdlues of these securities if they do not
recover in value within a reasonable period.

In connection with our stock repurchase programmag sell put options that require us to repurclsisees of our common stock at fixed
prices. These written put options subject us tdteguice risk. At September 25, 2011 , we had ¢hwatstanding put options, enabling holders
to sell 11,800,000 shares of our common stock @encise for approximately $586 million. The putiop liabilities, with a fair value of $80
million at September 25, 2011 , were included tmeotcurrent liabilities. If the fair value of ouormmon stock at September 25, 2011 decreasec
by 15%, the amount required to physically settiepht options would exceed the fair value of theret by $12 million, net of the $75 million
in premiums received.

Foreign Exchange Risk. We manage our exposure to foreign exchange madkat wwhen deemed appropriate, through the use of
derivative financial instruments, including foreigarrency forward and option contracts with finahciounterparties. Such derivative financial
instruments are viewed as hedging or risk managetoels and are not used for speculative or tragimgposes. Counterparties to our
derivative contracts are all major institutionsthie event of the financial insolvency or distreba counterparty to our derivative financial
instruments, we may be unable to settle transagficdhe counterparty does not provide us withisight collateral to secure its net settlement
obligations to us, which could have a negative ichjpa our results. At September 25, 2011 , we haeltdiability of $25 million related to
foreign currency option contracts that were dedigghas hedges of foreign currency risk on royakesed from certain licensees on their s
of CDMA-based devices. If our forecasted royaltyereues were to decline by 50% and foreign exchaaitgs were to change unfavorably by
20% in each of our hedged foreign currencies, welevimcur a loss of approximately $23 million re#u from a decrease in the fair value of
the portion of our hedges that would be renderetféstive. At September 25, 2011 , we had an afsk million related to a foreign currency
forward contract that was designated as a net imerg hedge of our investment in a wholly-ownedssdibry in Australia. We are subject to
market risk on such contract. If the exchange nakevant to that contract were to change unfaugrayp 20%, we would incur a loss of $11
million. See “Notes to Consolidated Financial Steats, Note 1 — The Company and Its SignificantdAgtting Policies” for a description of
our foreign currency accounting policies.

At September 25, 2011 , we had floating-rate baak$ in the aggregate of $994 million, which argapée in full in Indian rupees in
December 2012. The loans are payable in the fumadticurrency of our consolidated subsidiaries #natparty to the loans; however, we are
subject to foreign currency translation risk, whinhy impact our liability for principal repaymentdiinterest expense that we will record in
future. If the foreign currency exchange rate vterehange unfavorably by 20%, we would incur addiil principal of $248 million and
interest expense of $30 million through the remairaf the contractual terms of the loans.

Financial instruments held by consolidated subgikahat are not denominated in the functionatenoy of those entities are subject to
effects of currency fluctuations and may affectortgd earnings. As a global concern, we face expadsuadverse movements in foreign
currency exchange rates. We may hedge currencysarp®associated with certain assets and liabilitominated in nonfunctional
currencies and certain anticipated nonfunctionalerncy transactions. As a result, we could expegamanticipated gains or losses on
anticipated foreign currency cash flows, as wekesnomic loss with respect to the recoverabilitingestments. While we may hedge certain
transactions with noiknited States customers, declines in currency gdlueertain regions may, if not reversed, advgraéect future produ
sales because our products may become more expdgagiurchase in the countries of the affectedecwies.

Our analysis methods used to assess and mitigatésks discussed above should not be consideggeigtions of future risks.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements at Septe@5e?011 and September 26, 2010 and the ReporiagvitaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,imckided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on pa§el through F-34.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DiscloseirControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executiffecer and principal financial officer,
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure cémtind procedures, as such terms are defined iderl3a-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlobdhge Act). Based on this evaluation, our prirlaxacutive officer and our principal
financial officer concluded that our disclosure trols and procedures were effective as of the dildeoperiod covered by this Annual Report.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 134a5(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipaof our management, including our principal @xtése officer anc
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaioa of the effectiveness of our internal contreéofinancial reporting based on the
framework ininternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission.
Based on our evaluation under the frameworlntarnal Control — Integrated Frameworlour management concluded that our internal ct
over financial reporting was effective as of Segien5, 2011 .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent regisprublic accounting firm that audited the cordatiéd financial statements included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also autlitee effectiveness of our internal control oveaficial reporting as of September 25, 2011
as stated in its report which appears on page F-1.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting issigned to provide reasonable assurance regardingliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statesémt external purposes in accordance with geneaaitepted accounting principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includd®se policies and procedures that:

i. pertain to the maintenance of records tinateasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and
dispositions of our assets;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactimngecorded as necessary to permit preparatioarslidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles, and that our receipts and egiares are being
made only in accordance with authorizations ofrmanagement and directors; and

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esalisposition of ou
assets that could have a material effect on thedlwlated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiabntapy objectives because of its inherent
limitations, including the possibility of human errand circumvention by collusion or overridingamitrols. Accordingly, even an effective
internal control system may not prevent or detegtemial misstatements on a timely basis. Also,qmtipns of any evaluation of effectivenes
future periods are subject to the risk that costrohy become inadequate because of changes irtioosdir that the degree of compliance \

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during fiscal 2011 that havetenelly affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our DefiifProxy Statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission in connectidin the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be hel@®i2 (the 2012 Proxy Statement)
under the heading “Election of Directors.” Inforieait regarding executive officers is set forth iantt 1 of Part | of this Report under the
caption “Executive Officers.” The information redarg our code of ethics is incorporated by refeeetacthe 2012 Proxy Statement under the
heading “Code of Ethics.”
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpacby reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement uigehéading “Executive Compensation
and Related Information.”
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by this item is incorpacby reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement uhgeh¢adings “Equity Compensation
Plan Information” and “Stock Ownership of Certaiarificial Owners and Management.”
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorpeeby reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement ut@ehnéading Certain Relationships al
Related Person Transactions.”
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement utdeheéading “Fees for Professional
Services.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of tld@part:

Page
Number
(a) Financial Statements:

(1) Report of Independent Registered Public AccogrEirm F41
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 25, 2@ll$eptember 26, 2010 2F-
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Fiscall 20010 and 2009 F-
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Fiscal 22010 and 2009 F-
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquityFiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 5F-
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F6

(2) Schedule Il-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts Si

Financial statement schedules other than thosellEbove have been omitted because they are eihezquired, not applicable or the
information is otherwise included in the noteshe tonsolidated financial statements.

(b) Exhibits
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Exhibit

Number Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation. (1)
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Deaségion. (2)
34 Amended and Restated Bylaws. (3)

4.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated Septe2ip2005 between the Company and Computersheestbr
Services LLC, as Rights Agent. (4)

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Compaagh director and certain officers. (5)(6)
10.2 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended. (5)(7)
10.4 Form of Stock Option Grant under the 1991 SiOgkion Plan. (5)(7)
10.2¢ 1998 Non-Employee Director’s Stock Option Plasamended. (5)(8)
10.4( Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Agreemerder the 2001 Stock Option Plan. (5)(7)
10.4: Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Agreemerder the 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Op#den. (5)(9)
10.5¢ 2001 Stock Option Plan, as amended. (5)(8)
10.5¢ Form of Annual Grant under the 1998 Non-Emplop@ectors’ Stock Option Plan. (5)(7)
10.6: Summary of Changes to Non-Employee Director Gemsption Program. (5)(10)
10.6¢€ 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plasiamended. (5)(11)
10.71 Voluntary Executive Retirement Contribution Plas amended. (5)(12)
10.8: Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorporated 2B01loyee Stock Purchase Plan. (5)(13)
10.8¢ Form of Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreemerder the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (5)(14)
10.8¢ Form of Grant Notice and Market Stock Unit Agremt under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (5)(1
10.87 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended. §)(1
10.8¢ Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorporated 2B61ployee Stock Purchase Plan. (5)(16)
10.8¢ Amended and Restated Executive Retirement MagcBontribution Plan. (5)(17)
10.9( Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice unttexr 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (5)(18)
10.91 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended. 8)(1
10.92 Executive Retirement Matching Contribution Plas,amended. (5)(19)

10.9: Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Janua@HL, among QUALCOMM Incorporated, T Merger Sing, and
Atheros Communications, Inc. (20)

10.9¢ 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended. 1)(2
10.9¢ Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorporated 2B61tployee Stock Purchase Plan. (5)(21)
10.9¢ Atheros Communications, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentan, as amended. (5)(22)
10.97 Atheros Communications, Inc. 2009 InducemennGhacentive Plan. (5)(22)
10.9¢ Atheros Communications, Inc. (formerly T-Sparrfizwation) 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amendg@2)
10.9¢ Third Amended and Restated Intellon Corporafi60 Employee Incentive Plan. (5)(22)
10.10( Intellon Corporation 2007 Equity Incentive Pl@)(22)
10.101: Resolutions Amending Atheros Communications, Eguity Plans. (5)(22)
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Acdogritirm.
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of thelidaes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Paul E. Jacobs.
31.z Certification pursuant to Section 302 of thetfaaes-Oxley Act of 2002 for William E. Keitel.
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Exhibit
Number Description
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct of 2002 for
Paul E. Jacobs.
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct of 2002 for
William E. Keitel.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document. (23)
101.SCtH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. (23)
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase3)2
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase. (23)
101.PRt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbag8) (
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase. §23

(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Ddmam27, 2009.
(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Cutfeaport on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2005.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K filed on September 25, 2009.

(4) Filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Cutrieeport on Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2006.

(5) Indicates management or compensatory planrangement required to be identified pursuantemlIfi5(a).
(6) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Regigtn Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-42782).

(7) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Rihe2004.
(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended M&8h2004.
(9) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Apyi2001.
(10)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currentétepn Form 8-K filed on February 25, 2005.

(11)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currenté&epn Form 8-K/A filed on May 6, 2005.

(12)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currentd&epn Form 8-K filed on October 26, 2005.

(13)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuartergpBt on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marct2P99.
(14)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Répa Form 10-K for the year ended September 20920
(15)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuartergpBt on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marc2P80.
(16)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuartergpBt on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June @¥02
(17)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s Current&epn Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2010.
(18)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Répa Form 10-K filed on November 3, 2010.

(19)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quartergp&t on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecembgP@10.
(20)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currenté&tepn Form 8-K filed on January 6, 2011.

(21)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuartergpBt on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marct2R7.1.
(22)Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registratitatement on Form S-8 filed on June 1, 2011.
(23)Furnished, not filed.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

November 2, 201

QUALCOMM Incorporated

By /s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Signature Title Date
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman November 2, 2011
/s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs (Principal Executive Officer)
/s! William E. Keitel Chief Financial Officer November 2, 2011
William E. Keitel (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Barbara T. Alexander Director November 2, 2011

Barbara T. Alexander

/sl Stephen M. Bennett Director November 2, 2011
Stephen M. Bennett

/s/ Donald Cruickshank Director November 2, 2011
Donald Cruickshank

/sl Raymond V. Dittamore Director November 2, 2011
Raymond V. Dittamore

/s/ Thomas Horton Director November 2, 2011

Thomas Horton

/s/ Irwin Jacobs Director November 2, 2011
Irwin Jacobs
/s/ Robert E. Kahn Director November 2, 2011

Robert E. Kahn

/sl Sherry Lansing Director November 2, 2011
Sherry Lansing

/s/ Duane A. Nelles Director November 2, 2011
Duane A. Nelles

/sl Francisco Ros Director November 2, 2011
Francisco Ros

/s/ Brent Scowcroft Director November 2, 2011

Brent Scowcroft

/s/ Marc I. Stern Director November 2, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of QUALEM Incorporated:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated feialhstatements listed in the index appearing uitéen 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of QUALKZM Incorporated and its subsidiaries at SeptembBe2@11 and September 26, 2010 and
the results of their operations and their cash $léov each of the three years in the period endgde®ber 25, 2011 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America. In addition, in our opinithe financial statement schedule listed in
the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) preseiry fan all material respects, the information &&th therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. Alsaur opinion, the Company maintained, in all emitl respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 25, 200dsed on criteria establishedimernal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemessfgonsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, fortaiaing effective internal control over financi@porting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in the accompanying ManagemeRéport on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Ogpomsibility is to express opinions on these finangtatements, on the financial statement
schedule and on the Company'’s internal control éwancial reporting based on our integrated audlite conducted our audits in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accoun@wgrsight Board (United States). Those standagsire that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whaéinancial statements are free of material tatesnent and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintaineaglhmaterial respects. Our audits of the finanstatements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis@ssu the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our auflibternal control over financial reportii
included obtaining an understanding of internalta@rover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiseioéinternal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtuenstances. We believe that our audits provitkaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdiose policies and procedures that (i) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdeassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California

November 2, 201




Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Deferred tax assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Marketable securities
Deferred tax assets
Assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Payroll and other benefits related liabilities
Unearned revenues
Loans payable
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Unearned revenues
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Stockholders’ equity:
Qualcomm stockholders’ equity:

QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share data)

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; issuable ilese8 shares authorized; none outstanding at Sdete25, 2011

and September 26, 2010

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 6,000 shares apnép 1,681 and 1,612 shares issued and outstpatlin

Paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total Qualcomm stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests (Note 7)
Total stockholders’ equity

September 25, September 26,
2011 2010
ASSETS
$ 5,46z 3,541
6,19( 6,73
992 73C
76t 52¢
537 321
34€ 27t
14,29: 12,13
9,261 8,12
1,70¢ 1,927
74€ —
2,414 2,37:
3,43 1,48¢
3,09¢ 3,022
1,472 1,511
$ 36,42: 30,57:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
$ 96¢ 764
644 467
61C 625
994 1,08¢
18 1,44:
2,054 1,08t
5,28¢ 5,46¢
3,541 3,48t
62C 761
9,45( 9,714
September 25, 2011 and September 26, 2010, resglgcti — —
10,39 6,85¢€
16,20« 13,30¢
352 697
26,95! 20,85¢
21 —
26,97: 20,85¢
$ 36,42: 30,57:

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues:
Equipment and services
Licensing
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of equipment and services revenues
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other (Notes 4 and 9)
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Investment income (loss), net (Note 5)
Income from continuing operations before incomesax
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Ndfe
Net income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interediste 7)
Net income attributable to Qualcomm

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable tdc@uoam:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable t@l@omm:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic
Diluted

Dividends per share announced

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended

September 25, September 26, September 27,

2011 2010* 2009*
9,22¢ 6,971 6,437
5,734 4,011 3,95(
14,957 10,98: 10,38
4,877 3,301 3,02t
2,99t 2,451 2,34¢
1,94t 1,50z 1,462
114 — 1,01z
9,931 7,258 7,84¢
5,02¢ 3,727 2,54z
661 76€ (239
5,687 4,49¢ 2,40z
(1,139 9793 (611)
4,55¢E 3,52( 1,79z
(313 273 (200)
4,247 3,247 1,592
18 — —
4,26( 3,247 1,592
2.7¢€ 2.1F 1.0¢
(0.19 (0.17) (0.12)
2.57 1.9¢ 0.9¢
2.7C 2.1z 1.07
(0.1¢) (0.1¢) (0.12)
2.52 1.9€ 0.9t
1,65¢ 1,64: 1,65¢€
1,691 1,65¢ 1,67:
0.81 0.7z 0.6€




QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Year Ended
September 25, September 26,  September 27,
2011 2010 2009

Operating Activities:
Net income $ 4,242 $ 3247 % 1,59z
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,061 66€ 63E
Goodwill impairment 114 — —
Revenues related to non-monetary exchanges (229) (230) (119
Income tax provision (less than) in excess of inedax payments (1,209 11€ (33)
Non-cash portion of share-based compensation egpens 824 612 584
Incremental tax benefit from stock options exertise (189) (45) (79)
Net realized gains on marketable securities andrativestments (337) (40%) (137)
Net impairment losses on marketable securitiesogimel investments 52 12t 763
Other items, net 12 (64) (32
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effetecquisitions:
Accounts receivable, net (240 (18) 3,08:
Inventories (62) (80) 69
Other assets (70) (60) (58)
Trade accounts payable (26) 14¢ 57
Payroll, benefits and other liabilities 57z (229) 984
Unearned revenues 16¢ 19¢ (142)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,90( 4,07¢ 7,172
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (599 (42¢) (763)
Advance payment on spectrum (Note 9) — (1,069 —
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (20,949 (8,979 (10,447
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 10,66: 10,44( 5,27¢
Purchases of other marketable securities — (850) —
Cash received for partial settlement of investrmeogivables 18 34 34¢
Atheros acquisition, net of cash acquired (Note 12) (3,130 — — —
Other investments and acquisitions, net of cashiesd, (499 (94) (54)
Change in collateral held under securities lending — — 17¢
Other items, net (3) 94 5
Net cash used by investing activities (4,489 (83¢9) (5,457)
Financing Activities:
Borrowing under loans payable 1,55¢ 1,064 —
Repayment of loans payable (1,555 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2,64 68¢ 64z
Proceeds from put option premiums 75 — —
Proceeds from issuance of subsidiary shares toomtradling interests (Note 7) 62 — —
Incremental tax benefit from stock options exemtise 18: 45 79
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (142) (3,01¢) (285)
Dividends paid (1,34¢€) (1,177) (2,099
Change in obligation under securities lending 46 — 179
Other items, net ) (10) 3
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 1,51¢ (2,405 (839
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (14) 2 5)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,91¢ 83C 877

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,541 2,71 1,84(



Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,46 $ 3,541 § 2,715

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In millions)
Accumulated
Common Other Total Qualcomm Total
Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders' Noncontrolling Stockholders’
Shares Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
Balance at September 28, 2008 165¢ $ 7,511 $ 10,717 $ (284) % 17,94: % — 3 17,94«
Components of comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income — — 1,592 — 1,592 — 1,592
Other comprehensive income (Note 1) — — — 891 891 — 891
Total comprehensive income 2,48¢
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits 22 682 — — 682 — 682
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (©)] (28%) — — (28%) — (285)
Share-based compensation — 58¢ — — 58¢ — 58t
Dividends — — (1,099 — (2,099 — (1,099
Other — — 19 (29 — — —
Balance at September 27, 2009 1,66¢ 8,49: 11,23t 58¢ 20,31¢ — 20,31¢
Components of comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income — — 3,247 — 3,247 — 3,247
Other comprehensive income (Note 1) — — — 10¢ 10¢ — 10¢
Total comprehensive income 3,35¢
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits 23 77C — — 77C — 77C
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (80) (3,01¢) — — (3,01¢) — (3,01¢)
Share-based compensation — 604 — — 604 — 604
Dividends — — (1,177) — (2,177) — (1,177)
Other — 5 — — 5 — 5
Balance at September 26, 2010 1,612 6,85¢€ 13,30¢ 697 20,85¢ — 20,85¢
Components of comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income (loss) — — 4,26( — 4,26( (18) 4,242
Other comprehensive loss (Note 1) — — — (349 (349 (©) (347
Total comprehensive income 3,89¢
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares
withheld for tax 72 2,72C — — 2,72( — 2,72
Repurchase and retirement of common stock 3) (142) — — (142) — (142)
Share-based compensation — 84¢ — — 84¢ — 84¢
Dividends — — (1,367) — (1,367) — (1,367)
Value of stock awards assumed in acquisition — 10¢€ — — 10€ — 10€
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests (Note 7) = 14 — — 14 42 56
Other — 8) — — (8) — (8)
1,681 $ 10,39« $ 16,20¢ $ 355§ 26,95 $ 21 $ 26,97

Balance at September 25, 2011

'Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesgNote 11), was attributable to Qualcomm.

See accompanying notes.




QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. The Company and Its Significant Accountingpolicies

The Company. QUALCOMM Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, @sdsubsidiaries (collectively the Company or Qoaten), develop
design, manufacture and market digital telecommatigns products and services. The Company is dngatkveloper and supplier of
integrated circuits and system software based ate@ivision Multiple Access (CDMA), Orthogonal Freency Division Multiple Access
(OFDMA) and other technologies for use in voice dath communications, networking, application pssagy, multimedia functions and
global positioning system products to device aridhstructure manufacturers. The Company grantadies to use portions of its intellectual
property portfolio, which includes certain pateights essential to and/or useful in the manufacamet sale of certain wireless products, and
receives fixed license fees (payable in one or rnre®@liments) as well as ongoing royalties basedales by licensees of wireless
telecommunications equipment products incorporatsgatented technologies. The Company sells eggnip, software and services to
transportation and other companies to wirelesshneot their assets and workforce. The Company gesvsoftware products and services for
content enablement across a wide variety of platfoand devices for the wireless industry. The Com@dso makes strategic investments to
support the global adoption of its technologies seices.

Principles of Consolidation. The Company’s consolidated financial statementsidethe assets, liabilities and operating reflteajority-
owned subsidiaries. In addition, the Company cadat#s its investments in certain immaterial léssitmajority-owned variable interest
entities as the Company is the primary beneficiahe ownership of the other interest holders ofsotidated subsidiaries and the variable
interest entity is presented separately in the @ateted balance sheets and statements of opesa#dirsignificant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. Certain of th@@any’s consolidated subsidiaries are includatiénconsolidated financial statements one
month in arrears to facilitate the timely inclusioinsuch entities in the Company’s consolidatedriitial statements.

Financial Statement Preparation. The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie
United States requires management to make estirmateassumptions that affect the reported amounatshee disclosure of contingent amot
in the Company’s consolidated financial statemantsthe accompanying notes. Actual results codfdrdrom those estimates. Certain prior
year amounts have been adjusted to reflect theptatton of the FLO TV business as discontinuedatjmns (Note 11)

Fiscal Year. The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 fisgek year ending on the last Sunday in Septenides fiscal years
ended September 25, 2011 , September 26, 2010egtentber 27, 2009 included 52 weeks .

Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith original maturities of three months or lesde cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are comprised of gnovaket funds, certificates of deposit, commerpegber and government agencies’
securities. The carrying amounts approximate falu@ due to the short maturities of these instrumen

Marketable Securities. The appropriate classification of marketable séi@sris determined at the time of purchase andateated at each
balance sheet date. Marketable securities includiable-for-sale securities, securities for whikk Company has elected the fair value option
and certain time deposits. The Company classifi@skatable securities as current or noncurrent baseate nature of the securities and their
availability for use in current operations. Mark#&asecurities are stated at fair value. The netalized gains or losses on available-for-sale
securities are reported as a component of accuetutaher comprehensive income (loss), net of inctaxeThe unrealized gains or losses on
securities for which the Company has elected thesédue option are recognized in net investmenbine (loss). The realized gains and losses
on marketable securities are determined usinggheific identification method.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesskbksfor-sale securities in an unrealized lossifon to determine whether the
unrealized loss is other than temporary. The Compansiders factors including: the significanceta decline in value compared to the cost
basis; underlying factors contributing to a decliméhe prices of securities in a single assetsglasw long the market value of the security has
been less than its cost basis; the security’sivelgierformance versus its peers, sector or atset;@xpected market volatility, the market and
economy in general; analyst recommendations ame pairgets; views of external investment managenws or financial information that has
been released specific to the investee; and tHeasufor the overall industry in which the invesiggerates.

Starting in the third quarter of fiscal 2009, ietHebt security’s market value is below amortizest @nd the Company either intends to sell
the security or it is more likely than not that thempany will be required to sell the security efibs anticipated recovery, the Company
records an other-than-temporary impairment chasgevestment income (loss) for the entire amourthefimpairment. For the remaining debt
securities, if an other-than-temporary impairmedtsts, the Company separates the other-teamporary impairment into the portion of the |
related to credit factors, or the credit loss mortiand the portion of the loss that is not relatecredit factors, or the noncredit loss portibhe
credit loss portion is the difference between the@idized cost of the security and the Company’s smate of the present value of the cash
flows expected to be collected from the debt ségufihe noncredit loss portion is the residual amaf the other-than-temporary
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

impairment. The credit loss portion is recorded abarge to investment income (loss), and the malitdoss portion is recorded as a separate
component of other comprehensive income (lossdrRoithe third quarter of fiscal 2009, the entitber-than-temporary impairment loss was
recognized in earnings for all debt securities.

When calculating the present value of expected flasls to determine the credit loss portion of ttker-than-temporary impairment, the
Company estimates the amount and timing of projecssh flows, the probability of default and thmitig and amount of recoveries on a
security-by-security basis. These calculationsimigets primarily based on observable market dateh sis credit default swap spreads,
historical default and recovery statistics, rathggncy data, credit ratings and other data reldweasntalyzing the collectibility of the security.
The amortized cost basis of a debt security isstdgufor any credit loss portion of the impairmezttorded to earnings. The difference between
the new cost basis and cash flows expected to et is accreted to investment income (loss) tve remaining expected life of the
security.

Securities that are accounted for as equity seesiiitclude investments in common stock, equityuauand exchange-traded funds and
debt mutual funds. For equity securities, the Camypaonsiders the loss relative to the expectedtiibfeand the likelihood of recovery over a
reasonable period of time. If events and circunttanndicate that a decline in the value of antgaécurity has occurred and is other than
temporary, the Company records a charge to invegtmeome (loss) for the difference between faluesand cost at the balance sheet date.
Additionally, if the Company has either the intémsell the security or does not have both theninded the ability to hold the equity security
until its anticipated recovery, the Company recadharge to investment income (loss) for the difiee between fair value and cost at the
balance sheet date.

Securities Lending. The Company may engage in transactions in whidaicefixed-income and equity securities are loatteskelected
broker-dealers. At September 25, 2011 , the loaeedrities of $44 million were included in markdéabecurities on the balance sheet. There
were no securities loaned at September 26, 2018ruhd Company’s securities lending program. Cadlateral is held and invested by one or
more securities lending agents on behalf of the @om. The Company monitors the fair value of séi@srioaned and the collateral received
and obtains additional collateral as necess@ullateral of $46 million at September 25, 2011 wedrded in cash equivalents with a
corresponding amount in other current liabilities.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the Company’s customers to make regghipayments. The Company considers the followintpfa when determining if collection
of a fee is reasonably assured: customer creditiivass, past transaction history with the customarent economic industry trends, changes
in customer payment terms, and bank credit-wortsrer letters of credit. If the Company has novjznes experience with the customer, the
Company typically obtains reports from various @edganizations to ensure that the customer Hastary of paying its creditors. The
Company may also request financial informationluding financial statements or other documentsiguee that the customer has the meai
making payment. If these factors do not indicatéection is reasonably assured, revenue is defamgiticollection becomes reasonably
assured, which is generally upon receipt of cddhel financial condition of the Company’s customaas to deteriorate, adversely affecting
their ability to make payments, additional allowasevould be required.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or raatkeplacement cost, not to exceed net realizadiilee) using the first-in,
first-out method. Recoverability of inventoriesassessed based on review of committed purchasesdrdem customers, as well as purchase
commitment projections provided by customers, anmthgr things.

Derivatives. The Company may enter into foreign currency forweand option contracts to manage foreign excharsfefor certain foreign
currency transactions and probable anticipateddoreurrency revenue transactions. Gains and lassgiag from changes in the fair values of
such contracts that are not designated as hedgstigiinents are recorded in investment income (esg)eas gains (losses) on derivative
instruments. Gains (losses) arising from the eiffegbortion of foreign currency forward and opticontracts that are designated as cash-flow
hedging instruments are recorded in accumulategr @ibmprehensive income (loss) as gains (lossedgoviative instruments, net of tax. The
amounts are subsequently reclassified into reveimut® same period in which the underlying tratisas affect the Company’s earnings. The
fair value of the Company’s foreign currency optammtracts used to hedge foreign currency reveramsactions recorded in other current
assets was $17 million and $4 million at Septen%2011 and September 26, 2010 , respectivelytrendalue recorded in other current
liabilities was $42 million and $19 million at Septber 25, 2011 and September 26, 2010 , respsgtalebf which were designated as cash-
flow hedging instruments at September 25, 201 1saidtantially all of which were designated as déshki-hedging instruments at
September 26, 2010 . At September 25, 2011 , timep@ny had a foreign currency forward contract, wiflair value of $7 million in other
current assets, that was designated as a netimeeshedge of the Company'’s investment in a whollyred subsidiary in Australia. Gains
(losses) arising from changes in fair value ofrieeinvestment hedge are recorded in selling, géa@d administrative expenses.

In connection with its stock repurchase programa,Gompany may sell put options that require the @amg to repurchase shares of its
common stock at fixed prices. The premiums recefuath put options are recorded as other currebtliiees. Changes in the fair value of put
options are recorded in net investment income Ylasgains (losses) on derivative
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

instruments. The value of the put options recoilidasther current liabilities was $80 million at $ember 25, 2011. There were no put options
outstanding at September 26, 2010.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are recorded atarabtlepreciated or amortized using the straiglet-lin
method over their estimated useful lives. Uponrétgement or disposition of property, plant andipment, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed, and a galoss is recorded. Buildings and building imgrments on owned land are depreciated
over 30 years and 15 years, respectively. Leddétmprovements and buildings on leased land areréred over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or the remaining term ofridated lease, not to exceed 15 and 20 yeagxctgely. Other property, plant and
equipment have useful lives ranging from 2 to Z&arg. Direct external and internal costs of devafppoftware for internal use are capitalized
subsequent to the preliminary stage of developnhexaised property meeting certain capital leasergiis capitalized, and the net present
value of the related lease payments is recordediability. Amortization of assets under capitse is recorded using the straight-line method
over the shorter of the estimated useful liveserlease terms. Maintenance, repairs, and minemrals and betterments are charged to
expense as incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill represents the excess of purchase prideeated costs over the value assigned to the net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets of hasses acquired. Acquired intangible assets dilergoodwill are amortized over their useful
lives unless the lives are determined to be indefifror intangible assets purchased in a busic@shination or received in a non-monetary
exchange, the estimated fair values of the assetsved (or, for non-monetary exchanges, the egtuifair values of the assets transferred if
more clearly evident) are used to establish thelwases (except for non-monetary exchanges in wigtther of the values of the assets
received or the assets transferred in non-monetasiganges are determinable within reasonable limfieduation techniques consistent with
the market approach, income approach and/or cpsbaph are used to measure fair value.

Weighted-average amortization periods for finiteed intangible assets, by class, were as followgédars):

September 25, September 26,

2011 2010
Spectrum licenses 5 5
Marketing-related 9 18
Technology-based 11 14
Customer-related 3 5
Total finite-lived intangible assets 11 14

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atsare tested annually for
impairment in the fourth fiscal quarter and in nirte periods if certain events occur indicating ttreg carrying amounts may be impaired.
Goodwill is assessed for impairment using a twe-sggproach. First, the Company compares the egihfair value of the reporting unit in
which the goodwill resides to its carrying valudéeTsecond step, if necessary, measures the amfosutloimpairment by comparing the
implied fair value of goodwill to its carrying vauOther indefinite-lived intangible assets areeased for impairment by comparing their
estimated fair values to their carrying valuesh# carrying values exceed the fair values, thiemihce is recorded as an impairment.

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipnrehtrdangible assets subject to amortization, eveewed for impairment when there is
evidence that events or changes in circumstandésate that the carrying amount of an asset ot @sesap may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isored by comparing the carrying amount of an assasset group to estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated bysketar asset group. If the carrying amount ofsmetaor asset group exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recagphior the amount by which the carrying amountef asset or asset group exceeds the
estimated fair value of the asset or asset grogpeis to be disposed of are reported at the lofstbeaarrying amount or the estimated fair
value less costs to sell and are not depreciated.

Revenue Recognition. The Company derives revenues principally from saféstegrated circuit products, licensing of itsellectual
property and software, and sales of messagingyvardthosting, software development software andratbrvices and related hardware. The
timing of revenue recognition and the amount oerexe actually recognized in each case dependsaipariety of factors, including the
specific terms of each arrangement and the nafuteedCompany’s deliverables and obligations.

For transactions entered into prior to the firsager of fiscal 2010, the Company allocated revepu¢ransactions that included multiple
elements to each unit of accounting based onlasive fair value using vendor-specific objectiwddence (VSOE). The price charged when
the element was sold separately generally deterhfaievalue. When the Company had objective ewidenf the fair values of undelivered
elements but not delivered elements, the Compdagadéd revenue first to
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the fair value of the undelivered elements, andéselual revenue was then allocated to the delt/etements. If the fair value of any
undelivered element included in a multiple elerremangement could not be objectively determinedemae was deferred until all elements
were delivered or services were performed, or faitilvalue could be objectively determined for aaynaining undelivered elements.
Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, tiempany adopted amended accounting guidance fenuevrecognition that eliminated the use
of the residual method and requires entities tocalie revenue using the relative selling price metRor substantially all arrangements with
multiple deliverables, the Company continues toWS®E to allocate the selling price to each delbés. The Company determines VSOE
based on its normal pricing and discounting prastior the specific product or service when softhsately. In certain limited instances when
VSOE cannot be established, the Company first giteto establish the selling price based on thadypevidence (TPE). If TPE is not
available, the Company estimates the selling mfdde product or service as if it were sold ortaadalone basis. The adoption of the new
guidance did not have a material impact on thengar pattern of revenue recognition.

Revenues from sales of the Company’s productsemegnized at the time of shipment, or when titlé @sk of loss pass to the customer
and other criteria for revenue recognition are rfi¢diter. Revenues from providing services, inghgdsoftware hosting services, are recogn
when earned. Revenues from providing services lessethan 10% of total revenues for all fiscal gqaesented.

The Company licenses or otherwise provides rightsse portions of its intellectual property poiitipwhich includes certain patent rights
essential to and/or useful in the manufacture atelaf certain wireless products. Licensees typiqady a fixed license fee in one or more
installments and royalties based on their salggaducts incorporating or using the Company’s lghintellectual property. License fees are
recognized over the estimated period of benefiheflicense to the licensee, typically 5 to 15 gedrhe Company earns royalties on such
licensed products sold worldwide by its licenseebhatime that the licensees’ sales occur. The fizmy's licensees, however, do not report
and pay royalties owed for sales in any given guantil after the conclusion of that quarter. TT@mpany recognizes royalty revenues based
on royalties reported by licensees during the guamd when other revenue recognition criterianaeé

Revenues from long-term contracts are recognizedjuke percentage-of-completion method of accogntbased on costs incurred
compared with total estimated costs. The percertégempletion method relies on estimates of totaitract revenue and costs. Revenues anc
profits are subject to revisions as the contrasgprsses to completion. Revisions in profit estésatre charged or credited to income in the
period in which the facts that give rise to theisen become known. If actual contract costs aeatgr than expected, reduction of contract
profit would be required. Estimated contract lossesrecognized when determined.

The Company provides both perpetual and renewabibased software licenses. Revenues from softhicamse fees are recognized
when revenue recognition criteria are met andpffliaable, when vendor-specific objective evidearists to allocate the total license fee to
elements of multiple-element software arrangememttyding post-contract customer support. Postremh support is recognized ratably over
the term of the related contract. When contractgain multiple elements wherein the only undelideeéement is post-contract customer
support and vendor-specific objective evidencéeffair value of post-contract customer supporsdu# exist, revenue from the entire
arrangement is recognized ratably over the suggidd. The amount or timing of the Company’s saftlicensing revenues may differ as a
result of changes in these judgments or estimates.

The Company records reductions to revenues foomestincentive arrangements, including volume-eglatnd other pricing rebates and
cost reimbursements for marketing and other a@w/ihvolving certain of the Company’s productseTompany recognizes the maximum
potential liability at the later of the date at whithe Company records the related revenues atateeat which the Company offers the
incentive or, if payment is contingent, when thatomency is resolved. In certain arrangementsl|ighdities are based on customer forecasts.
The Company reverses accruals for unclaimed inoe@inounts to revenues when the unclaimed amotmtsodonger subject to payment.

Unearned revenues consist primarily of license feemtellectual property and software productsrdware product sales with continuing
performance obligations and billings on uncompletedtracts in excess of incurred cost and accruefit.p

Concentrations. A significant portion of the Company’s revenuesascentrated with a limited number of customeraeRees from two
customers of the Company’s QCT and QTL segments eamprised 13% of total consolidated revenuesstaf 2011 , compared to 15% and
10% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2040 88% and 13% of total consolidated revenuessiafi2009 , respectively. Aggregated
accounts receivable from two customers compriséd 8igross accounts receivable at September 23, 28fgregated accounts receivable
from three customers comprised 42% of gross aceaegtivable at September 26, 2010 .

Shipping and Handling Costs. Costs incurred for shipping and handling are inetlich cost of equipment and services revenuesdirtie
the related revenue is recognized. Amounts bilbed tustomer for shipping and handling are repaxtetevenue.

Share-Based Compensation. Share-based compensation expense for equity-dkssifvards, principally related to stock
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options and restricted stock units (RSUs), is mesbat the grant date, or at the acquisition dat@a$sumed awards, based on the estimate
value of the award and is recognized over the eyegls requisite service period.

The fair values of employee stock options grantedestimated using the lattice binomial option{pdgecmodel, and the fair values of
employee stock options assumed are estimated thgrnglack-Scholes option-pricing model. The weighé&erage estimated fair values of
employee stock options granted during fiscal 202010 and 2009 were $13.17 , $12.40 and $14.2%h=ee, respectively. The following table
presents the weighted-average assumptions (anaedadercentages) used to estimate the fair valuesmpfoyee stock options granted or
assumed in the periods presented:

2011 2010 2009
Volatility 30.6% 33.8% 42.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.1% 2.5% 2.€%
Dividend yield 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Post-vest forfeiture rate 9.8% 9.8% 9.2%
Suboptimal exercise factor 1.8 1.8 1.¢

The Company uses the implied volatility of marketded options in the Company’s stock to deterntieesixpected volatility. The term
structure of volatility is used up to approximateko years, and the Company uses the implied Vityatif the option with the longest time to
maturity for periods beyond two years . The rigkefinterest rate is based upon observed intettest aapropriate for the terms of the
Companys employee stock options. The Company does nattargpecific dividend yield for its dividend paymebut is required to assum
dividend yield as an input to the binomial moddieTdividend yield is based on the Company’s historg expectation of future dividend
payouts and may be subject to substantial chantfeifuture. The post-vest forfeiture rate and gtibmal exercise factor are based on the
Company'’s historical option cancellation and empkgxercise information, respectively.

The expected life of employee stock options isr@ved output of the lattice binomial model andrigpiacted by all of the underlying
assumptions used by the Company. The weighted-geengpected life of employee stock options grardsdierived from the binomial model,
was 5.6 years, 5.5 years and 5.6 years durseglf2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

The fair values of RSUs are estimated based ofathmarket values of the underlying stock on thged of grant or dates the RSUs are
assumed. If RSUs do not have the right to partieipadividends, the fair value is discounted by dlividend yield. The weighted-average
estimated fair values of employee RSUs grantechduiscal 2011 and 2010 were $50.14 and $35.6klmere, respectively. No RSUs were
granted in fiscal 2009. For the majority of RSUsares are issued on the vesting dates net of tbararof shares needed to satisfy statuton
withholding requirements to be paid by the Compamyehalf of the employees. As a result, the actuaiber of shares issued will be fewer
than the actual number of RSUs outstanding.

Share-based compensation expense is adjusteditmlexamounts related to shdrased awards that are expected to be forfeitedaihea
pre-vest forfeiture rate for stock options and Rgtmted in fiscal 2011 and 2010 was estimatecktagproximately 3% based on historical
experience. The effect of pre-vest forfeiturestmn@ompany’s recorded expense in fiscal 2011 , 20002009 for awards granted prior to
fiscal 2010 was negligible due to the predominantfynthly vesting of stock options that were grarntethose periods.

Total estimated share-based compensation expatated to all of the Company’s share-based awards,comprised as follows (in
millions):

2011 2010* 2009*

Cost of equipment and services revenues $ 67 $ 41 % 40
Research and development 397 292 272
Selling, general and administrative 34¢ 263 252
Continuing operations 81z 597 564
Related income tax benefit (299 (16€) (121)
Continuing operations, net of income taxes 61¢ 431 442
Discontinued operations 8 17 20
Related income tax benefit 3 (6) 8)
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes 5 11 12
$ 624 $ 44z  $ 45¢

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)
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The Company recorded $165 million , $119 milliord &106 million in share-based compensation expdunsag fiscal 2011 , 2010 and
2009 , respectively, related to share-based awaedged during those periods. The remaining shasedhcompensation expense primarily
related to stock awards granted in earlier peraubstock awards assumed. In addition, for fisfall2, 2010 and 2009 , $183 million , $45
million and $79 million, respectively, were reclassified to reduce net gaevided by operating activities with an offsegtincrease in net ca
used by financing activities in the consolidatettesnents of cash flows to reflect the incrememtalbienefits from stock options exercised and
restricted stock units vested in those periods.arheunt of compensation cost capitalized relateshtoebased payment awards was neglig
for all periods presented.

Litigation. The Company is currently involved in certain legedceedings. The Company records its best estiofadoss related to
pending litigation when the loss is considered plidd and the amount can be reasonably estimatedré/drange of loss can be reasonably
estimated with no best estimate in the range, ttragany records the minimum estimated liability tedbto the claim. As additional
information becomes available, the Company assélssgsotential liability related to the Compasyending litigation and revises its estime
The Company’s legal costs associated with defenitketf are recorded to expense as incurred.

Foreign Currency. Foreign subsidiaries operating in a local curregicyironment use the local currency as the functionaency.
Resulting translation gains or losses are recodrasea component of other comprehensive incoms)(l@g¢here the United States dollar is the
functional currency, resulting translation gaindamses are recognized in the consolidated statsméoperations. Transaction gains or losses
related to balances denominated in a differentecury than the functional currency are recognizetiénconsolidated statements of operations.
Net foreign currency transaction losses includetthénCompan's consolidated statements of operations were #&miand $6 million for
fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively, and negligibliscal 2009 .

Income Taxes. The asset and liability approach is used to reaegdeferred tax assets and liabilities for the etquefuture tax
consequences of temporary differences betweersatingirng amounts and the tax bases of assets dilitiés. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected in income in the period such changesrneaeted. The Company records a valuation allowamoeduce the deferred tax assets to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realiZBie Company includes interest and penalties ikaténcome taxes, including unrecognized
tax benefits, within the provision for income taxes

The Company’s income tax returns are based onlasiloos and assumptions that are subject to examimby the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities. In addition,dhkulation of the Company’s tax liabilities invek dealing with uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations. The Compeetognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positidresed on a twstep process. The first st
is to evaluate the tax position for recognitiondgtermining if the weight of available evidenceitades that it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained on audit, including desion of related appeals or litigation processkany. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than B8ty of being realized upon settlement. While tBiompany believes it has appropriate
support for the positions taken on its tax retuthe,Company regularly assesses the potential masaf examinations by tax authorities in
determining the adequacy of its provision for ineotaxes. The Company continually assesses théhlilael and amount of potential
adjustments and adjusts the income tax provisimmome taxes payable and deferred taxes in thedoeri@hich the facts that give rise to a
revision become known.

The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits asgediwith the exercise of stock options directlgtimckholders’ equity only when
realized. A windfall tax benefit occurs when théuat tax benefit realized by the Company upon apleyee’s disposition of a share-based
award exceeds the deferred tax asset, if any, @atsdavith the award that the Company had recordéten assessing whether a tax benefit
relating to share-based compensation has beemedathe Company follows the tax law ordering mdthmder which current year shdrase«
compensation deductions are assumed to be utlliefde net operating loss carryforwards and otiveattributes.

Earnings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per common share is computed bygidiyinet income attributable to Qualcomm by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstgualdiring the reporting period. Diluted earnings p@mmon share is computed by
dividing net income attributable to Qualcomm by toenbination of dilutive common share equivaleatsnprised of shares issuable under the
Company’s share-based compensation plans and shasjest to written put options, and the weightedrage number of common shares
outstanding during the reporting period. Dilutivemamon share equivalents include the dilutive eféédh-the-money share equivalents, which
are calculated based on the average share priead¢brperiod using the treasury stock method. Utidetreasury stock method, the exercise
price of an award, if any, the amount of compesatiost, if any, for future service that the Comphas not yet recognized, and the estimated
tax benefits that would be recorded in paid-in tdpif any, when an award is settled are assumdx tused to repurchase shares in the current
period. The incremental dilutive common share egeints, calculated using the treasury stock mettoodiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 were
32,908,000, 15,652,000 and 16,900,000 , respéygtive

Employee stock options to purchase 20,224,000,00#9000 and 136,309,000 shares of common stockgifiscal 2011 ,
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2010 and 2009 , respectively, were outstandingibuincluded in the computation of diluted earnipgs common share because the effect
would be anti-dilutive. Put options outstandingidgrfiscal 2011 to purchase 11,800,000 shares mihton stock were not included in the
earnings per common share computation becauseuttaptions’ exercise prices were less than theameemarket price of the common stock
while they were outstanding, and therefore, theatfbn diluted earnings per common share wouldhtieddutive (Note 7). In addition,
1,963,000 and 235,000 shares of other common stpaivalents outstanding in fiscal 2011 and 201€peetively, were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per common shacalse the effect would be anti-dilutive. There wasecommon stock equivalents
outstanding in fiscal 2009 whose effect would bé-ditutive.

Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuityeof a business enterprise during a period ftransactions
and other events and circumstances from non-ownegcas, including foreign currency translation atijuents and unrealized gains and losses
on marketable securities. The Company presents i@rapsive income in its consolidated statemenssaakholders’ equity. The
reclassification adjustment for net realized gaewmuilts from the recognition of the net realizethgdn the statements of operations when
marketable securities are sold or derivative imsgnts are settled. The reclassification adjustf@rdther-than-temporary losses on
marketable securities included in net income reduttim the recognition of the unrealized lossethéstatements of operations when they are
no longer viewed as temporary. The portion of athan-temporary impairment losses related to naticfactors and subsequent changes in
fair value included in comprehensive income is sheeparately from other unrealized gains or loesasarketable securities.

Components of accumulated other comprehensive iagorualcomm stockholders’ equity consisted offtilewing (in millions):

September 25, September 26,

2011 2010
Noncredit other-than-temporary impairment lossessabsequent changes in fair value related toinertarketable
debt securities, net of income taxes $ 27 % 62
Net unrealized gains on marketable securitiesphigicome taxes 427 723
Net unrealized losses on derivative instrumentsph@mcome taxes (15) 8)
Foreign currency translation (86) (80)
$ 352 $ 697

At September 25, 2011 , accumulated other compsaeemcome included $13 million of other-than-teorgry losses on marketable debt
securities related to factors other than creditoféncome taxes.

Total comprehensive income attributable to Qualcoromsisted of the following (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Net income $ 424: $ 3247 $ 1,592
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation 9 (40) (25)
Noncredit other-than-temporary impairment lossessurbsequent changes in fair value related toinerta
marketable debt securities, net of income taxel6f ($5) and $12, respectively (19 21 13t
Net unrealized (losses) gains on other marketaaerggies and derivative instruments, net of incdaenes of
$80, $74 and ($5), respectively (245) 392 261
Reclassification of net realized gains on marketakicurities and derivative instruments includegen
income, net of income taxes of $112, ($12) and $¥¥pectively (299 (380 (93)
Reclassification of other-than-temporary lossesnamnketable securities included in net income, h@@me
taxes of $14, ($5) and $130, respectively 25 11€ Bilke
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (347) 10¢ 891
Total comprehensive income 3,89¢ 3,35¢ 2,48%
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrollimgriests 21 — —
Comprehensive income attributable to Qualcomm $ 391 $ 3,35¢ $ 2,48t

Note 2. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thafidvbe received for an asset or paid to transfebélity (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialiign orderly transaction between market participas of the measurement date. Applicable
accounting guidance provides an established higydar inputs used in measuring fair value that mezes the use of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by rengithat the most
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observable inputs be used when available. Obseraplts are inputs that market participants wasie in valuing the asset or liability and
developed based on market data obtained from s®independent of the Company. Unobservable inpatgauts that reflect the Company’s
assumptions about the factors that market particpaould use in valuing the asset or liability eféare three levels of inputs that may be
to measure fair value:

* Level 1 includes financial instruments for whighoted market prices for identical instrumentsau@ilable in active markets.

« Level 2 includes financial instruments for whitkere are inputs other than quoted prices inclwdédn Level 1 that are observable
for the instrument.

* Level 3 includes financial instruments for whielr value is derived from valuation techniquesvinich one or more significant inputs
are unobservable, including the Company’s own apsoms.

Assets and liabilities are classified based orldhest level of input that is significant to theérfaalue measurements. The Company
reviews the fair value hierarchy classificationaquarterly basis. Changes in the observabilityatdiation inputs may result in a
reclassification of levels for certain securitieithin the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the Company’s faitueghierarchy for assets and liabilities measurddiavalue on a recurring basis at
September 25, 2011 (in millions):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 2,495 % 2,12¢  $ —  $ 4,624
Marketable securities
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedriexs 14 50¢ — 522
Corporate bonds and notes — 6,01¢ — 6,01¢
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities — 667 11 67¢
Auction rate securities — — 124 124
Non-investment-grade debt securities — 3,65¢ 16 3,672
Common and preferred stock 1,061 72¢€ — 1,78¢
Equity mutual and exchange-traded funds 84t — — 84t
Debt mutual funds 1,32 47€ — 1,80
Total marketable securities 3,24 12,05:¢ 151 15,45
Derivative instruments — 24 — 24
Other investment? 152 — — 152
Total assets measured at fair value $ 589 §$ 14,20¢ $ 151 $ 20,25
Liabilities
Derivative instruments $ — 3 12z % — 3 122
Other liabilities®™ 152 — 7 15¢
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ 15z $ 12z $ 738 281

(1) Level 1 measurements are comprised of the @ogip deferred compensation plan liability and tedaassets, which are invested in mutual funds.

Marketable Securities. With the exception of auction rate securities,@menpany obtains pricing information from quoted kearprices,
pricing vendors or quotes from brokers/dealers. Chmpany conducts reviews of its primary pricingders to determine whether the inputs
used in the vendor’s pricing processes are deembd bbservable.

The fair value of U.S. Treasury securities and gowesnt-related securities, corporate bonds andsrastd common and preferred stock are
generally determined using standard observablgsnmncluding reported trades, quoted market prioegrix pricing, benchmark yields,
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sideldlatsaand/or benchmark securities.

The fair value of debt and equity mutual fundseigarted as published net asset values. The Congssegses the daily frequency and size
of transactions at published net asset values atttddund’s underlying holdings to determine wiestfair value is based on observable or
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of highly rated mortgage- and assetked securities is derived from the use of mattriging (prices for
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similar securities) or, in some cases cash flowipgi models with observable inputs, such as contahterms, maturity, credit rating and/or
securitization structure, to determine the timing amount of future cash flows. Certain mortgagel asset-backed securities, principally
those that are rated below AAA, may require ussigriificant unobservable inputs to estimate falugasuch as default likelihood, recovery
rates and prepayment speed.

The fair value of auction rate securities is estaddy the Company using a discounted cash floweinh@t incorporates transaction det
such as contractual terms, maturity and timingamadunt of future cash flows, as well as assumptielaed to liquidity, default likelihood a
recovery, the future state of the auction rate mitaakd credit valuation adjustments of market pgints. Though certain of the securities held
by the Company are pools of student loans guardritg¢he U.S. government, prepayment speeds aquidity discounts are considered
significant unobservable inputs. These additionputs are generally unobservable, and thereforiceurate securities are included in Leve

Derivative | nstruments. Derivative instruments include foreign currencyioptand forward contracts to manage foreign exchaisi for
certain foreign currency transactions and certalatces denominated in a foreign currency, andemrpput options to repurchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at fixed prices. Derivathstruments are valued using standard calculatioodéls that are primarily based on
observable inputs, such as foreign currency exahaatgs, the Company’s stock price, volatilitied arterest rates. Therefore, derivative
instruments are included in Level 2.

Other Liabilities. Other liabilities included in Level 3 are comprisgfcdput rights held by third parties representintgiests in certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries (Note 7). These put rightsvalued with a standard option pricing model gsiignificant unobservable inputs.

Activity between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy. There were no significant transfers between Lewahd Level 2 during fiscal 2011 or
2010 . When a determination is made to classifgsaet or liability within Level 3, the determinatis based upon the significance of the
unobservable inputs to the overall fair value meament. The following table includes the activity fnarketable securities and other liabilit
classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierayctin millions):

2011 2010
Other Other
Auction Rate Marketable Other Auction Rate Marketable
Securities Securities Liabilities Securities Securities
Beginning balance of Level 3 $ 126 % 18 $ — % 174 $ 31
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses):
Included in investment income, net — 2 Q) — 5
Included in other comprehensive income 2 (@) — 7 @
Purchases 4 6 — = =
Issuances — — 8 — —
Settlements (8) (6) — (55) (22)
Transfers into Level 3 — 8 — — 4
Ending balance of Level 3 $ 124 % 27 % 7 $ 12¢ $ 18

The Company recognizes transfers into and outvefi$ewithin the fair value hierarchy at the endha fiscal month in which the actual
event or change in circumstances that causedahsfér occurs. Transfers into Level 3 in fiscal2@hd 2010 primarily consisted of debt
securities with significant inputs that became wswobable as a result of an increased likelihooa stiortfall in contractual cash flows or a
significant downgrade in credit ratings.

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements. The Company measures certain assets at fair valaenonrecurring basis. These assets include
cost and equity method investments when they agmdd to be other-than-temporarily impaired, assegsired and liabilities assumed in an
acquisition or in a nonmonetary exchange, and ptppelant and equipment and intangible assetsatetvritten down to fair value when they
are held for sale or determined to be impairedimufiscal 2011 , goodwill with a carrying amourit&i54 million was written down to its
implied fair value of $40 million , resulting in ampairment charge of $114 million (Note 4). Thepiiad fair value was based on significant
unobservable inputs, and as a result, the fairevalaasurement was classified as Level 3. Duringifid011 , 2010 and 200%he Company di
not have any other significant assets or liabgitieat were measured at fair value on a nonre@ub@sis in periods subsequent to initial
recognition.

Note 3. Marketable Securities

Marketable securities were comprised as followsi{ittions):
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Current Noncurrent
September 25, September 26, September 25, September 26,

2011 2010 2011 2010

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedriiss $ 51€ §$ 65C $ 6 $ 4
Corporate bonds and notes 3,66¢ 3,504 2,35¢ 1,49¢
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 587 62¢ 91 38
Auction rate securities — — 124 12¢€
Non-investment-grade debt securities 19 21 3,65¢ 3,34¢
Common and preferred stock 76 52 1,71: 1,67(C
Equity mutual and exchange-traded funds — — 84t 97¢
Debt mutual funds 1,327 1,47¢ — —
Total available-for-sale 6,19(C 6,33z 8,78t 7,65€

Fair value option:
Debt mutual fund — — 47€ 467
Time deposits — 40C — —
Total marketable securities $ 6,19C $ 6,73: $ 9,261 $ 8,12t

The Company holds an investment in a debt mutuad for which the Company elected the fair valueaptThe investment would have
otherwise been recorded using the equity method.dBft mutual fund has no single maturity dateSéptember 25, 2011 , the Company had
an effective ownership interest in the debt mutuat of 21% . Increases in fair value associateti this investment of $9 million and $17
million were recognized in net investment incoméisigal 2011 and 2010 , respectively. The Compagliebes that recording the investment at
fair value and reporting the investment as a matketsecurity is preferable to applying the eqoigthod because the Company is able to
redeem its shares at net asset value, which isndieted daily. At September 26, 2010 , marketabéeigtes also included $400 million of time
deposits that matured in December 2010 .

At September 25, 2011 , the contractual maturidfesvailable-for-sale debt securities were as fefigin millions):

Years to Maturity No Single
Less Than One to Five to Greater Than Maturity
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Date Total
$ 1,08 $ 4,60C $ 2,450 % 95z % 325§ 12,34:

Securities with no single maturity date includetitdmutual funds, non-investment-grade debt seegtitnortgage- and asset-backed
securities and auction rate securities.

The Company recorded realized gains and losseales sf available-for-sale marketable securitie®lews (in millions):

Gross Realized Gross Realized
Gains Losses Net Realized Gain:
Fiscal Year
2011 $ 35€ $ (30) $ 32¢
2010 41E (31 384
2009 21E (79) 13€

Available-for-sale securities were comprised abofes (in millions):
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Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
September 25, 2011
Equity securities $ 2,42¢ $ 27¢  $ (70) $ 2,63¢
Debt securities 12,17¢ 294 (132 12,34
$ 14,60f $ 572 % (202) $ 14,97¢
September 26, 2010
Equity securities $ 2,30¢ $ 402 % (11) $ 2,701
Debt securities 10,79¢ 512 (20) 11,28
$ 13,10¢ $ 91t % 31) $ 13,98¢

The following table shows the gross unrealizeddesand fair values of the Compasynvestments in individual securities that haverbie
a continuous unrealized loss position deemed tetporary for less than 12 months and for more fiftamonths, aggregated by investment
category (in millions):

September 25, 2011

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Corporate bonds and notes $ 186z $ 41 $ 41 $ =
Auction rate securities 3 — 121 2
Non-investment-grade debt securities 1,867 (86) 19 (©)]
Common and preferred stock 75C (70) 4 —
$ 4,48; $ 197 $ 18t % (5)

September 26, 2010

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Corporate bonds and notes $ 42t $ @ $ 23 % =
Auction rate securities — — 12¢€ 4)
Non-investment-grade debt securities 29¢ ) a0 8)
Common and preferred stock 13z (20 3 —
Equity mutual and exchange-traded funds 271 @) — —
$ 1,131  $ (190 $ 24z % (12

At September 25, 2011 , the Company concludedtiieatinrealized losses were temporary. Furthegdormon and preferred stock with
unrealized losses, the Company has the abilitytla@dhtent to hold such securities until they remowhich is expected to be within a
reasonable period of time. For debt securities wittealized losses, the Company does not havetetito sell, nor is it more likely than not
that the Company will be required to sell, suctusiées before recovery or maturity.

The following table shows the activity for the citddss portion of other-than-temporary impairmeosdebt securities held by the
Company (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Beginning balance of credit losses $ 10¢ $ 17¢  $ =
Credit losses remaining in retained earnings uglmpton — — 18¢€
Reductions in credit losses related to securiiesGompany intends to sell (40) — (14)
Credit losses recognized on securities previoustympaired 2 1 17
Additional credit losses recognized on securitievjusly impaired — 1 2
Reductions in credit losses related to securitds s (20) (39) (22)
Accretion of credit losses due to an increase &hdws expected to be collected (5) (24) —
Ending balance of credit losses $ 46 10§ 17¢
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Note 4. Composition of Certain Financial Statemenitems

Accounts Receivable.

September 25, September 26,

2011 2010
(In millions)
Trade, net of allowances for doubtful accounts®tfid $3, respectively $ 951 $ 697
Long-term contracts 32 25
Other 10 8
$ 99 $ 73C
I nventories.
September 25, September 26,
2011 2010
(In millions)
Raw materials $ 15 $ 15
Work-in-process 384 284
Finished goods 36€ 22¢
$ 765 S 52¢

Property, Plant and Equipment.

September 25, September 26,

2011 2010
(In millions)

Land $ 20§ 201
Buildings and improvements 1,427 1,42¢
Computer equipment and software 1,267 1,14«
Machinery and equipment 1,79¢ 1,684
Furniture and office equipment 75 70
Leasehold improvements 263 242
Construction in progress 394 75
5,421 4,84C

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,019) (2,467%)
$ 241§ 2,37¢

Depreciation and amortization expense relateddpgmnty, plant and equipment for fiscal 2011 , 2ah@ 2009 was $704 million , $437
million and $428 million , respectively. The grdssok values of property under capital leases iredud buildings and improvements were
$175 million and $227 million at September 25, 2@hdl September 26, 2010 , respectively. Theseatdgitses principally related to base
station towers and buildings. Amortization of assetorded under capital leases is included inadggtion expense. Capital lease additions
during fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 were $1 milli@40 million and $50 million , respectively.

At September 25, 2011 and September 26, 2@LAldings and improvements and leasehold imprammwith aggregate net book value
$19 million and $38 million , respectively, inclagdi accumulated depreciation and amortization ahiBon and $8 million, respectively, wel
leased to third parties or held for lease to thadies. Future minimum rental income on facilifieased to others in fiscal 2012 to 2015 is
expected to be $5 million , $3 million , $2 milli@md $1 million , respectively, and zero thereafter

Goodwill and Other I ntangible Assets. The Company’s reportable segment assets do neidegoodwill. The Company allocates goodwill
to its reporting units for annual impairment tegtpurposes. Goodwill was allocable to reportingaimcluded in the Company’s reportable
segments and to its QMT division, a nonreportabtgreent, as described in Note 10 as follows (iniom#):
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September 25, September 26,
2011 2010

QCT $ 2,45¢ $ 443
QTL 681 67€
QWI 15€ 241
QMT 13€ 12¢
Qs 1 _
$ 343: % 1,48¢

During fiscal 2011, the Firethorn division in th&MDsegment introduced a new product applicatioderaarked as SWAGG. The initial
consumer adoption rate of SWAGG had fallen sigaifity short of the Company’s expectations, and salt, the Company revised its
internal forecasts to reflect lower than expectechand and reduced the Firethorn cost structureedBas these adverse changes, the Company
performed a goodwill impairment test for the Fithdivision, which was determined to be a repgrtinit for purposes of the goodwill
impairment test. The goodwill impairment test isva-step process. First, the Company estimatefbihgalue of the Firethorn reporting unit
by considering both discounted future projectedhdlmsvs and prices of comparable businesses. Thétseof this analysis indicated that the
carrying value of the reporting unit exceededdis ¥alue. Therefore, the Company measured the athafimpairment charge by determining
the implied fair value of the goodwill as if ther@thorn reporting unit were being acquired in aitess combination. The Company determi
the fair value of the assets and the liabilitiegnprily using a cost approach. Based on the resldilthe goodwill impairment test, the Company
recorded a pre-tax goodwill impairment charge df4tnillion in other operating expenses in fiscal 20Subsequent to the impairment, $40
million of goodwill remained for the Firethorn refiag unit.

The components of other intangible assets wersllsvs (in millions):

September 25, 2011
Gross Carrying

September 26, 2010
Gross Carrying Accumulated

Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Spectrum licenses $ 20 $ 2 3 76€ $ 2
Marketing-related 72 (18) 21 (13)
Technology-based 3,761 (802) 2,78 (537)
Customer-related 132 (70) 12 (20
$ 3,991 $ 892 ¢ 358/ $ (562)

Certain spectrum licenses with a carrying valug@f6 million that the Company has agreed to setewtassified as held for sale at
September 25, 2011 (Note 11). All of the Compaimytangible assets, other than goodwill, certaircspen licenses in the amount of $16
million and acquired in-process research and deveémt, are subject to amortization. Amortizatiopense related to these intangible assets
for fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 was $357 millié227 million and $207 million , respectively, andartization expense is expected toHd&
million , $438 million , $426 million , $385 millio and $277 million for fiscal 2012 to 2016, respedy, and $1.1 billion thereafter.

Other Current Liabilities.

September 25, September 26,
2011 2010
(In millions)

Customer incentives and other customer-relateditiab $ 1,18C $ 574
Current portion of payable to Broadcom (Note 9) 17C 17C
Payable for unsettled securities trades 29¢ 80
Other 40¢€ 261
$ 2,05¢ % 1,08t

Note 5. Investment Income (Loss)

Investment income (loss), net was comprised asvall(in millions):
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2011 2010* 2009*

Interest and dividend income $ 50C 53C $ 51€
Interest expense (119 (43) (13)
Net realized gains on marketable securities 33t 401 13€
Net realized gains on other investments 2 4 1
Impairment losses on marketable securities (39 (113 (743)
Impairment losses on other investments (13) (14) (20
(Losses) gains on derivative instruments ?3) 3 1
Equity in losses of investees )] 4) a7

$ 661 76€ S (239)

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

Impairment losses on marketable securities foafig®11 and 2010 did not contain any amount relatetle noncredit portion of losses on
debt securities recognized in other comprehensiv@me. Impairment losses on marketable securitiefisical 2009 were comprised of total
other-than-temporary impairment losses of $747ionilless $4 million related to the noncredit pantaf losses on debt securities recognized in
other comprehensive income. The other-than-tempdoases on marketable securities in fiscal 20082wenerally caused by a prolonged
disruption in U.S. and foreign credit and financi@rkets that depressed securities values.

Note 6. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision werbaws (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Current provision:

Federal $ 17¢  $ 1512 $ 26¢
State 57 242 71
Foreign 67C 38¢ 291
90€ 2,14¢ 63C

Deferred provision:
Federal 17C (1,139 (72
State 62 (26) 72
Foreign (6) 7) (19
22€ 1,172 (19
$ 1,132 $ 97 % 611

The foreign component of the income tax provisionsists primarily of foreign withholding taxes ayalty income included in United
States earnings.

The components of income from continuing operatioefore income taxes by United States and foreigadictions were as follows (in
millions):

2011 2010 2009
United States $ 298¢ $ 2,198 § 1,36¢
Foreign 2,708 2,29¢ 1,03t
$ 5687 $ 4,49: §$ 2,402

The following is a reconciliation of the expectedtstory federal income tax provision to the Compsiactual income tax provision for
continuing operations (in millions):
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2011 2010 2009

Expected income tax provision at federal statutaxyrate $ 1,991 $ 157 % 841
State income tax provision, net of federal benefit 288 22¢€ 118
Foreign income taxed at other than U.S. rates (1,079 (897) (407)
Tax audit impacts, net 1 3 (155
Tax credits (152) (55) (112
Valuation allowance 42 (40) 227
Revaluation of deferred taxes 69 152 74
Other (29) 11 30

$ 1,132 $ 972 $ 611

The revaluation of deferred taxes represents tipadnof paying current taxes at a higher statectiffe tax rate than the effective tax rate
that will be in effect when the resulting defertag asset or liability is scheduled to reverse. Tohenpany has not recorded a deferred tax
liability of approximately $4.7 billiomelated to the United States federal and statenieciaxes and foreign withholding taxes on approsey:
$13.5 billion of undistributed earnings of certaion-United States subsidiaries indefinitely invdstatside the United States. Should the
Company decide to repatriate the foreign earnitigssCompany would have to adjust the income taxipian in the period management
determined that the earnings will no longer be fimitely invested outside the United States.

The Company files income tax returns in the UnB¢ates federal jurisdiction and various state aneligin jurisdictions. Tax audit impacts,
net reflects adjustments to the Company’s prior gstimates of uncertain tax positions as a regwiarious federal, state and foreign tax
audits. The Company is currently a participantia internal Revenue Service (IRS) Compliance Assa#&rocess, whereby the IRS and the
Company endeavor to agree on the treatment aalssues prior to the tax return being filed. TR8 completed its examination of the
Company'’s tax return for fiscal 2008 and issuedlaicceptance letter for fiscal 2009 during thiedtlguarter of fiscal 2010, resulting in an
increase to the tax provision of $20 million . T®empany is no longer subject to United States Eddecome tax examinations for years prior
to fiscal 2010. The Company is subject to examameliy the California Franchise Tax Board for fispaars after 2004 and is currently under
examination for fiscal 2005 through 2008. The Conypia also subject to income taxes in other tajimigdictions in the United States and
around the world, many of which are open to taxw@rations for periods after fiscal 2000.

The Company had deferred tax assets and defendidldities as follows (in millions):
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Accrued liabilities, reserves and other
Share-based compensation
Capitalized start-up and organizational costs
Unearned revenues
Unrealized losses on marketable securities
Unrealized losses on other investments
Capital loss carryover
Tax credits
Unused net operating losses
Other basis differences
Total gross deferred assets
Valuation allowance
Total net deferred assets
Purchased intangible assets
Deferred contract costs
Unrealized gains on marketable securities
Property, plant and equipment
Total deferred liabilities
Net deferred assets
Reported as:
Current deferred tax assets
Non-current deferred tax assets
Current deferred tax liabilitie8
Non-current deferred tax liabilitié%

September 25, September 26,
2011 2010

$ 20t % 287
592 61t

91 10z

1,26¢ 1,311

30¢ 341

28 27

40 37

14k 54

97 64

30 10

2,80¢ 2,84¢
(98) (39

2,70¢ 2,80¢

74 (10¢)

) (6)

(20¢) (352)

(85) (200)

(472) (56€)

$ 223 $ 2,247
$ 537 $ 321
1,70z 1,922

@ —

(2 —

$ 223 $ 2,24:

@ Current deferred tax liabilities and non-currerfiedesd tax liabilities are included in other curtréabilities and other liabilities, respectivelp, the

consolidated balance sheets.

At September 25, 2011 , the Company had unuseddiediet operating loss carryforwards of $167 milliexpiring from 2021 through
2029 , unused state net operating loss carryfosvair&352 million expiring from 2012 through 2034nd unused foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of $76 million , which expire from ZDthrough 2020 . At September 25, 2011 , the Cayppad unused tax credits of $20
million in foreign jurisdictions, which expire in023 . The Company does not expect its federal petading loss carryforwards and its state

income tax credits to expire unused.

The Company believes, more likely than not, thatilithave sufficient taxable income after stockiop related deductions to utilize the
majority of its deferred tax assets. At Septemier2D11 , the Company has provided a valuatiomalfee on certain foreign deferred tax
assets, state net operating losses and net cigisals of $76 million , $10 million and $12 millipmespectively. The valuation allowances
reflect the uncertainties surrounding the Compaabitity to generate sufficient future taxable ine®in certain foreign and state tax
jurisdictions to utilize its net operating lossesldhe Compar’s ability to generate sufficient capital gainsutilize all capital losses.

A summary of the changes in the amount of unreasghiax benefits for fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 200@is (in millions):

Beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits

Additions based on prior year tax positions
Reductions for prior year tax positions
Additions for current year tax positions
Settlements with taxing authorities

Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits

2011 2010 2009
352 $ 84 $ 244

64 227 39

(10) (58) (202)

12 1685 3

(329 (61) —

% $ 352 $ 84
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At September 25, 2011 , the Company does not exgmctinrecognized tax benefits to result in caghmeant in fiscal 2012 . Unrecognized
tax benefits at September 25, 2011 include $88amifior tax positions that, if recognized, wouldpact the effective tax rate. The
unrecognized tax benefits differ from the amouat thhould affect the Company’s effective tax ratienarily because the unrecognized tax
benefits are included on a gross basis and doeflett secondary impacts such as the federal digthuittr state taxes, adjustments to deferred
tax assets and the valuation allowance that mighequired if the Company’s tax positions are snsth The decrease in unrecognized tax
benefits in fiscal 2011 was primarily due to anesgnent reached on a component of the Companya 2806 through fiscal 2010 state tax
returns related to the method used by the Compaapportion income to states for such periods, Wwr@artially offset by an increase
resulting from the acquisition of Atheros (Note 1Phe Company does not believe that it is reasgnatsible that the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits at September 25, 201 Eigitificantly increase or decrease in fiscal 20hgerest expense related to uncertain tax
positions was negligible in fiscal 2011 , 2010 @989 . The amount of accrued interest and penaitéssnegligible at September 25, 2011 and
September 26, 2010 .

Cash amounts paid for income taxes, net of refuadsived, were $2.1 billion , $671 million and $5h8lion for fiscal 2011 , 2010 and
2009 , respectively.

Note 7. Capital Stock

Preferred Stock. The Company has 8,000,000 shares of preferred aigtiorized for issuance in one or more series,patr value of
$0.0001 per share. In conjunction with the disttitu of preferred share purchase rights, 4,000€0@0es of preferred stock are designated as
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, sunch shares are reserved for issuance upon exefdise preferred share purchase rights. At
September 25, 2011 and September 26, 2010 , nessbfpreferred stock were outstanding.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreement. The Company has a Preferred Share Purchase Righeeent (Rights Agreement) to
protect stockholders’ interests in the event of@psed takeover of the Company. Under the origRights Agreement, adopted on
September 26, 1995, the Company declared a divideode preferred share purchase right (a Rightgézh share of the Company’s common
stock outstanding. Pursuant to the Rights Agreenasndamended and restated on December 7, 2006Régthentitles the registered holder to
purchase from the Company a one one-thousandtk sh&eries A Junior Participating Preferred St&tkp001 par value per share, subject to
adjustment for subsequent stock splits, at a psecpace of $180 . The Rights are exercisable drayerson or group (an Acquiring Person)
acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of@mnpany’s outstanding shares of common stock withpproval of the Board of
Directors. Upon exercise, holders, other than aguixing Person, will have the right, subject tartération, to receive the Company’s common
stock or other securities, cash or other assete@pamarket value, as defined, equal to twice guekthase price. The Rights, which expire on
September 25, 2015, are redeemable in whole,didhmpart, at the Company’s option prior to thadisuch Rights are triggered for a price of
$0.001 per Right.

Stock Repurchase Program. On March 1, 2010, the Company announced that itiegh authorized to repurchase up to $3.0 billfath®
Company’s common stock. The stock repurchase pnoges no expiration date. Any shares repurchasetetired, and the amount paid in
excess of par value is recorded to paid-in cafditating fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , the Compampurchased and retired 2,878,000 ,
79,789,000 and 8,920,000 shares of common stosectively, for $142 million , $3.0 billion and $2&illion , respectively, before
commissions. At September 25, 2011 , approxim&i&l9 billion remained authorized for repurchaseeanride Company’s stock repurchase
program, net of put options outstanding. Since &aper 25, 2011, the Company repurchased 2,046l@0@sof the Company’s common
stock for $99 million .

In connection with the Company’s stock repurchasgmm, the Company sold three put options onvits stock during fiscal 2011 . At
September 25, 2011 , the Company had three outstapdt options enabling holders to sell 11,800,808@res of the Company’s common
stock to the Company for approximately $511 mill{oet of the $75 million in put option premiums ea®d). The recorded value of the put
option liability of $80 million at September 25, PDwas recorded in other current liabilities. Dgrfiscal 2011 , the Company recognized
losses of $5 million in net investment income (Jadge to an increase in the fair value of the piioms. No put options were outstanding
during fiscal 2010 or 2009 .

Dividends. The Company announced increases in its quarterigethd per share of common stock from $0.16 to B0ri March 3, 2009,
from $0.17 to $0.19 on March 1, 2010, and from $0.tb $0.215 on March 8, 2011. Dividends charge@tained earnings in fiscal 2011 ,
2010 and 2009 were as follows (in millions, exgegt share data):
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2011 2010 2009
Per Share Total Per Share Total Per Share Total
First quarter $ 0.19C $ 314 $ 0.17C $ 284 % 0.16C $ 264
Second quarter 0.19(C 31¢ 0.17(¢ 27¢ 0.16( 264
Third quarter 0.21¢ 36C 0.19( 30¢ 0.17(¢ 282
Fourth quarter 0.21¢ 36¢ 0.19( 30¢ 0.17C 282
$ 0.81C $ 1,361 $ 0.72C $ 1,177 $ 0.66C $ 1,09¢

On October 11, 2011 , the Company announced adiestend of $0.215 per share on the Company’s comstock, payable on
December 21, 2011 to stockholders of record asovelhber 23, 2011 , which will be reflected in tlimsolidated financial statements in the
first quarter of fiscal 2012.

Noncontrolling I nterests. In June 2010, the Company won a 20 MHz slot of Bbaad Wireless Access (BWA) spectrum in four tefeco
circles in India as a result of the completiontaf BWA spectrum auction. Assignment of licensesperate wireless networks on this
spectrum, with an initial license period of 20 yeais pending approval by the Indian governmenseéptember 2011, the Company received a
letter from the Government of India’s DepartmenTefecommunications notifying the Company thasjplications to obtain licenses to
utilize the spectrum had been rejected. In respgheeCompany filed a petition with the Telecomites Settlement and Appellate Tribunal
seeking to overturn this letter (Note 9). If assidnthe Company will amortize the spectrum licermses the remaining license period
commencing upon the commercial launch of wirelesgises in India, which is expected to occur witfiue years of the assignment date . The
Company’s goal is to attract one or more operadoingrs into a venture (or ventures) for constaunctif an LTE network in compliance with
the Indian government's rollout requirement for BWA spectrum and then to exit the venture(s). Mamner and timing of such exit will be
dependent upon a number of factors, such as meokelitions and regulatory considerations, amongrsth

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, in cotivacwith the India BWA spectrum acquisition, céntaf the Company’s subsidiaries in
India issued noncontrolling interests to two thirakty Indian investors for $62 million , such tittae Company now holds a 74% interest in
each of those subsidiaries, the maximum intereshitted under applicable Indian Foreign Direct Istveent regulations. In addition, the third
parties representing the noncontrolling interasthé subsidiaries hold put rights that providentheith options to sell their ownership interests
in the subsidiaries to QUALCOMM Incorporated ornitsminee (subject to applicable regulatory appvatter July 29, 2014, or earlier if
certain events occur, at a price equal to thegioail capital contribution. The aggregate fair eatif these put rights, which are accounted fc
freestanding financial instruments classified inertliabilities, was $7 million at September 25120

Note 8. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee Savings and Retirement Plan. The Company has a 401(k) plan that allows eligéngloyees to contribute up to 100% of their
eligible compensation, subject to annual limitse Bompany matches a portion of the employee catiibs and may, at its discretion, make
additional contributions based upon earnings. Thm@any’s contribution expense was $52 million stél 2011 and $46 million in both fiscal
2010 and 2009 .

Equity Compensation Plans. The 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plaa3 adopted during the second quarter of fiscal 2006
replaced the 2001 Stock Option Plan and the 2001-Braployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and theadecessor plans (the Prior Plans).
The 2006 Plan provides for the grant of incentind aon-qualified stock options, restricted stockgyrstock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, performance units and shares and other-izaer] awards and is the source of shares issuled the Executive Retirement Matching
Contribution Plan (ERMCP). The shares authorizedeuhe 2006 Plan were approximately 483,284,0@eptember 25, 2011 , including
65,000,000 shares that were approved by the Congpatockholders in March 2011. The share resemeiging under the 2006 Plan was
approximately 276,131,000 at September 25, 201hreS subject to any outstanding option undera Ptan that is terminated or cancelled
(but not an option under a Prior Plan that expife$pwing the date that the 2006 Plan was apprdwedtockholders, and shares that are
subject to an award under the ERMCP and are ratumthe Company because they fail to vest, williagpecome available for grant under
2006 Plan. The Board of Directors of the Company araend or terminate the 2006 Plan at any timeta@eamendments, including an
increase in the share reserve, require stockhajoj@roval.

During fiscal 2011, the Company assumed a tot8l%564,000 outstanding stock awards under varimckdtased incentive plans (the
Assumed Plans) as a result of the acquisition beAis (Note 12). The Assumed Plans provided fogthat of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock units atiter stock-based awards. The Company can cortiingeant stock awards under one of the
Assumed Plans, the Atheros Communications, Inc4 Z10ck Incentive Plan, as amended, (the Atheras)Rb certain employees. The share
reserve under the Atheros Plan was 9,733,000 ae®éer 25, 2011 . All other remaining shares atbglander Assumed Plans were
terminated on the date of the acquisition, andddit@nal shares may be granted under those plans.
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Net share-based awards, after forfeitures and #atioas, granted during fiscal 2011 , 2010 and26&presented 0.7% , 1.2% and 2.2% of
outstanding shares as of the beginning of eachlfisar, respectively. Total share-based award#epaduring fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009
represented 0.9% , 1.9% and 2.5% , respectivelgutstanding shares as of the end of each fiseal ye

Stock OptionsThe Board of Directors may grant options to sekket@ployees, directors and consultants to the Coynfzapurchase shat
of the Company’s common stock at a price not leaa the fair market value of the stock at the dégrant. Generally, options vest over
periods not exceeding five years and are exer@dablup to teryears from the grant date. A summary of stock optiansactions for all equi
compensation plans follows:

Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Shares Exercise Contractual Term Value
(In thousands) Price (Years) (In billions)
Options outstanding at September 26, 2010 214,95¢ % 38.51
Options granted 1,22 48.31
Options assumed! 4,607 29.6¢
Options cancelled/forfeited/expired (4,250 40.9¢
Options exercised (67,279 36.6(
Options outstanding at September 25, 2011 149,250 ¢ 39.1( 56 $ 1.7
Exercisable at September 25, 2011 10147 g 38.3¢ 48¢ $ 1.2

W Represents activity related to options that westia®d as a result of an acquisition (Note 12).

At September 25, 2011 , total unrecognized estithedenpensation expense related to non-vested sfaickns granted prior to that date
was $636 million , which is expected to be recogdiaver a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.tdtal intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 was Billion , $208 million and $272 million , respgeely. The Company recorded cash
received from the exercise of stock options of $fllfon , $565 million and $534 million and reldt¢éax benefits of $421 million , $80 million
and $106 million during fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 20@8spectively. Upon option exercise, the Compaayes new shares of stock.

Restricted Stock UnitRRSUs are share awards that entitle the holderceive shares of the Company’s common stock upatingeS he
RSUs generally include dividend-equivalent righid generally vest three years from the date oftglasummary of RSU transactions for all
equity compensation plans follows:

Aggregate
Weighted-Average Intrinsic
Number of Shares  Grant Date Fair Value
(In thousands) Value (In billions)
RSUs outstanding at September 26, 2010 5,55 $ 35.72
RSUs granted 13,68’ 52.8¢
RSUs assumed 4,961 50.9¢
RSUs cancelled/forfeited (654) 43.61
RSUs vested (797) 49.5]
RSUs outstanding at September 25, 2011 22,715: § 48.6¢ $ 11

WRepresents activity related to RSUs that were asduam a result of an acquisition (Note 12).

At September 25, 2011 , total unrecognized estithedenpensation cost related to non-vested RSUgegtamior to that date was $803
million , which is expected to be recognized overeaghted-average period of 2.3 years. The totsi-date fair value of RSUs that vested
during fiscal 2011 and 2010 was $43 million anch$illion , respectively. No RSUs vested in fiscaD20For the majority of RSUs, shares are
issued on the vesting dates net of the amountarEsimeeded to satisfy statutory tax withholdirguireements to be paid by the Company on
behalf of the employees. The total shares withiae approximately 243,000 in fiscal 2011 and wirsed on the value of the RSUs on their
vesting dates as determined by the Company’s dagivck price. Total payments for the employees'daligations to the taxing authorities
were $14 million in fiscal 2011.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company has an employee stock purchase platiddsle employees to purchase
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shares of common stock at 85% of the lower of #ierharket value on the first or the last day afteaffering period, which is generally six
months. Employees may authorize the Company tonwithup to 15% of their compensation during aneoffg period, subject to certain
limitations. The employee stock purchase plan ietua non-423(b) plan. The shares authorized uhdexmployee stock purchase plan were
approximately 46,709,000 at September 25, 201%.sHares reserved for future issuance were appabeiyn18,411,000 at September 25,
2011 . During fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , apprately 3,778,000 , 3,782,000 and 3,654,000 shezggectively, were issued under the plan
at an average price of $36.82 , $32.81 and $2%7 8lmre, respectively.

At September 25, 2011 , total unrecognized estichedenpensation cost related to non-vested puraligists granted prior to that date was
$17 million . The Company recorded cash receivenhfthe exercise of purchase rights of $139 mil|i@i24 million and $109 million during
fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings. Tessera, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporatedn April 17, 2007, Tessera filed a patent infringemlawsuit in the Unite
States District Court for the Eastern District @X&s and a complaint with the United States Inteynal Trade Commission (ITC) pursuant to
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 against then@pany and other companies, alleging infringeménwo patents. The district court actiol
stayed pending resolution of the ITC proceedinguiding all appeals. On May 20, 2009, the ITC issadimited exclusion order and a cease
and desist order, both of which were terminatedmthe patents expired on September 24, 2010 . Btini period of the exclusion order, the
Company shifted supply of accused chips for custem#o manufacture products that may be importetdgdJnited States to a licensed
supplier of Tessera, and the Company continuedpplg those customers without interruption. On Deber 21, 2010, the United States Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit issued a dedaigiffirming the ITC’s orders, and on March 29, 20it leclined to reconsider that decision.
The Company has appealed to the United States @epBeurt, which may or may not accept this cas@pmeal. Once the stay is lifted,
Tessera may continue to seek back damages ingtreeticourt, but it may not seek injunctive rel@fe to the expiration of the patents.

MicroUnity Systems Engineering, Inc. v. QUALCOMNMdrporated et al: MicroUnity filed a total of three patent infringeent
complaints, on March 16, 2010, June 3, 2010 andalgr27, 2011, against the Company and a numbethef technology companies,
including Texas Instruments, Samsung, Apple, Nok@ogle and HTC, in the United States District Gdor the Eastern District of Texas. 1
complaints against the Company allege infringenoéattotal of 15 patents and appear to accuse timep@ny’s Snapdragon products. The
district court consolidated the actions in May 20THhe claim construction hearing is set for Audlat2012, and trial is scheduled for June 3,
2013. On September 30, 2011, the court denied timep@nys motion to sever the claims against it from theeotlefendants and to transfer
case to the United States District Court for thethiern District of California.

Broadcom Corporation et al. v. Commonwealth Sciiendind Industrial Research Organisation (CSIR@n November 10, 2009,
Broadcom and Atheros (Note 12), which was acquinethe Company in May 2011, filed a complaint feckhratory judgment against
(CSIRO) in the United States District Court for thastern District of Texas, requesting the couddolare, among other things, that United
States patent number 5,487,069 (the '069 Patesigjreed to CSIRO is invalid, unenforceable and Ataeros does not infringe any valid
claims of the '069 Patent. On October 14, 2010,RtSfiled a complaint against Atheros and Broadcamégnded and consolidated with
complaints against other third parties on Aprie611) alleging infringement of the '069 Patent.lAim construction hearing was held on
October 4, 2011, and trial is scheduled for Apyi2912.

MOSAID Technologies Incorporated v. Dell, Inc. et ®n March 16, 2011, MOSAID filed a complaint agsiAtheros and 32 other
entities in the United States District Court foe thastern District of Texas. In its infringemenhmtions, MOSAID alleges that certain of
Atheros’ products infringe United States patent hams 5,131,006, 5,151,920, 5,422,887, 5,706,43835/86 and 6,992,972. MOSAID seeks
unspecified damages and other relief. Discoverynoayet begun. A claim construction hearing isesttiied for February 18, 2014, and trial is
scheduled for August 4, 2014.

India BWA Spectrurin connection with the BWA spectrum won in IndiaJine 2010, the Company recorded a payment in m@mtu
other assets, which was $994 million and $1.1dwillat September 25, 2011 and September 26, 20k atvely. In addition, the Company
created four whollyewned subsidiaries. On August 9, 2010, each subgifiled an application to obtain a license torape a wireless netwo
on this spectrum for one of the respective regidhereafter, two Indian companies each acquired @fB&ach subsidiary . On September 21,
2011, the Company received a letter dated SeptemI211 from the Government of India’'s Departn@ntelecommunications (DoT) (the
DoT Letter) notifying the Company that its applioas had been rejected based on its conclusiortiteatpplications were filed after the
deadline and that the Company was restrictedit@fibne application rather than four. On Septen3e2011, the Company filed a petition
with the Telecom Disputes Settlement and Appellatieunal (TDSAT) seeking to overturn the DoT Lett®&n September 28, 2011, the
TDSAT issued an order granting the Company integhef, pending a final determination of the cagiegcting the DoT to (i) not issue the
spectrum that has been earmarked to the Compaytme else and (ii) not forfeit or appropriate the
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payment that the Company made for the spectrunOQaber 10, 2011, one of the Company’s subsidiagesived a letter from the DoT
offering to issue it a license that would coverddlindia, including the four regions for which t@@mpany won spectrum at the June 2010
auction, assuming that the subsidiary met cerequirements by November 9, 2011. On October 18] 20ie subsidiary submitted to the DoT
a letter accepting the DoT'’s offer, requesting és1e of a license as soon as possible after thireegents were met, and stating that upon
issuance of the license, the Company'’s three athigsidiaries would merge into the subsidiary ttzat been granted a license. On October 19,
2011, the DoT filed a reply to the Company’s Sefiten®7, 2011 petition with the TDSAT. In its replge DoT stated that upon issuance of a
license, the Company'’s subsidiary could apply fmignment of the spectrum, and at that time, th€ Would decide whether to grant the
requested assignment and whether the Company’gagpphs for licenses were timely filed in accordanwith its rules. On October 20, 2011,
the TDSAT conducted a second hearing on the Conipaage. At the conclusion of the hearing, the TD®Adered the DoT to clarify the
aforementioned statements in its October 19, 26pllyiin light of its October 10, 2011 offer. The $BT scheduled another hearing for
November 82011. If the Company does not ultimately prevaié Company’s subsidiary may not receive a licemsmassignment of the
spectrum that the Company won in the auction; arglther of those events, the Company’s paymernthispectrum may not be returned.

Icera Complaint to the European Commissiddn June 7, 2010, the European Commission (then@ission) notified and provided the
Company with a redacted copy of a complaint filathwuhe Commission by Icera, Inc. alleging that @@mpany has engaged in
anticompetitive activity. The Company has been dskethe Commission to submit a preliminary respdiesthe portions of the complaint
disclosed to it, and the Company submitted itsaasp in July 2010. On October 19, 2011, the Coniarigsotified the Company that it should
provide to the Commission additional documentsiafamation. The Company continues to cooperatly fuith the Commission’s
preliminary investigation.

Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complai@n January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a written datidinding that the Company had
violated South Korean law by offering certain disots and rebates for purchases of its CDMA chigsfanincluding in certain agreements
language requiring the continued payment of rogsaléifter all licensed patents have expired. The&IEVied a fine, which the Company paid
in the second quarter of fiscal 2010. The Compargppealing that decision in the Korean courts. Cbmpany recorded a charge of $230
million in other operating expenses related to finie in fiscal 2009.

Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaifihe JFTC received unspecified complaints allegived the Company’s business
practices are, in some way, a violation of JapateseOn September 29, 2009, the JFTC issued & @abdesist order concluding that the
Company’s Japanese licensees were forced to doess¢ patents to the Company on a royalty-frees lzexsl were forced to accept a provision
under which they agreed not to assert their esdgratents against the Company’s other license@smdtde a similar commitment in their
license agreements with the Company. The ceasdesist order seeks to require the Company to madiggxisting license agreements with
Japanese companies to eliminate these provisioile prieserving the license of the Company’s patemtiose companies. The Company
disagrees with the conclusions that it forcedajsahese licensees to agree to any provision ipatees’ agreements and that those provisions
violate the Japanese Antimonopoly Act. The Compaa/invoked its right under Japanese law to anridtrative hearing before the JFTC. In
February 2010, the Tokyo High Court granted the @amy’s motion and issued a stay of the cease asidtadeder pending the administrative
hearing before the JFTC. The JFTC has had tenrigedaiys to date, with an additional hearing daydalked on December 15, 2011 and
additional hearing days yet to be scheduled.

Formal Order of Private Investigatio®n September 8, 2010, the Company was notifiedheySecurities and Exchange Commission’s
(SEC) Los Angeles Regional office of a formal ordeprivate investigation. The Company understahds the investigation arose from a
“whistleblower’s” allegations made in December 2@0%he audit committee of the Company’s Board wéEtors and to the SEC. The audit
committee completed an internal review with thésagace of independent counsel and independentdmraccountants. This internal review
into the allegations and related accounting prastiid not identify any errors in the Company’sfinial statements. The Company continues
to cooperate with the SEC’s ongoing investigation.

Other: The Company has been named, along with many othaufacturers of wireless phones, wireless operatedsndustry-related
organizations, as a defendant in purported classnalawsuits, and individually filed actions pendiin federal court in Pennsylvania and
Washington D.C. superior court, seeking monetargatges arising out of its sale of cellular phonde federal class action has been
dismissed, leaving only the individually filed amts in Washington D.C. active.

While there can be no assurance of favorable owtspthe Company believes the claims made by otirtiep in the foregoing matters are
without merit and will vigorously defend the actsorfhe Company has not recorded any accrual ae®éer 25, 2011 for contingent liabiliti
or recognized any asset impairment charges duisoglf2011 associated with the legal proceedingsrieed above based on the Company’s
belief that liabilities, while possible, are nobpeable. Further, any possible range of loss canaoeasonably estimated at this time. The
Company is engaged in numerous other legal actiohdescribed above arising in the ordinary coofdes business and, while there can b
assurance, believes that the ultimate outcomeesktlctions will not have a material adverse effadts operating results, liquidity or financ
position.
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Litigation Settlement, Patent License and Other Related Items. On April 26, 2009, the Company entered into a 8etéint and Patent
License and Non-Assert Agreement with Broadcom. Campany agreed to pay Broadcom $891 million , bitlv $589 million was paid
through September 25, 2011 , and the remaindebwiplaid ratably through April 2013 . The Compasgorded a pre-tax charge of $783
million in other operating expenses related to #yseement in fiscal 2009. At September 25, 2Gh#& carrying value of the liability was $294
million , which also approximated the fair valuetiogé contractual liability net of imputed interest.

Loans Payable Related to | ndia BWA Spectrum. In connection with the India BWA spectrum won imiain June 2010, certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries in India entered into logreeaments with multiple lenders that are denomahaténdian rupees. The loans bear
interest at an annual rate based on the highesamabng the bank lenders, which is reset quarteltyg, 0.25% ( 10% at September 25, 2011)
with interest payments due monthly. The loans aeeahd payable in full in December 2012 . As oftSeyber 25, 2011, all but one of the
lenders had the right to demand prepayment ofoitsgn of the loans outstanding on December 151 Xbject to sufficient prior written
notice. As a result, the loans were classified @smponent of current liabilities. The date by vwhibose lenders were required to have given
notice has now passed, and those lenders can gerldemand prepayment. One remaining lender caamprepayment of its portion of the
loans outstanding on February 28, 2012 ( $152 onilfit September 25, 2011) if notice is given byddelger 15, 2011. The loan agreements
also define certain events as events of defaultidting, among other things, if certain governmeurthorizations are revoked, terminated,
withdrawn, suspended, modified or withheld. If fheT’s rejection of the Company's license applicaiavere to be considered an event of
default, the bank lenders could declare the loaiesashd payable immediately. The Company has redewaévers from each of the bank
lenders related to this matter until at least ApriP012, conditioned upon the Company continuingursue its legal rights in this matter, and
agreeing that any default will be deemed cured uoddain circumstances, including if one of thievant subsidiaries is granted the license
and the other three are pursuing a merger intsubsidiary that has been offered a license. Theslean be prepaid without penalty on certain
dates and are guaranteed by QUALCOMM Incorporateticme of its subsidiaries. The loan agreementsagoatandard covenants, which,
among other things, limit actions by the subsiésithat are party to the loan agreements, inclutiegncurrence of loans and equity
investments, disposition of assets, mergers angatidations and other matters customarily restiidbesuch agreements. At September 25,
2011 , the aggregate carrying value of the loars$@94 million , which approximated fair value. Basnounts paid for interest on the loans
were $94 million and $15 million for fiscal 2011chR010, respectively.

Indemnifications. With the exception of the practices of Atheros, aththe Company acquired in May 2011 (Note 12)Gbenpany
generally does not indemnify its customers anchkees for losses sustained from infringement ofitharty intellectual property rights.
However, the Company is contingently liable undetain product sales, services, license and otr@eanents to indemnify certain customers
against certain types of liability and/or damageésireg from qualifying claims of patent infringentdsy products or services sold or provided
by the Company. The Company’s obligations undesetagreements may be limited in terms of time aratfoount, and in some instances, the
Company may have recourse against third partiesdidain payments made by the Company. Under Ath@rdemnification agreements,
software license agreements and product sale agraspincluding its standard software license agees and standard terms and conditions
of semiconductor sales, Atheros agrees, subjaetstactions and after certain conditions are neeindemnify and defend its licensees and
customers against third-party claims assertingrigment of certain intellectual property rightdjigh may include patents, copyrights,
trademarks or trade secrets, and to pay any judignestered on such claims against the licenseessbomers. Through September 25, 2011 ,
Atheros has received a number of claims from ftsadiand indirect customers and other third pafiegndemnification under such agreeme
with respect to alleged infringement of third-partellectual property rights by Atheros’ products.

These indemnification arrangements are not injtimeasured and recognized at fair value becaugeatikedeemed to be similar to prod
warranties in that they relate to claims and/oeo#ctions that could impair the ability of the Guamy’s direct or indirect customers to use the
Company’s products or services. Accordingly, thenpany records liabilities resulting from the arramgnts when they are probable and can
be reasonably estimated. Reimbursements under imniieation arrangements have not been materigiéddompany’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company has not recorded any aéoruantingent liabilities at September 25, 2@EEociated with these indemnification
arrangements, other than negligible amounts fonlvarsement of legal costs, based on the Compasyitsf bhat additional liabilities, while
possible, are not probable. Further, any possibige of loss cannot be estimated at this time.

Purchase Obligations. The Company has agreements with suppliers and p#rédes to purchase inventory, other goods andces and
long-lived assets. Noncancelable obligations utitkese agreements at September 25, 2011 for edbh sfibsequent five years from fiscal
2012 through 2016 were approximately $1.9 billi&62 million , $40 million , $37 million and $27 tin , respectively, and $9 million
thereafter. Of these amounts, for fiscal 2012 &B32commitments to purchase integrated circuitipco inventories comprised $1.4 billion
and $2 million , respectively.

Leases. The future minimum lease payments for all capiabkkes and operating leases at September 25, 204 hsviollows (in millions):
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Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total
2012 $ 12 $ 115§ 127
2013 12 60 72
2014 13 50 63
2015 13 33 46
2016 14 25 39
Thereafter 331 181 512

Total minimum lease payments 398§ 464 $ 85¢

Deduct: Amounts representing interest 224
Present value of minimum lease payments 171
Deduct: Current portion of capital lease obligasion 1
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations $ 17C

The Company leases certain of its land, faciliied equipment under noncancelable operating leadtdsterms ranging frortess than on
yearto 35 years and with provisions in certain leasesbst-of-living increases. Rental expense fardi011, 2010 and 2009 was $87
million , $85 million and $80 million , respectiyelThe Company leases certain property under ddpéae agreements associated with its
discontinued operations (Note 11), primarily redate site leases that have an initial term of fivseven years with renewal options of up to
five additional renewal periods. In determining tapital lease classification for the site leaggsnucommencement of each lease, the
Company included all renewal options. As a reslitsorestructuring plan, the Company does notridt® renew its existing site capital leases.
At September 25, 2011 , the Company had $149 mibiiosite capital lease assets (which are includdulildings and improvements in
property, plant and equipment) and $170 milliorcabital lease obligations (which are included imeotliabilities) that pertain to lease optional
renewal periods. The Company expects to writetefg& amounts at the end of the current contralgtasg terms. Any early terminations may
impact the amounts that are written off.

Note 10. Segment Information

The Company is organized on the basis of produaissarvices. The Company aggregates four of itisidivs into the Qualcomm Wireless
& Internet segment and three of its divisions itlte Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives (QSI) segmerfpdrttable segments are as follows:

¢ Qualcomm CDMA Technologies (QCT) — develops angplies integrated circuits and system softwaseté@n CDMA, OFDMA
and other technologies for use in voice and datancanications, networking, application processingltimedia and global
positioning system products;

*  Qualcomm Technology Licensing (QTL) — grant®fises or otherwise provides rights to use poridiise Company'’s intellectual
property portfolio, which includes certain pateights essential to and/or useful in the manufaciune sale of certain wireless
products, including, without limitation, productaplementing cdmaOne, CDMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (iading TD-
SCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA standards, amitects fixed license fees and royalties in parnt@hsideration for such
licenses;

e Qualcomm Wireless & Internet (QWI) — comprisdd o

o Qualcomm Internet Services (QIS) — provides congmablement services for the wireless industd/@rsh-to-talk and
other products and services for wireless netwoscators;

o Qualcomm Government Technologies (QGOV) — prozidevelopment, hardware, analytical expertise andces to
United States government agencies involving wigetessnmunications technologies;

o Qualcomm Enterprise Services (QES) — providedlgateand terrestrial-based two-way wireless imi@ation and position
reporting services to transportation and logistiosipanies and other enterprise companies with figgitles; and

o Firethorn — builds and manages software apptoatthat enable certain mobile commerce services.

¢ Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives (QSI) — comprisgdhe Company’s Qualcomm Ventures, Structureéide & Strategic
Investments and FLO TV divisions. QS| makes stiatetyestments that the Company believes will opew opportunities for its
technologies, support the design and introductfameav products or services for voice and data comioations or possess unique
capabilities or technology. Many of these stratégvestments are in early-stage companies. QSlraikis spectrum licenses. The
results of QSI's FLO TV business is presented asatitinued
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operations (Note 11).

The Company evaluates the performance of its seggn@sed on earnings (loss) before income taxe¥)(EBm continuing operations.
Segment EBT includes the allocation of certain ocape expenses to the segments, including depigtiand amortization expense related to
unallocated corporate assets. Certain income aadjel are not allocated to segments in the Companghagement reports because they are
not considered in evaluating the segments’ opegatérformance. Unallocated income and chargesdeatertain investment income (loss);
certain shardrased compensation; and certain research and gevefrt expenses and other selling and marketingnegsehat were deemec
be not directly related to the businesses of tgeneats. Additionally, starting with acquisitionsthre third quarter of fiscal 2011, unallocated
charges include recognition of the step-up of inegas to fair value and amortization of certaitaimgible assets. Such charges related to
acquisitions that were completed prior to the tlgjodrter of fiscal 2011 are allocated to the reSpesegments. The table below presents
revenues, EBT and total assets for reportable segnii@ millions):

Reconciling
QCT QTL QWI QSI* Items* Total*

2011

Revenues $ 8,85¢ % 5,42 65€ — 20 $ 14,957

EBT 2,05¢ 4,75: (152) (132) (83€) 5,681

Total assets 1,56¢ 36 13€ 2,38¢ 32,29¢ 36,42:
2010

Revenues $ 6,698 $ 3,65¢ 62€ — — 3 10,98:

EBT 1,69: 3,02( 12 7 (23¢9) 4,49¢

Total assets 1,08t 28 12¢ 2,74 26,58¢ 30,57
2009

Revenues $ 6,13t $ 3,60¢ 641 — 6 $ 10,38

EBT 1,441 3,06¢ 2C (54) (2,072) 2,40:

Total assets 892 8¢ 142 1,61< 24,70¢ 27,44¢

*Revenues and EBT for fiscal 2010 and 2009 werasdd{l to present discontinued operations (NoteSHare-based payments that had been included in
reconciling items and QSI revenues and EBT have bdgisted to conform for all periods presented.

Segment assets are comprised of accounts recemathlmventories for all reportable segments othan QSI. QS| segment assets include
certain marketable securities, notes receivablgtspm licenses, other investments and all as$&€$bs consolidated subsidiaries. QS|
segment assets related to the discontinued FLOUBVNbss totaled $913 million at September 25, 2011 $1.3 billion at both September 26,
2010 and September 27, 2009 . QSI assets at Sept@Hmb2011 , September 26, 2010 and Septemb@0R9, also included $20 million , $20
million and $10 million , respectively, relateditvestments in equity method investees. Reconcitems for total assets included $806
million , $384 million and $389 million at Septenmt®5, 2011 , September 26, 2010 and Septembei0P, Zrespectively, of goodwill and
other assets related to the Company’s QMT divisiongnreportable segment developing display teclyydior mobile devices and other
applications. Total segment assets also differ fiatal assets on a consolidated basis as a rdautiaiocated corporate assets primarily
comprised of certain cash, cash equivalents, mabletecurities, property, plant and equipmengmefl tax assets, goodwill, other intangible
assets and assets of nonreportable segments. Theakevalues of long-lived assets located outsidae United States were $629 million ,
$221 million and $256 million at September 25, 208keptember 26, 2010 and September 27, 2009eatdsply. The net book values of long-
lived assets located in the United States were Killi8n , $2.2 billion and $2.1 billion at Septesn®5, 2011 , September 26, 2010 and
September 27, 2009 , respectively.

Revenues from each of the Company’s divisions agdesl into the QWI reportable segment were asvi@lifn millions):

2011 2010 2009
QES $ 39t §$ 37¢ % 344
QIS 15C 1732 22¢
QGOV 10C 74 66
Firethorn 11 7 3
Eliminations = (2 1)
$ 65€ $ 626 $ 641

Other reconciling items were comprised as folloinaillions):
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2011 2010* 2009*
Revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues $ B3 $ (100 $ (15)
Other nonreportable segments 23 10 21
$ 20 §$ — 3 6
EBT
Unallocated cost of equipment and services revenues $ (210 (42) (40)
Unallocated research and development expenses (559) (401) (372)
Unallocated selling, general and administrativeesses (50€) (33¢€) (299)
Unallocated other operating expenses — — (1,019)
Unallocated investment income (loss), net 75€ 767 (241
Other nonreportable segments (329 (229 (20€)
Intersegment eliminations @ (©)] )
$ (839 (239 (2,072

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

Reconciling items for fiscal 2011 included $143lioii , $59 million and $6 million of unallocated stf equipment and services revenue,
unallocated selling, general and administrativeeeses and unallocated research and developmenmsegaespectively, related to the step-up
of inventories to fair value and amortization afingible assets resulting from acquisitions. Ottereportable segments’ losses before taxes

during fiscal 2011 , 2010 and 2009 were primarityilautable to the Company’s QMT division.

Specified items included in segment EBT were dsvid (in millions):

QCT QTL QWI QsI*

2011

Revenues from external customers $ 8,85¢ 5,42z 65€ —

Intersegment revenues 3 — — —

Interest income 1 1 — 20

Interest expense 1 — — 99
2010

Revenues from external customers $ 6,68¢ 3,65¢ 62€ —

Intersegment revenues 9 — — —

Interest income 1 2 2 8

Interest expense 1 — (4) 27
2009

Revenues from external customers $ 6,12¢ 3,60% 63€ —

Intersegment revenues 1C 2 3 —

Interest income 4 12 3

Interest expense — 1 1 —

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

Intersegment revenues are based on prevailing mades for substantially similar products and &gy or an approximation thereof, but
the purchasing segment may record the cost of tmeat the selling segment’s original cost. In thent, the elimination of the selling
segment’s gross margin is included with other Be#gment eliminations in reconciling items. Effeetjvall equity in earnings (losses) of
investees was recorded in QSI in fiscal 2011 , 2011d 2009 .

The Company distinguishes revenues from exterretboters by geographic areas based on the locatiwhith its products, software or
services are delivered and, for QTL licensing rex the invoiced addresses of its licensees. Bdtegmation by geographic area was as
follows (in millions):
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2011 2010* 2009*

China $ 4,74¢  $ 319 $ 2,37¢
South Korea 2,887 2,91 3,65¢
Taiwan 2,55( 1,36( 831
Japan 1,16t 1,01¢ 1,09¢
United States 897 55E 603
Other foreign 2,71 1,94z 1,822

$ 14957 $ 10,98: $ 10,38

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

Note 11. Discontinued Operations

On December 20, 2010 , the Company agreed toudedtantially all of its 700 MHz spectrum for $1.iibn , subject to the satisfaction of
customary closing conditions, including approvatlthg U.S. Federal Communications Commission (FT8%. agreement terminates on
January 13, 2013; however, either party can extieaéigreement for another 90 days thereafter iIF®€ approval has not been received by
then. The agreement followed the Company’s preWoaisnounced plan to restructure and evaluateegfi@bptions related to the FLO TV
business and network. The FLO TV business and mktwere shut down on March 27, 2011. Since themQbmpany has been working to
sell the remaining assets and exit contracts. TieMHz spectrum with a carrying value of $746 roitlithat the Company has agreed to sell
was classified as held for sale, and all othertasgere considered disposed of at September 23, 28tcordingly, the results of operations of
the FLO TV business were presented as discontinpechtions at September 25, 2011 . Loss from disuged operations includes shdrase(
payments and excludes certain general corporatenseg allocated to the FLO TV business during #nmgs presented. The Company’s
consolidated statements of operations for all preniods presented have been adjusted to conform.

Summarized results from discontinued operationgwasrfollows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 25, September 26, September 27,
2011 2010 2009
Revenues $ 5 % 9 $ 29
Loss from discontinued operations (507) (459 (327)
Income tax benefit 194 18¢€ 127
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ (3139 $ (279 % (20C)

The carrying amounts of the major classes of assetdiabilities of discontinued operations in tomsolidated balance sheet were as
follows (in millions):

September 25,
2011
Assets
Current assets $ 10
Property, plant and equipment, net 15€
Assets held for sale 74€
Other assets 1
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable $ 2
Payroll and other benefits related liabilities 2
Other current liabilities 75
Other noncurrent liabilities 182
$ 262

The Company has a significant number of site leam®s the Company has corresponding capital lessetsy capital lease liabilities and
asset retirement obligations (Note 9). The cajetade assets, included in property, plant and eugrp, net,
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were considered disposed of at March 27, 2011 whe€ompany shut down the FLO TV business.

Restructuring and restructuring-related activitiasler the Company’s plan related to discontinuestatpons were initiated in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2010 and are expected to be anbatly complete by the end of fiscal 2012 as@wenpany continues to negotiate the exit of
certain contracts and removes certain of its eqaigrfrom the network sites. During fiscal 2011, @@mpany recorded $300 million in
restructuring-related charges, primarily consistifigsset impairments and accelerated depreciamhnet restructuring charges of $58
million , including $48 million in contract termitian costs. Restructuring charges also includeagegeverance and lease costs. There were n
significant restructuring and restructuring-relageghenses recognized in fiscal 2010. The Compatimates that it will incur future
restructuring and restructuring-related chargespofo $25 million , primarily related to lease exitsts. The Company may also realize certain
gains, primarily due to the potential release albilities associated with ongoing efforts to exttain contracts, the amount of which cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time. Future cashreipges are expected to be in the range of $7komilo $115 million .

Changes in the restructuring accrual for fiscall20Which is reported as a component of otherlitzs , were as follows (in millions):

Contract
Termination
Costs Other Costs Total
Beginning balance of restructuring accrual $ —  $ —  $ =
Initial costs 63 16 79
Adjustments to costs 2 (6) 8
Cash payments (22) (6) (28)
Ending balance of restructuring accrual $ 38 % 4 % 43

Note 12. Acquisitions

On May 24, 2011 , the Company acquired Atheros Canications, Inc., which was renamed Qualcomm Atbelrmc. (Atheros), for total cash
consideration of $3.1 billion (net of $233 milliafi cash acquired) and the exchange of vested ané@anvested shalesed payment awar
with an estimated fair value of $106 million . Athe sells communication chipsets to manufactureretworking, computing and consumer
electronics products. The primary objective ofdleguisition is to help accelerate the expansiadh@Company's technologies and platforms to
new businesses beyond cellular, including homearprise and carrier networking. Atheros was integtanto the QCT segment.

The allocation of the purchase price to the assmisired and liabilities assumed based on theividues was as follows (in millions):

Current assets $ 92t

Amortizable intangible assets:
Technology-based intangible assets 692
Marketing-related intangible assets 50
Customer-related intangible assets 114
In-process research and development (IPR&D) 15C
Goodwill 1,777
Other assets 77
Total assets 3,78¢
Liabilities (31¢)
$ 3,46¢

Goodwill recognized in this transaction is not detihle for tax purposes and was allocated to thd @&gment for annual impairment testing
purposes. Goodwill largely consists of expectednere synergies resulting from the combination ofipct portfolios, cost synergies related to
reduction in headcount growth and lower manufaotudosts, assembled workforce and access to adisales and distribution channels.
intangible assets acquired will be amortized otraight-line basis over weighted-average usefddiof four years, six years and thyears fo
technology-based, marketing-related and customateintangible assets, respectively. The estidhtztie values of the intangible assets
acquired were primarily determined using the incapproach based on significant inputs that wereohsérvable. On the acquisition date,
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IPR&D consisted of 26 projects, primarily relatedatireless local-area network and powerline commations technologies. The projects are
expected to be completed over the next three y&aesestimated remaining costs to complete the IPR&jects were $36 million as of the
acquisition date. The acquired IPR&D will not beatized until completion of the related productstasas determined that the underlying
projects had not reached technological feasibditthe date of acquisition. Upon completion, ed&R&D project will be amortized over its
useful life; useful lives for IPR&D are expectedrémge between two to six years. Acquisition coslisted to the merger of $23 million were
recognized as selling, general and administratkpeieses as incurred in fiscal 2011. The Compamgslts of operations for fiscal 2011
included the operating results of Atheros sinceddie of acquisition, the amounts of which werematerial.

The following table presents the unaudited pro foresults for fiscal 2011 and 2010 . The unauditedforma financial information combines
the results of operations of Qualcomm and Athesothaugh the companies had been combined as betianing of fiscal 2010 , and the pro
forma information is presented for informationatpases only and is not indicative of the resultsmérations that would have been achievt
the acquisition had taken place at such times.uRaeidited pro forma results presented include anadicdn charges for acquired intangible
assets, eliminations of intercompany transactiadgjstments for increased fair value of acquiregirtory, adjustments for incremental stock-
based compensation expense related to the uneaonioh of Atheros stock options and restrictedktonits assumed, adjustments for
depreciation expense for property, plant and eqeigrand related tax effects.

2011 2010
(In millions)
Revenues $ 1558 $ 11,86"
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 4,30¢ 3,01¢

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired nine othesinesses for total cash consideration of $48i6omi Technology-based intangible
assets recognized in the amount of $150 milliorbaiag amortized on a straight-line basis over gkted-average useful life of five years.
Goodwill recognized in these transactions, of wi$284 million is expected to be deductible for paxposes, was assigned to the Company’s
reportable segments as follows (in millions):

QCT $ 227
QwWI 35
QTL 5
Qsl 1
Nonreportable segments 8

$ 27¢

During fiscal 2010, the Company acquired six busses for total cash consideration of $50 millidirchnology-based intangible assets
recognized in the amount of $32 million are beingeized on a straight-line basis over a weighteerage useful life of 11 years. During
fiscal 2009, the Company acquired one busineswfal cash consideration of $17 million .
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. Summarized Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following financial information reflects all moal recurring adjustments that are, in the opimibmanagement, necessary for a fair
statement of the results of the interim periods.

The table below presents quarterly data for fi2€dl1 and 2010 (in millions, except per share data):

1st Quarter* 2nd Quarter* 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2011
Revenue$’ $ 3,34¢  $ 387C $ 3,62 % 4,117
Operating incomé& 1,247 1,43( 1,11° 1,23¢
Income from continuing operatiofts 1,25z 1,264 98¢t 1,05t
Discontinued operations, net of t&x (82 (269) 44 (6)
Net income attributable to Qualcomith 1,17¢ 99¢ 1,03t 1,05¢€
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable tdc@uam @:

Continuing operations $ 077 $ 0.7¢ $ 05¢ $ 0.6:

Discontinued Operations $ (0.08) $ (0.1¢) $ 0.0z $ 0.0C

Net income $ 07z $ 06 $ 06z $ 0.6:
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable t@al@omm® :

Continuing operations $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7t % 05¢ $ 0.62

Discontinued Operations $ (0.08) $ (0.1¢) $ 0.0z $ 0.0cC

Net income $ 071 $ 05¢ $ 061 $ 0.62
2010*
Revenue$’ $ 2,66 $ 2,661 $ 2,70C % 2,952
Operating incomé& 98( 89¢€ 893 95¢
Income from continuing operatiofts 89¢ 852 832 93¢
Discontinued operations, net of t&x (57) (78) (65) (73)
Net income attributable to Qualconitn 841 774 767 86E
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable tdc@uam @:

Continuing operations $ 05 $ 052 $ 051 $ 0.5¢

Discontinued operations $ 0.09) $ (0.08) $ 0.09 $ (0.0%)

Net income $ 05C $ 047 $ 047 $ 0.54
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable tal@omm®:

Continuing operations $ 05 $ 051 $ 051 $ 0.5¢

Discontinued operations $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ (0.0%)

Net income $ 05C $ 0.4¢ $ 047 $ 0.5

*As adjusted for discontinued operations (Note 11)

W Revenues, operating income, income from continojpgrations, discontinued operations, net of tas, reat income attributable to
Qualcomm are rounded to millions each quarter. &foee, the sum of the quarterly amounts may noaktipe annual amounts reported.

@Earnings per share attributable to Qualcomm arepcoed independently for each quarter and the fairypased upon respective average
shares outstanding. Therefore, the sum of the giyagarnings per share amounts may not equalrheah amounts reported.
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SCHEDULE 1l

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
(Charged)
Balance at Credited to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and End of
Period Expenses Deductions Other Period
Year ended September 25, 2011
Allowances:
— trade receivables $ ® $ = $ 1 $ = $ 2
— notes receivables 3) — — — ®
— investment receivabléd 9) 6 3 — —
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (39 (42 — (17) @ (98)
$ 54) $ 36 9 4 $ 17) $ (203)
Year ended September 26, 2010
Allowances:
— trade receivables $ 4 3 @y 3 2 $ — $ 3)
— notes receivable (@) 2 — — ©)
— investment receivabléd (20 — 1 — ©
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (72) 36 — 3 @ (39
$ 87 $ 33 $ 3 $ (3) $ (54)
Year ended September 27, 2009
Allowances:
— trade receivables $ (38 $ 4 3 38 $ = $ (4)
— notes receivable 3) 4 6 — @
— investment receivabléd — (20) — — (20)
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (149 (201) — 27 ©® (72)
$ (1900 ¢ (219 ¢ 44 $ 27¢ $ (87)

®This amount represents the allowance for investreargivables due for redemptions of money marketstments.
@This amount represents $12 million recorded asaltref an acquisition and $5 million charged thestcomprehensive income (loss).
®This amount was charged to other comprehensivarirqtoss).



EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

QUALCOMM Atheros, Inc. (QCA), a Delaware Corption, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compa@ZA and its subsidiaries,
Atheros Communications KK, incorporated in Japatiefos International LLC, incorporated in Delawaktheros Korea, Ltd., incorporated
Korea, Atheros Powerline, LLC, incorporated in Dredae, and QUALCOMM Atheros Canada Corporation, ipooated in Canada, do
business under their own names. The Company cadased QCA in its financial statements.

QUALCOMM Global Trading, Inc. (QGT), a British Ving Islands corporation, is a wholly-owned subsigiaf the Company. QGT and its
subsidiaries, Atheros Communications India Pritateited, incorporated in India, Atheros India, LLIDcorporated in Delaware, DSPmicro
Beijing Co., Ltd., incorporated in China, DSPmitna., incorporated in the Cayman Islands, Globaléléss Application Services Private
Limited, incorporated in India, GPSNet Holdings,ndsor Inc., incorporated in Canada, GPSNet TeclgiedoInc., incorporated in Canada,
Opulan Technologies Corp., incorporated in the Gaymslands, Opulan Technologies Corp. HK Limitedtorporated in Hong Kong, Opulan
Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., incorporate@lina, QUALCOMM Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., incorpordta Singapore, QUALCOMM
Atheros Finland Oy, incorporated in Finland, QUALRI® Atheros Gmbh, incorporated in Germany, QUALCOMheros Hong Kong
Limited, incorporated in Hong Kong, QUALCOMM Athexdnternational Ltd., incorporated in Bermuda, QUXDMM Atheros International
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd., incorporated in China, QUALZKA Atheros (Macao Communication Offshore) Limitéd¢orporated in Macao,
QUALCOMM Atheros Networks Ltd., incorporated in Banda, QUALCOMM Atheros (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., incorgted in China,
QUALCOMM Atheros Taiwan Corporation, incorporatedTiaiwan, QUALCOMM Atheros Technology Ltd., incorpted in Bermuda,
QUALCOMM Atheros UK Limited, incorporated in the ied Kingdom, QUALCOMM Canada Inc., incorporateddanada, QUALCOMM
CDMA Technologies Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd., incorp@ein Singapore, QUALCOMM CDMA Technologies Gmbht;orporated in Germany,
QUALCOMM CDMA Technologies (Korea) Y.H., incorpoeat in South Korea, QUALCOMM CDMA Technologies Madéy SDN.BHD,
incorporated in Malaysia, QUALCOMM CDMA TechnologieY.K., incorporated in Japan, QUALCOMM CommuniocatTechnologies Ltd.,
incorporated in Taiwan, QUALCOMM Display Corporatidncorporated in Taiwan, QUALCOMM Finland Oy, orporated in Finland,
QUALCOMM GT Holdings, Inc., incorporated in the Bsh Virgin Islands, QUALCOMM India Private Limitedhcorporated in India,
QUALCOMM ltalia S.r.l., incorporated in Italy, QUACLOMM Mauritius Holdings Limited, incorporated in Matius, QUALCOMM
Netherlands B.V., incorporated in the Netherla@@dALCOMM New Zealand Limited, incorporated in Neve@and, QUALCOMM (UK)
Limited, incorporated in the United Kingdom, QUAL®M Wireless Semi Conductor Technologies Limitedarporated in China, Spike
Technologies LLC, registered in California, Wiredddroadband Business Services (Delhi) Private lddhitncorporated in India, Wireless
Broadband Business Services (Haryana) Private eanincorporated in India, Wireless Broadband BessnServices (Kerala) Private Limited,
incorporated in India, and Wireless Business SesvRrivate Limited, incorporated in India, do bessunder their own names. The Company
consolidates QGT in its financial statements.

The names of other subsidiaries are omitted. Sulokidiaries would not, if considered in the aggtege a single subsidiary, constitute a
significant subsidiary within the meaning of Ite®@16b)(21)(ii) of Regulation S-K.



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-BB7626, No. 333-119904, No. 333-
120948, No. 333-131448, No. 333-131157, No. 3336927No. 333-137693, No. 333-150423, No. 333-148Nor 333-148841, No. 333-
148556, No. 333-166246, No. 333-173184 and No. BB849) of QUALCOMM Incorporated of our report dafdovember 2, 2011 relating
to the consolidated financial statements, the fir@rstatement schedule and the effectivenesst@fmal control over financial reporting, which
appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California
November 2, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Paul E. Jacobs, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fiQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiortny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigtbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anaalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of registrant's Board of Directors p@rsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refieincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 2, 2011
/s/ Paul E. Jacobs

Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, William E. Keitel, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16flQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigtbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anabalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of registrant's Board of Directors p@rsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refieincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 2, 2011
/s/ William E. Keitel

William E. Keitel,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 25, 2011 (the “Report”), |, Paul JacGlisef Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20#;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act984; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 2, 2011

/s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 25, 2011 (the “Report”), I, William E.ité¢ Chief Financial Officer of the Company, cétipursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-OxlepA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act984; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 2, 2011

/s/ William E. Keitel
William E. Keitel,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




